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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Annual Report and Accounts 2010
Contents / Highlights

This document comprises the Contents
for HSBC Holdings plc and its subsidiaries. It

contains the Report of the Directors and Financial

Statements, together with the Independent Auditor’s Report of the Directors
Report thereon, as required by the UK Companies Act Overview
2006. The of HSBC Holdings plc is

published as a separate document. The Report of the
Directors on pages 2 to 219 and the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 220 to 233 have each been
drawn up in accordance with the requirements of English 10
law, and liability in respect thereof is also governed by

English law. In particular, the liability of the Directors for 10
these reports is solely to HSBC Holdings plc. 1
Additional information, including commentary 1
on 2009 compared with 2008, may be found in the
Form 20-F filed with the US Securities and Exchange Operating and Financial Review
Commission and available on www.hsbc.com and 14
www.sec.gov. 37
. . 38
Certain defined terms 50
Unless the context requires otherwise, ‘HSBC Holdings’ 81
means HSBC Holdings plc and ‘HSBC’, the ‘Group’, ‘we’, 86
‘us’ and ‘our’ refers to HSBC Holdings together with its
subsidiaries. Within this document the Hong Kong Special 17
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
is referred to as ‘Hong Kong'. When used in the terms Governance
‘shareholders’ equity’ and ‘total shareholders’ equity’,
‘shareholders’ means holders of HSBC Holdings ordinary 183
shares and those preference shares classified as equity. 183
The abbreviations ‘US3m’ and ‘US$bn’ represent millions 189
and billions (thousands of millions) of US dollars, 194
respectively.
206
Financial statements 212
214
The consolidated financial statements of HSBC and the 217

separate financial statements of HSBC Holdings have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as issued by the Directors’ Remuneration Report 220
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’) and

as endorsed by the European Union (‘EU’). EU-endorsed

IFRSs may differ from IFRSs as issued by the IASB if, at Financial Statements and Other Information
any point in time, new or amended IFRSs have not been 234
endorsed by the EU. At 31 December 2010, there were 235

no unendorsed standards effective for the year ended
31 December 2010 affecting these consolidated and . .
separate financial statements, and there was no difference Financial Statements

between IFRSs endorsed by the EU and IFRSs issued by 237
the IASB in terms of their application to HSBC. 250
Accordingly, HSBC's financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2010 are prepared in accordance

with IFRSs as issued by the IASB. Shareholder Information

We use the US dollar as our presentation currency 871
because the US dollar and currencies linked to it form 379
the major currency bloc in which we transact and fund our 380
business. Unless otherwise stated, the information 388

presented in this document has been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs.
Detailed contents are provided on the referenced pages.
When reference to ‘underlying’ or ‘underlying basis’

is made in tables or commentaries, comparative
information has been expressed at constant currency

(see page 14), eliminating the impact of fair value
movements in respect of credit spread changes on HSBC'’s
own debt and adjusting for the effects of acquisitions and
disposals. A reconciliation of reported and underlying
profit before tax is presented on page 15.
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The world’s local bank

Headquartered in London, HSBC is one of the world’s largest banking and
financial services organisations and one of the industry’s most valuable brands.
We provide a comprehensive range of financial services to around 95 million
customers through two customer groups, Personal Financial Services (including
consumer finance), and Commercial Banking, and two global businesses, Global
Banking and Markets, and Global Private Banking.

Our international network covers 87 countries and territories in six
geographical regions; Europe, Hong Kong, Rest of Asia-Pacific, the Middle East,
North America and Latin America.

With listings on the London, Hong Kong, New York, Paris and Bermuda stock
exchanges, shares in HSBC Holdings plc are held by over 221,000 shareholders in
127 countries and territories.

Highlights

e Pre-tax profit more than doubled to US$19bn on a reported basis.
e Underlying pre-tax profit up by almost US$5bn or 36% to US$18.4bn.

e Profitable in every customer group and region, including North America, for the
first time since 2006.

e Dividends declared in respect of 2010 totalled US$6.3bn, or US$0.36 per ordinary share,
with a fourth interim dividend for 2010 of US$0.12 per ordinary share.

e Continued capital generation — core tier 1 ratio increased to 10.5% from 9.4%.

e Customer lending up 8% to US$958bn; deposits up 7% to US$1.2 trillion on an
underlying basis.

Cover theme

An evening view of the Central Elevated Walkway in Hong Kong's business district. Used by tens of thousands of
commuters every day, this walkway forms a vital artery through the heart of Asia’s pre-eminent financial centre, which
hosts over 190 banks and deposit-taking companies from all over the world.

Overview

Governance Operating & Financial Review

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information




HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview
Financial highlights

Financial highlights

For the year

Profit before taxation Underlying profit before taxation Total operating income

US$19,037m —up 169% US$18,366m —up 36% US$80,014m —.p 22

Net operating income before loan
impairment charges and other credit  Profit attributable to shareholders of
risk provisions the parent company

US$68,247m—up3% US$13,159m—up126%

Earnings per share and dividends per share

Earnings per share Dividends per share

US$0.73 - 115% US$0.34

At the year-end

Loans and advances to Ratio of customer advances to
customers Customer accounts customer accounts
US$958bn -y 7% US$1,228bn-ups% 78.1%

Average total shareholders’ equity
Total equity to average total assets Risk-weighted assets

US$155bn—up14% 55% US$1,103bn—down3%

Capital ratios

Core tier 1 ratio Tier 1 ratio Total capital ratio

10.5% 12.1% 15.2%



Performance ratios

Credit coverage ratios

Loan impairment charges to Loan impairment charges to Total impairment allowances to
total operating income average gross customer advances impaired loans at year-end

16.9% 1.5% 71.6%
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Return ratios

]
Return on average Return on average total Post-tax return on Post-tax return on average -g
invested capital shareholders’ equity average total assets risk-weighted assets g
8.7% 9.5% 0.6% 1.3%
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Efficiency and revenue mix ratios ©
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Net interest income to Net fee income to Net trading income to O
Cost efficiency ratio total operating income total operating income total operating income
55.2% 49.3% 21.7% 9.0%
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Share information at the year-end 8
Closing market price
US$0.50 ordinary Market
shares in issue capitalisation
17,686m US$180bn  £6.51 HK$79.70 US$51.04
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Total shareholder return g
©
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To 31 December 2010 953 1 034 1 034 E
=
For footnotes, see page 83. c
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview (continued)

Group Chairman’s Statement

Group Chairman’s Statement

Our performance in 2010

A new leadership team
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview (continued)

Group Chairman’s Statement / Group Chief Executive’s Business Review

The role of banks in society

HSBC'’s people

Group Chairman



Group Chief Executive’s .
Business Review
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All figures are discussed on a reported basis and all o
references to profits are profits before tax unless otherwise &
stated. n



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview (continued)

Group Chief Executive’s Business Review

Impact of the evolving regulatory
environment on the business

Outlook
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview (continued)

Principal activities / Strategic direction / Top and emerging risks / KPIs

Principal activities Strategic direction

10



Top and emerging risks

Challenges to our business operations

Challenges to our governance and internal control systems
L]

L]
Macro-economic and geopolitical risk
L]

Macro-prudential and regulatory risks to our business
model

11

Key performance indicators
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Overview (continued)

Strategic objectives and KPIs

Strategic
objectives Deliver consistent earnings and superior risk-adjusted returns
Risk-adjusted revenue growth Basic earnings Dividends per share
(2010: underlying growth 15%) per ordinary share growth
37 1.0 111
5.9
10 13

4

o -8 -28.9

Ll

<

L

'8 30 -46.9

© 06 '07 '08 '09 '10 ‘06 '07 '08 '09 10 '06 07 '08 09 '10
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g Measure Measure: Measure:
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fé Target: Target: Target:

Outcome: Outcome: G Outcome:
Strategic Enhance efficiency using Motivate staff to
objectives economies of scale deliver strategy
Cost efficiency Employee engagement
60.1 B HSBC - Actual

Financial Services Average
B Global Best in Class

77

Key Performance Indicators

'06 '07 '08 '09 10 '07 '08 '09 10
Measure Measure:
Target: Target:
Qutcome: Qutcome:
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Strategic

Maintain capital strength and strong liquidity objectives
Return on average . . . .
, g€ Tier 1 capital Advances to core funding ratio
total shareholders’ equity %
S
15.9 o
15.7 : 2009 W2010 S
1050 4939 101.0 o
98.3
9.5
47 54

X
2 2
8 8 8 Other® g 9
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Reach new customers and expand services to existing customers Strategic c
using the HSBC brand and global network objectives g
3

Brand perception Customer recommendation
Business Business
PFS Banking PFS Banking
99 [ Target [ HSBC
77
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review

Financial summary > Reconciliation of profit before tax

Financial summary

Page

14

16

18

Net interest income 18

Net fee income 19

Net trading income 20
Net income from financial instruments designated

at fair value 21

Gains less losses from financial investments 22

Net earned insurance premiums 22

Other operating income 23

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in
liabilities to policyholders

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
provisions

Operating expenses

Share of profit in associates and joint ventures

Tax expense

Movement in 2010

Page
24

24
26
28
28
29
30
32
33

The management commentary included in the Report of the Directors: ‘Overview’and ‘Operating and Financial Review’, together with the
‘Employees’and ‘Corporate sustainability’sections of ‘Governance’and the ‘Directors’ Remuneration Report’is presented in compliance
with the IFRS Practice Statement issued by the IASB.

Reconciliation of reported and
underlying profit before tax

Constant currency

Underlying performance

14



Reconciliation of reported and underlying profit before tax

2010 compared with 2009

2009
2009 2009 at 2010 2010 2010 2010 Re- Under-
as adjust-  Currency exchange as adjust- under- ported  lying q%
reported ments translation rates reported ments lying change change >
HSBC US$m uUS$m US$m US$m US$m US$m uUS$m % % g
40,730 1) 642 41,371 39,441 (31) 39,410 3 (5) =
17,664 (210) 182 17,636 17,355 (3 17,352 (%) (%)
(6,533) 6,533 - - (63) 63 - 99 -
14,320 (283) 228 14,265 11,514 (719) 10,795 (20) (24)
Net operating income 66,181 6,039 1,052 73,272 68,247 (690) 67,557 3 (8)
3
.2
>
(26,488) - (330) (26,818) (14,039) - (14,039) 47 48 &
Net operating income 39,693 6,039 722 46,454 54,208 (690) 53,518 37 15 .‘_g
(34,395) 200 (568) (34,763) (37,688) 19 (37,669) (10) 8) §
Operating profit 5,298 6,239 154 11,691 16,520 (671) 15,849 212 36 o'-g
1,781 1) 11 1,791 2,517 — 2,517 41 41 E)
Profit before tax 7,079 6,238 165 13,482 19,037 (671) 18,366 169 36 "5
g
By geographical region o
4,009 2,546 (152) 6,403 4,302 (164) 4,138 7 (35)
5,029 1 (10) 5,020 5,692 (130) 5,562 13 11
4,200 8 205 4,408 5,902 (211) 5,691 41 29
455 - ) 453 892 42 934 96 106
(7,738) 3,688 46 (4,004) 454 (208) 246 o
1,124 - 78 1,202 1,795 - 1,795 60 49 e
@©
Profit before tax 7,079 6,238 165 13,482 19,037 (671) 18,366 169 36 g
3
By customer group and ©}
global business
(2,065) ) (70) (2,137) 3,518 (10) 3,508
4,275 (306) 64 4,033 6,090 (133) 5,957 42 48
10,481 13 173 10,667 9,536 (342) 9,194 9) (14)
1,108 - 1 1,109 1,054 1 1,055 (5) (5) @2
(6,720) 6,533 (3) (190) (1,161) (187) (1,348) 83  (609) 5
Profit before tax 7,079 6,238 165 13,482 19,037 (671) 18,366 169 36 E
@©
For footnotes, see page 83. 9
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Income statement

Consolidated income statement

Five-year summary consolidated income statement

2010
US$m

39,441
17,355
7,210

1,220
968
188
112

11,146

2,374

Total operating income 80,014

(11,767)

Net operating income before loan impairment charges
and other credit risk provisions 68,247

(14,039)

Net operating income 54,208
(37,688)

Operating profit 16,520
2,517

Profit before tax 19,037
(4,846)

Profit for the year 14,191

13,159
1,032

Five-year financial information
us$

0.73
0.72
0.73
0.34

%
46.6
46.6

0.57
95

0.648
0.755

For footnotes, see page 83.
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17

Underlying profit before tax rose by 36% as
a significant fall in impairment charges offset
a decline in revenue.

Overview
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance

Group performance by income and expense item

Net interest income

2010
US$m

58,345
(18,904)

39,441

1,472,294
3.96%
2.55%
2.68%

Summary of interest income by type of asset

2010

Average Interest
balance income Yield
Us$m  US$m %

236,742 4,555 1.92
858499 44,186 5.5
378971 9,375 247

(1,918) 229 (11.94)

1,472,294 58345 3.96

332511 6,027 181

52692 1,033  1.96
(22,905)
664,308

2,498,900 65,405 2.62

Summary of interest expense by type of liability and equity
2010

Average Interest
balance expense Cost
US$m  US$m %

111,443 1,136 1.02

66,706 1271 191
962,613 10,778 1.12
189,898 4931 2.60

8,730 788  9.03

1,339,390 18,904 141
258,348 3,497 1.35

17,456 283 162
142,579

741,127

2,498,900 22,684 0.91

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance

Net trading income

2010
uUS$m

5,708
2,530

(©)]
38
(1,057)

7,210

For footnotes, see page 83.

Lower net trading income was driven by a
US$2.0bn adverse movement on non-
qualifying hedges from 2009.
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Net income/(expense) from financial instruments designated at fair value

2010
ussm

3

()

2,349 >

(946) i

©

(258) o

(63) =

(195) g

L

75 =}

o)

1,220 =

©

~ . . . . . . q)

Assets and liabilities from which net income/(expense) from financial instruments designated at fair value arose 8—
2010
ussm
37,011
88,133

)

(&S]

c

c

7,167 =

19,725 g

69,906 @)

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance

Gains less losses from financial investments

2010
uUS$m

564
516
@)

1,073
(105)

968

Net earned insurance premiums

2010
US$m

11,609
(463)

11,146

22



Overview
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Other operating income =
2010 §
US$m c
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535 o
(263) o
93 =
&
889 3
705 o
603
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A loss on sale of the US vehicle finance

business contributed to a fall in Other

operating income.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in liabilities to policyholders

2010
uUS$m

11,969
(202)

11,767

For footnote, see page 83.

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions
2010
US$m

14,568
(1,020)

13,548

2,625
10,923

472
19

14,039

%

20.6

15
US$m

28,091
20,083

24



Overview

Loan impairment charges and other credit
risk provisions of US$14bn were 48% or
US$12.8bn lower than in 2009.

the US
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance

Rest of Asia-Pacific

Middle East

Hong Kong

Operating expenses

2010
uUS$m
By expense category
19,836
4,348
10,808

34,992
1,713
983

37,688

Staff numbers (full time equivalents)

2010

75,698
29,171
91,607

8,676
33,865
56,044

295,061

Employee compensation and benefits

26



Premises and equipment costs

Cost efficiency ratios

HSBC

Personal Financial Services

Commercial Banking

Global Banking and Markets
Global Private Banking

27

General and administrative expenses

2010
%

55.2
57.7

67.4
353
85.1
62.2
46.9
72.1

49.4

51.9
32.2
49.2
36.4
46.6
65.7

49.9
65.8
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Group performance / Balance sheet

Share of profit in associates and joint ventures

2010
US$m

987
848
327
161
156

2,479
38

2,517

Tax expense

2010
US$m

19,037
(4,846)

14,191

25.5%

28



Consolidated balance sheet

Five-year summary consolidated balance sheet and selected financial information

2010
uUS$m

ASSETS

Overview

57,383
385,052

37,011
260,757
208,271
958,366
400,755
147,094

2,454,689

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
110,584
1,227,725
300,703
88,133
258,665
145,401
58,609
109,954

2,299,774
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Equity
147,667
7,248

154,915
2,454,689

Governance

Five-year selected financial information

8,843
167,555
2,781
54,421

Risk weighted assets and capital ratios
1,103,113

%

12.1
15.2

Financial Statements

Financial statistics

78.1
5.53

7.94
17,686
0.644
0.748

For footnotes, see page 83.
A more detailed consolidated balance sheet is contained in the Financial Statements on page 240.

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Balance sheet

Movement in 2010

Assets

Cash and balances at central banks

Trading assets

Strong increase in loans and advances to
customers and customer accounts, notably
in Asia, drove balance sheet growth.

Financial assets designated at fair value

Derivative assets

Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Financial investments

Liabilities

Deposits by banks

Customer accounts

Trading liabilities

30



Financial liabilities designated at fair value
Other liabilities

3
2
2
(<)
>
o)

derivative liabilities Equity

Total shareholders’ equity

Debt securities in issue

2

0

>

[

oc

©

2

Liabilities under insurance contracts ©

i

=)

Reconciliation of reported and underlying assets and liabilities o

31 December 2010 compared with 31 December 2009 g

31 Dec 09 2

31 Dec 09 at 31 Dec 10 Under- 31 Dec 10 Under- o
as Currency exchange lying as Reported lying
reported Translation rates change reported change change
HSBC US$m US$m usS$m usS$m US$m % %

60,655 (731) 59,924 (2,541) 57,383 (5) (4) Q

421,381 (12,483) 408,898 (23,846) 385,052 9) (6) <

c

37,181 (1,134) 36,047 964 37,011 - 3 §

250,886 (9,285) 241,601 19,156 260,757 4 8 o

179,781 (5) 179,776 28,495 208,271 16 16 ©
896,231 (10,788) 885,443 72,923 958,366 7 8
369,158 (268) 368,890 31,865 400,755 9 9
149,179 (1,826) 147,353 (259) 147,094 1) -

2,364,452 (36,520) 2,327,932 126,757 2,454,689 4 5 "

c

124,872 (4,182) 120,690 (10,106) 110,584 (11) (8) g

1,159,034 (8,064) 1,150,970 76,755 1,227,725 6 7 o

268,130 (8,660) 259,470 41,233 300,703 12 16 o

()

80,092 (1,570) 78,522 9,611 88,133 10 12 .‘_g

247,646 (9,262) 238,384 20,281 258,665 4 9 =

=

146,896 (1,066) 145,830 (429) 145,401 1) - =
53,707 (1,593) 52,114 6,495 58,609 9 12
148,414 (431) 147,983 (38,029) 109,954 (26) (26)

2,228,791 (34,828) 2,193,963 105,811 2,299,774 3 5 g

128,299 (1,679) 126,620 21,047 147,667 15 17 %

7,362 (13) 7,349 (101) 7,248 %) 1) <

o

135,661 (1,692) 133,969 20,946 154,915 14 16 e

2,364,452 (36,520) 2,327,932 126,757 2,454,689 4 5 )

°

For footnote, see page 83. %

=

)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Economic profit / Critical accounting policies

Economic profit

2010

US$m %
138,224
8,123
(813)
100

6,129
(5.473)

146,290
12,746 8.7
(16,092)  (11.0)

(3346)  (2.3)

For footnotes, see page 83.
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Critical accounting policies

(Audited)

Introduction

Overview

Impairment of loans and advances
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Critical accounting policies

Goodwill impairment

Valuation of financial instruments

34
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Impairment of available-for-sale financial

assets
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Financial summary > Critical accounting policies // Customer groups and global businesses > Summary

Deferred tax assets
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Customer groups and global

Basis of preparation

businesses
Page
37
38
40
42
44
46
a7
48
Summary
Profit/(loss) before tax
2010
US$m %
3,518 18.5
6,090 32.0
9,536 50.1
1,054 55
(1,161) (6.1)
19,037 100.0

Total assets

For footnotes, see page 83.

2010
uss$m %
527,698 215
296,797 121
1758315 716
116,846 48
161,458 6.6
(406,425)  (16.6)
2,454,689  100.0
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > Products and services

Products and services

Personal Financial Services e HSBC Premier

o HSBC Advance

o Wealth Solutions & Financial Planning:

Commercial Banking e Financing

e Payments and cash management

e International trade

o Treasury

o Capital markets & advisory

e Commercial cards

e Insurance

e Direct channels

38



Global Banking and Markets

Global Markets

Global Banking

Global Asset Management

Principal Investments

Global Private Banking

Private Banking

Private Wealth Management

Private Wealth Solutions

39
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > PFS

Personal Financial Services Review of performance

PFS provides 92 million individual and
self-employed customers with financial
services in over 60 markets worldwide.

2010
US$m

24,161
7,336
1,079

Net operating income 32,576
(11,259)

Net operating income 21,317
(18,805)

Operating profit/(loss) 2,512
1,006

Profit/(loss) before tax 3,518

Return to profitability in PFS
as credit quality
improved

HSBC Advance
launched in

34

markets in its first year

Significant increase
in mortgage lending
in Hong Kong and the UK

Strategic direction

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > CMB

Commercial Banking Review of performance

CMB offers a full range of commercial
financial services and tailored
propositions to 3.6m customers
ranging from sole proprietors to
publicly quoted companies in 65
countries.

2010
US$m

8,487
3,964
1,383

Net operating income 13,834
(1,805)

Net operating income 12,029
(6,831)
Operating profit 5,198 °
892
Profit before tax 6,090

Strong balance sheet growth with .
21%
rise in lending to US$239bn

Significant pre-tax profit
contribution from
emerging markets at

67%

First international bank to
complete renminbi trade
settlements across six continents

Strategic direction

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > GB&M

Global Banking and Markets Review of performance

GB&M is a global business which
provides tailored financial solutions
to major government, corporate and
institutional clients worldwide.

2010
US$m

7,348
4,725
5,831
2,043

Net operating income 19,947
(990)

Net operating income 18,957
(9,962)

Operating profit 8,995
541

Profit before tax 9,536

Employee expenses (including
payroll and bonus taxes)
in operating expenses

US$4,737m

Strong contribution from
emerging markets

Best Global Emerging
Markets Bank

Best Global Emerging Emerging Markets
Markets Debt House Bond House of the Year
International Financing
Best Debt House Review Awards 2010
in Asia
Euromoney Awards
for Excellence 2010

Strategic direction

For footnotes, see page 83.
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Management view of total operating income

2010
US$m

9,173

1,649
2,052
2,752

755
1,511

454

4,621

2,852
1,133

636

4,102

1,077
319
655

19,947

Comparative information has been adjusted to reflect the
current management view.

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > GPB / Other

Global Private Banking

GPB works with our high net worth
clients to offer both traditional and
innovative ways to manage and preserve
wealth while optimising returns.

2010
US$m

1,345
1,299
449

Net operating income 3,093

12

Net operating income 3,105

(2,035)

Operating profit 1,070

(16)

Profit before tax 1,054

Client assets over 6% up at

US$390bn

Higher investment in GPB
operations in Asia,
Latin America and the Middle East

Best Global Wealth Manager
Euromoney Awards for Excellence 2010

Best Private Bank in
Asia
Euromoney 2011 Private
Banking Survey

Outstanding Private
Bank — Middle East
Private Banker International
Awards 2010

Strategic direction

For footnotes, see page 83.
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Review of performance

Client assets
2010
USs$bn

367
13
13

©)]

390




Other

‘Other’ contains the results of certain
property transactions, unallocated
investment activities, centrally held
investment companies, movements in
fair value of own debt, HSBC's holding
company and financing operations.

2010
us$m
(998)
(311)
(216)
6,185

Net operating income
(expense) 4,660
3

Net operating income
(expense) 4,663
(5,918)
Operating profit/(loss) (1,255)
94
Profit/(loss) before tax (1,161)

US$250m

gain on sale and leaseback of Paris
and New York headquarters buildings

US$6.5bn

reduction in adverse fair value
movements on own debt

Investment in
Group Service Centres
as migrated activities increase

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Customer groups and global businesses > Analysis

Analysis by customer group and global business

HSBC profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment
Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
uUS$m uUS$m usS$m US$m usS$m US$m uUS$m
Profit/(loss) before tax
24,161 8,487 7,348 1,345 (998) (902) 39,441
7,336 3,964 4,725 1,299 31 - 17,355
(107) 427 4,327 391 (358) - 4,680
28 28 1,504 21 47 902 2,530
(79) 455 5,831 412 (311) 902 7,210
- - - - (258) - (258)
1,210 190 36 - 42 - 1,478
1,210 190 36 - (216) - 1,220
42 1) 797 (6) 136 - 968
27 12 48 5 20 - 112
9,737 1,379 41 - (11) - 11,146
650 585 1,147 38 6,005 (5,863) 2,562
Total operating income 43,084 15,071 19,973 3,093 4,656 (5,863) 80,014
(10,508) (1,237) (26) - 4 - (11,767)
Net operating income 32,576 13,834 19,947 3,093 4,660 (5,863) 68,247
(11,259) (1,805) (990) 12 3 - (14,039)
Net operating income 21,317 12,029 18,957 3,105 4,663 (5,863) 54,208
(5,388) (2,153) (4,735) (1,237) (6,323) - (19,836)
(13,417) (4,678) (5,227) (798) 405 5,863 (17,852)
(18,805) (6,831) (9,962) (2,035) (5,918) 5,863 (37,688)
Operating profit/(loss) 2,512 5,198 8,995 1,070 (1,255) - 16,520
1,006 892 541 (16) 94 - 2,517
Profit/(loss) before tax 3,518 6,090 9,536 1,054 (1,161) - 19,037
% % % % % %
18.5 32.0 50.1 55 6.1) 100.0
57.7 49.4 49.9 65.8 127.0 55.2
Balance sheet data
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m usS$m uS$m
390,957 239,286 284,503 40,665 2,955 958,366
527,698 296,797 1,758,315 116,846 161,458 (406,425) 2,454,689
525,184 286,007 308,453 107,130 951 1,227,725
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Balance sheet data
For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Summary / Europe

Geographical regions Summary

Page
50
51
56
60
66
71
76

Profit/(loss) before tax

2010

US$m %
4,302 22.6
5,692 29.9
5,902 31.0
892 4.7
454 2.4
1,795 9.4
19,037 100.0

Total assets

2010
us$m %

1,249,527 50.9
429,565 17.5
278,062 11.3

52,757 2.1
492,487 20.1
139,938 5.7

(187,647) (7.6

2,454,689 100.0

Risk-weighted assets

2010
uUssbn %
1,103.1

301.6 27.2
106.9 9.7
2175 19.6
54.1 4.9
330.7 29.9
95.9 8.7

For footnotes, see page 83.
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Europe Economic background

Our principal banking operations in Europe are UK

HSBC Bank plc in the UK, HSBC France, HSBC
Bank A.S. in Turkey, HSBC Bank Malta p.l.c.,
HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) S.A. and HSBC
Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG. Through these
operations we provide a wide range of banking,
treasury and financial services to personal,
commercial and corporate customers across
Europe.

Overview

2010
US$m

11,250
6,371
2,863 eurozone
2,266

Net operating income 22,750
(3,020)

Net operating income 19,730
(15,445)

3
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Operating profit 4,285
17

Profit before tax 4,302
67.9%

75,698

Governance

Reduction in
underlying impairment charges

45%

Total UK mortgage
market share

5.2%

Review of performance

Financial Statements

Strong trade
revenue growth

For footnotes, see page 83.
The commentary on Europe is on an underlying basis unless stated
otherwise.

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Europe

Profit/(loss) before tax by country within customer groups and global businesses

Personal Global Global
Financial Commercial Banking & Private
Services Banking Markets Banking Other Total
US$m US$m uUS$m US$m uUS$m US$m
2010
1,223 827 1,730 223 (1,605) 2,398
109 135 405 18 26 693
32 267 30 4 333
35 56 19 - - 110
- (5) - 265 - 260
64 80 105 1 - 250
(142) 80 200 103 17 258
1,289 1,205 2,726 640 (1,558) 4,302

For footnote, see page 83.

Net interest income

Net fee income
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Net trading income

Net income from financial instruments
designated at fair value

Gains less losses from financial investments

Net earned insurance premiums

53

Other operating income

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in
liabilities to policyholders

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
provisions

Operating expenses

Overview
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Europe

Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Europe

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment
Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m usS$m US$m uS$m
Profit/(loss) before tax
5,536 2,774 2,936 871 (654) (213) 11,250
2,016 1,570 1,863 883 39 - 6,371
) 3 1,542 185 (262) = 1,461
(1) 19 1,127 21 23 213 1,402
(8) 22 2,669 206 (239) 213 2,863
- - - - (365) - (365)
496 113 (23) - 61 - 647
496 113 (23) - (304) - 282
29 = 460 %) 4 = 486
- 1 16 2 1 - 20
3,800 278 - - (12) - 4,067
165 163 839 7 754 189 2,117
Total operating income/
(expense) 12,034 4,921 8,760 1,962 (410) 189 27,456
(4,364) (342) - - - - (4,706)
Net operating income/
(expense) 7,670 4,579 8,760 1,962 (410) 189 22,750
(1,217) (997) (783) (26) & - (3,020)
Net operating income/
(expense) 6,453 3,582 7,977 1,936 (407) 189 19,730
(5,166) (2,378) (5,265) (1,296) (1,151) (189) (15,445)
Operating profit/(loss) 1,287 1,204 2,712 640 (1,558) - 4,285
2 1 14 - - - 17
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,289 1,205 2,726 640 (1,558) - 4,302
% % % % % %
6.8 6.3 14.3 34 (8.2) 22.6
67.4 51.9 60.1 66.1 (280.7) 67.9
Balance sheet data
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m uUS$m uS$m
145,063 91,744 170,375 27,629 988 435,799
202,431 111,356 965,462 76,631 65,824 (172,177) 1,249,527
168,979 96,597 169,873 56,114 - 491,563
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For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Hong Kong

Hong Kong Economic background

HSBC'’s principal banking subsidiaries in Hong
Kong are The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Hang Seng Bank
Limited. The former is the largest bank
incorporated in Hong Kong and is our flagship
bank in the Asia-Pacific region. It is one of Hong
Kong'’s three note-issuing banks, accounting for
more than 65% by value of banknotes in
circulation in 2010.

2010
US$m

4,246
2,962
1,312
1,682

Review of performance

Net operating income 10,202
(114)

Net operating income 10,088
(4,431)

Operating profit 5,657

35

Profit before tax 5,692
43.4%

29,171

Best Bank in Hong Kong
(Euromoney Awards for Excellence 2010)

Market leadership in mortgages,
cards, life insurance
and deposits

64%
growth in
commercial lending balances

For footnotes, see page 83.
The commentary on Hong Kong is on an underlying basis unless
stated otherwise.
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Profit/(loss) before tax by customer group and global business

2010
uUS$m

2,918
1,352
1,430
227

(235)

5,692

Overview

Net interest income

Net income from financial instruments
designated at fair value
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Hong Kong

Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Hong Kong

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment
Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uS$m
Profit/(loss) before tax
2,604 1,106 915 173 (463) (89) 4,246
1,521 634 630 163 14 - 2,962
197 121 681 120 (12) - 1,107
4 - 100 - 12 89 205
201 121 781 120 - 89 1,312
- - - - @) - @
328 (10) 61 - 1 - 380
328 (10) 61 - 1) - 378
- - 56 1 41 - 98
- 1 12 - 17 - 30
3,655 665 12 - - - 4,332
503 68 166 12 1,140 (283) 1,606
Total operating income 8,812 2,585 2,633 469 748 (283) 14,964
(4,193) (559) (10) - - - (4,762)
Net operating income 4,619 2,026 2,623 469 748 (283) 10,202
(76) (28) (10) - - - (114)
Net operating income 4,543 1,998 2,613 469 748 (283) 10,088
(1,630) (653) (1,187) (242) (1,002) 283 (4,431)
Operating profit/(loss) 2,913 1,345 1,426 227 (254) - 5,657
5 7 4 = 19 = 35
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,918 1,352 1,430 227 (235) = 5,692
% % % % % %
15.3 71 75 1.2 1.2) 29.9
35.3 32.2 45.3 51.6 134.0 43.4
Balance sheet data
uS$m usS$m usS$m US$m US$m uS$m
50,983 48,670 34,491 4,760 1,787 140,691
76,665 55,030 223,492 20,598 62,486 (8,706) 429,565
176,960 71,209 29,388 19,241 686 297,484
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For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Rest of Asia-Pacific

Rest of Asia-Pacific Economic background

We offer a full suite of banking and financial mainland China

services in mainland China, mainly through our
local subsidiary, HSBC Bank (China) Company
Limited. We also participate indirectly in
mainland China through our four associates.

Outside Hong Kong and mainland China,
we conduct business in 22 countries and
territories in the Rest of Asia-Pacific region,
primarily through branches and subsidiaries
of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation, with particularly strong coverage
in Australia, India, Indonesia, Malaysia and
Singapore.

2010
US$m

3,828
1,932
1,618
1,854

Japan’s
Net operating income 9,232

(439)
Net operating income 8,793

(5,143)

Operating profit 3,650
2,252

Profit before tax 5,902
55.7%

91,607

Taiwan
South Korea India

(o)
41 A) Singapore
growth in reported pre-tax profit

Malaysian

Leadership in renminbi
product development

Thailand

Significant and growing presence

in mainland China .
Indonesia

Philippines
Vietnam Australia

For footnotes, see page 83.
The commentary on Rest of Asia-Pacific is on an underlying basis
unless stated otherwise.
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Profit/(loss) before tax by country within customer groups and global businesses

Personal Global Global
Financial Commercial Banking & Private

Services Banking Markets Banking Other Total

us$m us$m uUs$m uUs$m us$m US$m

2010

59 96 95 - 8 258

(82) 71 507 4 179 679

12 94 116 = 3) 219

(76) - 119 1) (6) 36

839 833 683 () 217 2,565

973 746 443 - 188 2,350

(134) 87 240 7 29 215

120 88 194 - (1) 401

126 87 143 84 84 524

2 @ 305 = 50 353

19 36 99 - (7) 147

@ 50 61 = 7 111

54 205 262 1 87 609

1,066 1,556 2,584 81 615 5,902

61
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Rest of Asia-Pacific

Review of performance

Net fee income

Net trading income

Net income from financial instruments
designated at fair value

Net interest income
Gains less losses from financial investments
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Other operating income

Net earned insurance premiums

Net insurance claims incurred
and movement in liabilities to policyholders

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
provisions

63

Operating expenses

Share of profit from associates and joint ventures

Overview
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Rest of Asia-Pacific

Profit before tax and balance sheet data — Rest of Asia-Pacific

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment
Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uS$m
Profit before tax

1,581 938 1,435 91 55 (272) 3,828
668 442 777 55 (120) - 1,932
81 129 966 69 (38) - 1,207
- - 138 - 1 272 411
81 129 1,104 69 37) 272 1,618
- - - - @ - @
41 2 1) - (16) - 26
41 2 @) - (18) - 24
1 3 50 - 92 - 146
- - 1 - - - 1
386 62 - - - - 448
108 86 56 1 1,499 (152) 1,598
Total operating income 2,866 1,662 3,422 216 1,581 (152) 9,595
(324) (39) - - - - (363)
Net operating income 2,542 1,623 3,422 216 1,581 (152) 9,232
(298) (19) (122) - - - (439)
Net operating income 2,244 1,604 3,300 216 1,581 (152) 8,793
(2,164) (799) (1,163) (135) (1,034) 152 (5,143)
Operating profit 80 805 2,137 81 547 - 3,650
986 751 447 - 68 - 2,252
Profit before tax 1,066 1,556 2,584 81 615 = 5,902
% % % % % %
5.6 8.2 13.6 0.4 3.2 31.0
85.1 49.2 34.0 62.5 65.4 55.7

Balance sheet data
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m US$m uS$m
37,831 31,423 35,810 3,489 178 108,731
49,508 41,588 166,960 12,126 19,450 (11,570) 278,062
54,741 36,943 53,752 12,620 99 158,155
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For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Middle East

Middle East Economic background

In the Middle East, the network of branches of

HSBC Bank Middle East Limited, together with

HSBC'’s subsidiaries and associates, gives us

the widest coverage in the region. Our

associate in Saudi Arabia, The Saudi British Saudi Arabia
Bank (40% owned), is the Kingdom'’s fifth

largest bank by total assets.

2010
US$m

1,367
677
370 UAE

4)
Net operating income 2,410

(627)

Net operating income 1,783

(1,078)
705 Saudi Arabia Oman Kuwait

Operating profit
187

Profit before tax 892

44.7%

8,676 Dubai

Underlying pre-tax
profit doubled

Leading provider of
traditional trade services
in the UAE

Egypt,

PFS in the Middle East
returns to profitability

Review of performance

For footnotes, see page 83.
The commentary on the Middle East is on an underlying basis
unless stated otherwise.
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Profit/(loss) before tax by country within customer groups and global businesses

Personal Global Global
Financial Commercial Banking & Private
Services Banking Markets Banking Other Total
uS$m us$m us$m us$m us$m us$m 2
2010 ;
38 82 77 = %) 195 >
19 52 67 - - 138 ©
17 186 121 1 @) 324
19 57 (19) = = 57
93 377 246 1 3) 714
7 107 71 (16) 9 178
100 484 317 (15) 6 892
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Middle East

Net interest income Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
provisions

Net fee income

Operating expenses

Net trading income

Profit from associates and joint ventures

Other operating income
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Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Middle East

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment

Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
ussm ussm UsS$m us$m us$m uss$m ussm

Profit/(loss) before tax
553 473 334 - 14 (7) 1,367
200 258 202 17 - - 677
59 85 205 1 ) - 343
1 7 18 - 6) 7 27
60 92 223 1 (13) 7 370
1 = (©) - @ - (©)
2 1 4 - = - 7
27 (8) (1) 1 40 (67) (8)
Total operating income 843 816 759 19 40 (67) 2,410
Net operating income 843 816 759 19 40 (67) 2,410
(227) (145) (255) = = = (627)
Net operating income 616 671 504 19 40 (67) 1,783
(524) (297) (263) (18) (43) 67 (1,078)
Operating profit/(loss) 92 374 241 1 ®3) - 705
8 110 76 (16) 9 - 187
Profit/(loss) before tax 100 484 317 (15) 6 = 892
% % % % % %
0.5 2.6 1.7 0.2) - 4.7
62.2 36.4 34.7 94.7 107.5 44.7

Balance sheet data

us$m us$m ussm US$m ussm us$m
5,063 12,293 7,247 21 2 24,626
6,244 13,991 31,295 59 4,129 (2,961) 52,757
17,538 10,319 5,306 290 58 33,511

69

Overview

3
.2
>
)
o
©
o
<
@©
=
L
]
(o]
c
=
©
o
®
o
(@)

Governance

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Middle East / North America

Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Middle East (continued)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Balance sheet data

For footnotes, see page 83.
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North America Economic background

Our North American businesses are located in us

the US, Canada and Bermuda. Operations in
the US are primarily conducted through HSBC
Bank USA, N.A., which is concentrated in New
York State, and HSBC Finance, a national
consumer finance company based near
Chicago. HSBC Markets (USA) Inc. is the
intermediate holding company of, inter alia,
HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. HSBC Bank Canada
and HSBC Bank Bermuda operate in their
respective countries.

3
2
2
(<)
>
¢}

2
2
>
9
o
©
K3
2010 S
US$m c
L
12,439 =)
3,664 2
©
0 ]
(@]

Net operating income 17,047

(8,295)

Net operating income 8,752 .
Canadian

(8,322) ©
(&)
Operating profit/(loss) 430 =
(=
24 o
>
Profit/(loss) before tax 454 8

48.8%

33,865

Pre-tax profit for the
first time since 2006 i)
:
Review of performance o
@©
Impairment charges at ‘f_:
lowest levels since 2006 'S
S
=
=
Card and Retail Services
pre-tax profit

US$2.0bn :
©
£
g
5
o
For footnotes, see page 83. i)
The commentary on North America is on an underlying basis g
unless stated otherwise. o
@©
45
n
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > North America

Profit/(loss) before tax by country within customer groups and global businesses

Personal Global Global

Financial Commercial Banking & Private
Services Banking Markets Banking Other Total
ussm uss$m ussm ussm UsS$m ussm

2010

(2,306) 402 1,285 113 (39) (545)
110 505 248 - 4 867
47 32 49 3) 7 132
_ — _ 1 1) _
(2,149) 939 1,582 111 (29) 454

For footnote, see page 83.

Net interest income
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Net fee income

Net trading income

Net expense from financial instruments
designated at fair value

Gains less losses from financial investments

Net earned insurance premiums Net
insurance claims incurred and movement in
liabilities to policyholders

Other operating income

73

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
provisions

Operating expenses
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > North America

Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — North America

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment

Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total
uS$m uS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uS$m

Profit/(loss) before tax
9,912 1,525 952 190 (71) (69) 12,439
2,032 534 955 149 (6) - 3,664
(472) 17 563 13 (12) - 109
24 2 93 - 17 69 205
(448) 19 656 13 5 69 314
- - - - 111 - 111
6 - 2) - (4) - -
6 - ) - 107 - 111
5 (6) 141 - 3] - 143
18 7 12 3 2 - 42
245 - - - - - 245
(243) 242 64 15 2,351 (2,196) 233
Total operating income 11,527 2,321 2,778 370 2,391 (2,196) 17,191
(148) - - - 4 - (144)
Net operating income 11,379 2,321 2,778 370 2,395 (2,196) 17,047
(8,194) (323) 184 38 - - (8,295)
Net operating income 3,185 1,998 2,962 408 2,395 (2,196) 8,752
(5,338) (1,081) (1,380) (297) (2,422) 2,196 (8,322)
Operating profit/(loss) (2,153) 917 1,582 111 27) - 430
4 22 - - (2) - 24
Profit/(loss) before tax (2,149) 939 1,582 111 (29) - 454
% % % % % %
(11.3) 5.0 8.3 0.6 0.2) 2.4
46.9 46.6 49.7 80.3 101.1 48.8

Balance sheet data

uS$m usS$m usS$m US$m usS$m uS$m
131,194 30,277 24,338 4,723 - 190,532
154,086 39,213 306,416 5,824 9,373 (22,425) 492,487
76,817 46,425 22,324 12,812 108 158,486
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MBINIBAQ

Profit/(loss) before tax

MBIABY |eloueul{ ¥ BuneiadQ

20UBUIBAOD)

SlUaWBIL]S [eloURUIS

Balance sheet data

uoiewJou| Japjoyaieys

For footnotes, see page 83.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Latin America

Latin America Economic background
Our operations in Latin America principally Brazilian
comprise HSBC Bank Brasil S.A.-Banco
Multiplo, HSBC México, S.A., HSBC Bank
Argentina S.A. and HSBC Bank (Panama) S.A.
In addition to banking services, we operate
insurance businesses in Brazil, Mexico,
Argentina, Panama and a range of smaller
markets.
2010
uUS$m
6,311
1,749
733
938
Net operating income 9,731
(1,544) Mexico’s
Net operating income 8,187
(6,394)
Operating profit 1,793
2
Profit before tax 1,795
65.7%
56,044

Higher pre-tax profits
driven by an improvement Argentina
in credit quality

Record pre-tax profits
in Brazil of over

US$1bn

Review of performance

New sales desks established
to promote trade with
mainland China

For footnotes, see page 83.
The commentary on Latin America is on an underlying basis
unless stated otherwise.
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Profit/(loss) before tax by country within customer groups and global businesses

Personal Global Global
Financial Commercial Banking & Private

Services Banking Markets Banking Other Total

us$m us$m uUs$m us$m US$m uUs$m

2010

88 90 106 - - 284

93 382 488 6 64 1,033

165 24 219 4 (11) 401

48 57 33 2 - 140

(100) 1 51 2 (13) (63)

294 554 897 10 40 1,795
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Latin America

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in
liabilities to policyholders

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk
Fee income provisions

Net trading income

Net income on financial instruments designated
at fair value

Operating expenses

Gains less losses from financial investments

Net earned insurance premiums
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Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Latin America

2010
Personal Global Global Inter-
Financial Commercial Banking & Private segment
Services Banking Markets Banking Other elimination Total =
uUS$m US$m uUS$m US$m US$m US$m uUS$m .g
Profit/(loss) before tax §
3,975 1,671 776 20 121 (252) 6,311 =
899 526 298 32 (6) - 1,749
35 72 370 3 (27) - 453
- - 28 - - 252 280 3
35 72 398 3 (27) 252 733 -05)
<
©
- - - - - - - 'S
c
©
IS
L
339 85 1 - - - 425 &
o
=
339 85 1 - - - 425 ©
©
Q
6 2 93 - ®3) - 98 (@)
7 2 3 - - - 12
1,651 374 29 - - - 2,054
90 34 23 2 221 (229) 141
Total operating income 7,002 2,766 1,621 57 306 (229) 11,523
(1,479) (297) (16) = = = (1,792) ot
=
Net operating income 5,523 2,469 1,605 57 306 (229) 9,731 =
(1,247) (293) (4) - = - (1,544) 8
Net operating income 4,276 2,176 1,601 57 306 (229) 8,187
(3,983) (1,623) (704) (47) (266) 229 (6,394)
Operating profit 293 553 897 10 40 - 1,793
1 1 - - - - 2
Profit before tax 294 554 897 10 40 — 1,795 D
5
% % % % % % £
T
15 2.9 4.7 0.1 0.2 9.4 o
72.1 65.7 43.9 82.5 86.9 65.7 =
K3
Balance sheet data =
ussm ussm US$m ussm US$m ussm =
20,823 24,879 12,242 43 - 57,987
38,764 35,619 64,690 1,608 196 (939) 139,938
30,149 24,514 27,810 6,053 - 88,526
=
.0
©
£
2
=
o
S
o
=
o
@©
45
@)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Geographical regions > Latin America // Other information > FUM and assets in custody / Property

Profit/(loss) before tax and balance sheet data — Latin America (continued)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Balance sheet data

For footnotes, see page 83.
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Other information

Funds under management and assets held in

custody
Funds under management E
>
2010 g
US$bn . (@)
Funds under management Assets held in custody and under
857 administration
42
33
@)
925 2
2
>
(&)
e
©
2010 g
Uss$bn ©
Funds under management by UE_
business =]
439 et
277 =
8 o
206 g
o
925

Property

©
o
c
©
c
=
[
>
o
O
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Other information > Legal proceedings/ Foreclosures / Data security / Footnotes to Overview and OFR

Legal proceedings, investigations and
regulatory matters

Jaffe v Household International Inc,
etal
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Data security
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Financial highlights

Financial Statements

Dividends recorded in the financial statements are dividends per ordinary share declared in a year and are not dividends in respect of,
or for, that year. The third interim dividend for 2009 of US$0.08 was paid on 13 January 2010. The fourth interim dividend for 2009 of
US30.10 was paid on 5 May 2010. First, second and third interim dividends for 2010, each of US$0.08 per ordinary share, were paid
on 7 July 2010, 6 October 2010 and 12 January 2011, respectively. Note 11 on the Financial Statements provides more information on
the dividends declared in 2010. On 28 February 2011 the Directors declared a fourth interim dividend for 2010 of US$0.12 per
ordinary share in lieu of a final dividend, which will be payable to ordinary shareholders on 5 May 2011 in cash in US dollars, or in
pounds sterling or Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates to be determined on 27 April 2011, with a scrip dividend alternative. The
reserves available for distribution at 31 December 2010 were US$36,013m.

Quarterly dividends of US815.50 per 6.2% non-cumulative Series A US dollar preference share, equivalent to a dividend of US$0.3875
per Series A ADS, each of which represents one-fortieth of a Series A US dollar preference share, were paid on 15 March 2010, 15 June
2010, 15 September 2010 and 15 December 2010.

Quarterly coupons of US$0.508 per security were paid with respect to 8.125% capital securities on 15 January 2010, 15 April 2010,

15 July 2010 and 15 October 2010.

Quarterly coupons of US$0.45 and US30.50 per security were paid with respect to 8% capital securities on 15 September 2010 and on
15 December 2010, respectively.

Return on invested capital is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders. Average invested capital is measured as average

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Other information > Footnotes to Overview and OFR

total shareholders’ equity after adding back goodwill previously written-off directly to reserves, deducting average equity preference
shares issued by HSBC Holdings and deducting/(adding) average reserves for unrealised gains/(losses) on effective cash flow hedges
and available-for-sale securities. This measure reflects capital initially invested and subsequent profit.

The return on average total shareholders’ equity is defined as profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company divided by
average total shareholders’ equity.

The cost efficiency ratio is defined as total operating expenses divided by net operating income before loan impairment charges and
other credit risk provisions.

Each ADS represents five ordinary shares.

Total shareholder return is defined as the growth in share value and declared dividend income during the relevant period.

The Financial Times Stock Exchange 100 Index, the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index and the Morgan Stanley Capital
International World Bank Index.

HBEU is HSBC Bank plc; HBAP is The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation; and HBUS is HSBC Bank USA. Figures
provided for HSBC Bank plc and The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation incorporate the major overseas branches of these
entities. Subsidiaries of these entities are not included unless there is unrestricted transferability of liquidity between the subsidiaries
and the parent.

This comprises our other main banking subsidiaries and, as such, includes businesses spread across a range of locations, in many of
which we may require a higher ratio of net liquid assets to customer liabilities to reflect local market conditions.

Reconciliations of reported and underlying profit/(loss) before tax

These columns comprise the net increments or decrements in profits in the current year compared with the previous year which are
attributable to acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and/or movements in fair value of own debt attributable to credit spread. The
inclusion of acquisitions and disposals is determined in the light of events each year.

‘Currency translation’is the effect of translating the results of subsidiaries and associates for the previous year at the average rates of
exchange applicable in the current year:

Excluding adjustments in 2009.

Positive numbers are favourable: negative numbers are unfavourable.

Changes in fair value due to movements in own credit spread on long-term debt issued. This does not include the fair value changes due
to own credit spread on structured notes issued and other hybrid instruments included within trading liabilities.

Net operating income before loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions.

Excluding adjustments in 2008.

Financial summary

In 2008 an impairment charge of US$10,564m to fully write off goodwill in PFS in North America was reported in total operating
expenses. This amount is excluded from total operating expenses in calculating the ratio.

The effect of the bonus element of the rights issue in 2009 has been included within the basic and diluted earnings per share.
Dividends per ordinary share expressed as a percentage of earnings per ordinary share.

Net interest income includes the cost of funding trading assets, while the related external revenues are reported in trading income. In
our customer group results, the cost of funding trading assets is included with GB&M S net trading income as interest expense.

Gross interest yield is the average annualised interest rate earned on average interest-earning assets (‘AIEA’).

Net interest spread is the difference between the average annualised interest rate earned on AIEA, net of amortised premiums and loan
fees, and the average annualised interest rate paid on average interest-bearing funds.

Net interest margin is net interest income expressed as an annualised percentage of AIEA.

Other interest-earning assets includes intercompany eliminations.

Interest income on trading assets is reported as ‘Net trading income’in the consolidated income statement.

Interest income on financial assets designated at fair value is reported as ‘Net income from financial instruments designated at fair
value’in the consolidated income statement.

This includes interest-bearing bank deposits only.

Interest expense on financial liabilities designated at fair value is reported as ‘Net income on financial instruments designated at fair
value’in the consolidated income statement, other than interest on own debt which is reported in ‘Interest Expense’.

This includes interest-bearing customer accounts only.

The cost of internal funding of trading assets was US$902m (2009: US$1,309m; 2008: US$5,547m) and is excluded from the reported
‘Net trading income’ line and included in ‘Net interest income’. However, this cost is reinstated in ‘Net trading income’in HSBC's
customer group and global business reporting.

Net trading income includes income of US$23m (2009: expense of US$444m; 2008: income of US$529m), associated with changes in
the fair value of issued structured notes and other hybrid instrument liabilities derived from movements in HSBC issuance spreads.
Other changes in fair value include gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with HSBC's long-term debt issued.

Discretionary participation features.

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in liabilities to policyholders arise from both life and non-life insurance business. For
non-life business, amounts reported represent the cost of claims paid during the year and the estimated cost of notified claims. For life
business, the main element of claims is the liability to policyholders created on the initial underwriting of the policy and any subsequent
movement in the liability that arises, primarily from the attribution of investment performance to savings-related policies. Consequently,
claims rise in line with increases in sales of savings-related business and with investment market growth.

Consolidated balance sheet

Net of impairment allowances.

The calculation of capital resources, capital ratios and risk-weighted assets for 2008 to 2010 is on a Basel II basis. 2006 and 2007
comparatives are on a Basel I basis.

Capital resources are total regulatory capital, the calculation of which is set out on page 180.

Includes perpetual preferred securities, details of which can be found in Note 34 on the Financial Statements.
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The definition of net asset value per share is total shareholders’ equity, less non-cumulative preference shares and capital securities,
divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue.

‘Currency translation’is the effect of translating the assets and liabilities of subsidiaries and associates for the previous year-end at the
rates of exchange applicable at the current year-end.

Economic profit

Expressed as a percentage of average invested capital.

Average invested capital is measured as average total shareholders’ equity after:

— adding back the average balance of goodwill amortised pre-transition to IFRSs or subsequently written-off, directly to reserves (less
goodwill previously amortised in respect of the French regional banks sold in 2008);

— deducting the average balance of HSBC's revaluation surplus relating to property held for own use. This reserve was generated when
determining the deemed carrying cost of such properties on transition to IFRSs and will run down over time as the
properties are sold;

— deducting average preference shares and other equity instruments issued by HSBC Holdings, and

— deducting average reserves for unrealised gains/(losses) on effective cash flow hedges and available-for-sale securities.

Return on invested capital is profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company, which can be found in Note 12 on the

Financial Statements on page 296.

Overview

Customer groups and global businesses and Geographical regions

The main items reported under ‘Other’ are certain property activities, unallocated investment activities, centrally held investment
companies, gains arising from the dilution of interests in associates, movements in the fair value of own debt designated at fair value
(the remainder of the Group s gain on own debt is included in GB&M) and HSBC's holding company and financing operations. The
results also include net interest earned on free capital held centrally, operating costs incurred by the head office operations in providing
stewardship and central management services to HSBC, and costs incurred by the Group Service Centres and Shared Service
Organisations and associated recoveries. At 31 December 2010, there was a US$188m gain arising from the dilution of interests in
associates (2009: nil; 2008: nil) and adverse fair value movements on HSBC's own debt designated at fair value were US30.1bn (2009:
US$6.5bn adverse; 2008: US$6.6bn favourable).

Assets by geographical region and customer group include intra-HSBC items. These items are eliminated, where appropriate, under the
heading ‘Intra-HSBC items’.

Net operating income before loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions.

Loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions.

Share of profit in associates and joint ventures.

In the analyses of customer groups and global businesses, net trading income comprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair
value of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for trading, together with related external and internal interest
income and interest expense, and dividends received, in the statutory presentation internal interest income and expense are eliminated.
In 2010, Global Markets included a favourable fair value movement of US$23m on the widening of credit spreads on structured
liabilities (2009: adverse fair value movement of US$444m; 2008: favourable fair value movement of US$529m).

Total income earned on securities services products in the Group amounted to US$1.5bn (2009: US$1.4bn; 2008: US$2.2bn), of which
US$1.5bn was in GB&M (2009: US$1.4bn; 2008: US$2.1bn) and US$29m was in CMB (2009.: US$19m; 2008: US$45m).

Total income earned on payments and cash management products in the Group amounted to US$4.4bn (2009: US$4.1bn; 2008:
US8$5.8bn), of which US$3.3bn was in CMB (2009: US$3.1bn; 2008: US$4.1bn) and US$1.1bn was in GB&M (2009: US$1.1bn; 2008:
US$1.7bn).

Total income earned on other transaction services in the Group amounted to US$2.3bn (2009: US$1.8bn, 2008: US$1.8bn), of which
US$1.6bn was in CMB relating to trade and supply chain (2009: US$1.3bn; 2008: US$1.3bn) and US$636m was in GB&M of which
US3523m related to trade and supply chain (2009: US$382m; 2008: US$355m) and US$113m related to banknotes and other (2009:
US$125m; 2008: US$126m).

In each Group entity, Balance Sheet Management is responsible for managing liquidity and funding under the supervision of the local
ALCO. Balance Sheet Management also manages the structural interest rate position of the entity within a Global Markets limit
structure.

‘Other’ in GB&M includes net interest earned on firee capital held in the global business not assigned to products.

Inter-segment elimination comprises (i) the costs of shared services and Group Service Centres included within ‘Other’ which are
recovered from customer groups, and (ii) the intra-segment funding costs of trading activities undertaken within GB&M. HSBC's
Balance Sheet Management business, reported within GB&M, provides funding to the trading businesses. To report GB&M's ‘Net
trading income’on a fully funded basis, ‘Net interest income’and ‘Net interest income/(expense) on trading activities’ are grossed up to
reflect internal funding transactions prior to their elimination in the inter-segment column.

Net insurance claims incurred and movement in liabilities to policyholders.

‘Employee expenses’ comprises costs directly incurred by each customer group. The reallocation and recharging of employee and other
expenses directly incurred in the ‘Other’ customer group is shown in ‘Other operating expenses’.

RWAs are non-additive across geographical regions due to market risk diversification effects within the Group.

France primarily comprises the domestic operations of HSBC France, HSBC Assurances Vie and the Paris branch of HSBC Bank plc.
Hong Kong Government certificates of indebtedness were reclassified from PFS to ‘Other’at 1 January 2010.

US includes the impairment of goodwill in respect of PF'S — North America.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk profile / Managing risk / Risk governance

Risk Risk Profile
(Unaudited)
Page
86 Managing our risk profile
87 °
Capital and liquidity 87
87
Scenario stress testing 88 °
88
Business operations, governance and control 88
Macro-economic and geopolitical 89
Macro-prudential and regulatory 90 ¢
93
Credit risk management 93
Credit exposure 95
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Credit quality of financial instruments 114 strong |IQU|d|ty position
Impairment charge 124
HSBC Holdings 127 ¢
Securitisation exposures and other structured °
products 128
140
Policies and procedures 140 .
Primary sources of funding 141
The management of liquidity risk 142
Contingent liquidity risk 143 Strong governance
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145 ¢
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Sensitivity analysis 145 .
Trading and non-trading portfolios 146
Structural foreign exchange exposures 149
Sensitivity of net interest income 149 °
Defined benefit pension schemes 151
HSBC Holdings 152
154 ¢
Legal risk 154
Compliance risk 155
Group security and fraud risk 155
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Insurance risk 157 °
Financial risks 161
Present value of in-force long-term insurance
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172
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Residual value risk 174
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Managing risk
(Unaudited)

Overview

Capital and liquidity
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Challenges and uncertainties > Business operations / Macro-economic and geopolitical

Scenario stress testing

We are subject to legal and compliance risks,
which could have an adverse effect on the
Group

Challenges and uncertainties
(Unaudited)

We are subject to tax-related risks in the
countries in which we operate

Business operations, governance and
control

Operational risks are inherent in our
business

Liquidity and funding risks are inherent in
our business

88



Macro-economic and geopolitical

Prevailing economic and market conditions
may adversely affect our results

89

We are subject to political and economic
risks in the countries in which we operate

Overview
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Challenges and uncertainties > Macro-prudential and regulatory

We have significant exposure to
counterparty risk within our portfolio

Macro-prudential and regulatory

We face a number of challenges in
regulation and supervision

Measures proposed by the Basel Committee to
increase resilience in the financial system

®  Risk weightings:
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e  Quality of capital:

Overview

o Minimum ratios:

Other measures

®  Remuneration:
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Challenges and uncertainties > Macro-prudential and regulatory // Credit risk > Credit risk management

e The UK Independent Commission on Banking:

o The ‘Volcker Rule’:

®  Recovery and resolution plans:

e Derivatives and central counterparties
regulation:

Restructuring of regulatory bodies

e Markets in financial instruments:
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€ Inthe EU, new authorities for segments of the
financial services sector took up their powers
with effect from 1 January 2011: the European
Banking Authority, the European Securities
Markets Authority and the European Insurance
and Occupational Pension Authority. In
addition, a European Systemic Risk Board will
consider emerging macro-prudential risks.

€ Inthe UK, the Financial Services Authority’s
("FSA’) prudential supervisory responsibilities
will be transferred in 2012 to a Bank of England
agency, the Prudential Regulatory Authority,
while the Financial Conduct Authority will act
asasingle regulator of conduct of business for
both retail and wholesale firms.

€ IntheUS, the Dodd-Frank Act re-assigns
responsibilities of existing agencies, demising
the Office of Thrift Supervision and creating
others, including a Financial Stability Oversight
Council to address systemic matters and a
Bureau of Consumer Protection.

Implementation risks

The extensive programme of regulatory change
carries significant implementation risks for
authorities and industry participants aike, including:

€ Disparities in implementatiormany officia
measures are proposals in development and
negotiation, and have yet to be enacted into
regional and national legislation. These
processes could result in differing, fragmented
and overlapping implementation around the
world, leading to risks of regulatory arbitrage, a
far from level competitive playing-field and
increased compliance costs, especialy for large,
global financial institutions such as HSBC.

€ Timetable and market expectatiomgile the
Basel Committee has announced the timetable
for its core proposalsin Basdl 111, it remains
uncertain how these and other measures will
play out in practice, for instance with regard to
differencesin approach between Basel 111 and
the Dodd-Frank Act in the US. Meanwhile,
market expectations will exert pressure on
institutions to assess and effect compliance well
in advance of official timetables.

€ Wider economic impact and unforeseen
consequencesvhile the conclusions of officia
and industry studies have diverged, the
measures proposed will clearly impact on
financial and economic activity in ways that
cannot yet be clearly foreseen. For example,
higher capital requirements may seriously

constrain the availability of funds for lending to
support economic recovery.

Credit risk

Credit risk management
(Audited)

Credit risk isthe risk of financial lossif a customer
or counterparty fails to meet a payment obligation
under a contract. It arises principally from direct
lending, trade finance and leasing business, but also
from off-balance sheet products such as counterparty
risk guarantees and credit derivatives, and from our
holdings of debt securities. Of the risks in which we
engage, credit risk generates the largest regulatory
capital requirement.

Principal objectives of our credit risk management

€ to maintain across HSBC astrong culture of responsible
lending and arobust risk policy and control framework;

€ to both partner and challenge our businesses in defining,
implementing and continually re-evaluating our risk appetite
under actual and scenario conditions; and

€ to ensure there is independent, expert scrutiny of credit
risks, their costs and their mitigation.

The Credit Risk department fulfils the role of an
independent credit control unit as part of the Global
Risk function in our Group Management Office
(‘GMQ’). Credit approval authorities are delegated
by the Board to the most senior Chief Executive
Officers, who receive commensurate authorities
from their own boards. In each major subsidiary, a
Chief Risk Officer reports to the local Chief
Executive Officer on credit-related issues, while
maintaining a direct functional reporting line to the
Group Chief Risk Officer in GMO.

Credit quality
(Audited)

Our credit risk rating systems and processes
differentiate exposures in order to highlight those
with greater risk factors and higher potential severity
of loss. In the case of individualy significant
accounts, risk ratings are reviewed regularly and any
amendments are implemented promptly. Within our
retail businesses, risk is assessed and managed using
awide range of risk and pricing models to generate
portfolio data.

Our risk rating system facilitates the internal
ratings-based (‘IRB’) approach under Basel 11
adopted by the Group to support calculation of our
minimum credit regulatory capital requirement.
For further details, see ‘ Credit quality of financia
instruments' on page 114.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit risk management / Credit exposure

Impairment assessment
(Audited)

The high-level oversight and management of credit risk
provided globally by the Credit Risk function within GMO

Write-off of loans and advances
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Cross-border exposures

Overview

. Loss experience: percentage of total loan
impairment charges and other credit risk provisions
(Unaudited)

2010
US$14,039m
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GB&M GB&M Other
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0
13% cmB

12%
Credit exposure

PFS PFS
Maximum exposure to credit risk 80% 75%
(Audited)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit exposure

Maximum exposure to credit risk

(Audited)

At 31 December 2010
Exposure
Maximum to credit
exposure Offset risk (net)
US$m US$m US$m
57,383 - 57,383
6,072 - 6,072
19,057 - 19,057
343,966 (4,189) 339,777
25,620 - 25,620
168,268 - 168,268
70,456 - 70,456
79,622 (4,189) 75,433
19,593 - 19,593
159 - 159
18,248 - 18,248
315 - 3115
871 - 871
260,757 (197,501) 63,256
1,166,637 (91,966) 1,074,671
208,271 (3,099) 205,172
958,366 (88,867) 869,499
392,772 - 392,772
57,129 - 57,129
335,643 - 335,643
30,371 (29) 30,342
10,116 (29) 10,087
20,255 - 20,255
49,436 = 49,436
602,513 - 602,513

2,948,557 (293,685) 2,654,872

For footnote, see page 174.

Collateral and other credit enhancements °
(Audited)

Loans and advances
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Concentration of exposure
(Audited)

Derivatives

Overview
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)
Risk > Credit risk > Credit exposure

Derivatives
(Unaudited)

Loans and advances
(Unaudited)

Summary of gross loans and advances to customers

(Unaudited)
(US$bn)
500 - 425 434 446 2010 2009
Reported basis
400 -
300 -
200 -
102 97
100
m -
0+ T T
Personal Corporate and Financial ABSs
commercial reclassified
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Gross loans and advances by industry sector
(Audited)

Currency Move-
2010 effect ment
US$m US$m US$m
425,320 (2,026) (6,860)
268,681 (1,707) 9,719
156,639 (319) (16,579)
445,512 (5,297) 67,719
237,694 (2,948) 44,514
71,880 (773) 3,264
34,838 222 4,096
8,594 (14) 1,919
92,506 (1,784) 13,926
101,725 (3,540) 8,615
100,163 (3,544) 8,470
1,562 4 145
5,892 (319) (1,616)
978,449 (11,182) 67,858
208,429 (8) 28,549
1,186,878 (11,190) 96,407
28,091 (254) (2,261)
2.9%
20,083 (75) (5,384)
2.1%
13,548 321 (11,715)
14,568 353 (11,617)
(1,020) (32 (98)

For footnotes, see page 174.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit exposure

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector and by geographical region

(Audited)

Gross loans and advances to customers

Rest of As a %
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin of total
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total gross loans
usS$m uS$m US$m uS$m US$m usS$m uS$m %
At 31 December 2010
161,717 57,308 40,184 5371 139,117 21,623 425,320 43.4
111,618 42,488 28,724 1,751 78,842 5,258 268,681 27.4
50,099 14,820 11,460 3,620 60,275 16,365 156,639 16.0
203,804 80,823 67,247 19,560 38,707 35,371 445,512 45.6
111,980 33,451 41,274 11,173 16,737 23,079 237,694 24.3
30,629 19,678 8,732 1,085 8,768 2,988 71,880 7.3
6,401 15,232 5,426 1,785 5,109 885 34,838 3.6
2,289 2,339 415 1,345 89 2,117 8,594 0.9
52,505 10,123 11,400 4,172 8,004 6,302 92,506 9.5
70,725 3,189 2,259 1,347 21,202 3,003 101,725 10.4
70,019 2,824 2,058 1,335 21,109 2,818 100,163 10.2
706 365 201 12 93 185 1,562 0.2
5,216 - - - 676 - 5,892 0.6
441,462 141,320 109,690 26,278 199,702 59,997 978,449 100.0
45.2% 14.4% 11.2% 2.7% 20.4% 6.1% 100.0%
10,557 660 1,324 2,433 10,727 2,390 28,091
2.4% 0.5% 1.2% 9.3% 5.4% 4.0% 2.9%
5,663 629 959 1,652 9,170 2,010 20,083
1.3% 0.4% 0.9% 6.3% 4.6% 3.4% 2.1%

For footnotes, see page 174.
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Loans and advances to banks by geographical region
(Audited)

Rest of Loans and Impair-
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin  advances ment
Europe Kong Pacific East America America  to banks allowances
UsS$m ussm us$m uss$m us$m UsS$m ussm ussm
At 31 December 2010 78,239 33,585 40,437 9,335 19,479 27,354 208,429 (158)
Gross loans and advances to customers by country
(Audited)
Commercial,
Residential Other Property- international
mortgages personal related trade and other Total
ussm us$m uss$m us$m Us$m
At 31 December 2010
Europe 111,618 50,099 37,030 242,715 441,462
103,037 25,636 26,002 165,283 319,958
3,749 9,550 8,737 56,613 78,649
11 356 79 4,015 4,461
1,656 599 563 1,643 4,461
1,358 10,708 114 1,837 14,017
809 2,817 210 2,783 6,619
998 433 1,325 10,541 13,297
Hong Kong 42,488 14,820 34,910 49,102 141,320
Rest of Asia-Pacific 28,724 11,460 14,158 55,348 109,690
8,405 1,267 2,346 4,867 16,885
920 526 680 4,583 6,709
74 531 115 3,374 4,094
226 199 1,214 2,503 4,142
2,046 310 3,836 12,932 19,124
3,833 2,053 1,361 4,845 12,092
6,571 3,661 3,262 7,846 21,340
2,295 248 58 2,494 5,095
3,002 527 135 2,832 6,496
35 162 59 1,255 1,511
1,317 1,976 1,092 7,817 12,202
Middle East 1,751 3,620 2,870 18,037 26,278
3 396 111 2,484 2,994
8 491 404 918 1,821
1,477 2,099 1,359 11,043 15,978
263 634 996 3,592 5,485
North America 78,842 60,275 13,877 46,708 199,702
57,630 51,686 8,269 31,496 149,081
19,505 8,070 5,079 14,711 47,365
1,707 519 529 501 3,256
Latin America 5,258 16,365 3,873 34,501 59,997
30 918 103 2,172 3,223
1,111 10,979 1,816 17,093 30,999
2,097 2,365 1,146 8,622 14,230
1,155 982 489 3,794 6,420
865 1,121 319 2,820 5,125
268,681 156,639 106,718 446,411 978,449
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit exposure / Areas of special interest > Wholesale lending

Gross loans and advances to customers by country (continued)

Country distribution of outstandings and

cross-border exposures
(Unaudited)
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In-country foreign currency and cross-border amounts outstanding

(Unaudited)
Government
and official
Banks institutions Other Total 2
USsbn Ussbn US$bn US$bn o
At 31 December 2010 e
27.6 6.3 51.6 85.5 2
13.6 376 17.6 68.8 o
23.8 11.1 11.2 46.1
15.4 1.6 17.2 34.2
21.5 12 9.1 31.8
14.0 16.2 1.3 315
17.8 4.2 9.4 314
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For footnote, see page 174.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > Wholesale lending

Exposures to selected eurozone countries

(Unaudited)
At 31 December 2010
Not held for trading Held for trading
Cash and Net debt
lending to Financial Total  securities Total
banks investments balances  and loans Derivatives balances Total
US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn
Belgium
0.2 0.7 0.9 0.6 - 0.6 15
5.8 0.3 6.1 1.5 1.2 2.7 8.8
6.0 1.0 7.0 2.1 1.2 3.3 10.3
Greece
- 0.3 0.3 0.8 - 0.8 1.1
- - - 0.6 - 0.6 0.6
- 0.3 0.3 1.4 - 1.4 1.7
Ireland
- 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4
0.2 0.5 0.7 1.1 0.4 1.5 2.2
0.2 0.7 0.9 1.2 0.5 1.7 2.6
Italy
- 1.7 1.7 1.8 - 1.8 35
1.9 0.4 2.3 0.2 - 0.2 2.5
1.9 2.1 4.0 2.0 - 2.0 6.0
Portugal
- 0.1 0.1 - - - 0.1
0.3 0.1 0.4 0.1 - 0.1 0.5
0.3 0.2 0.5 0.1 - 0.1 0.6
Spain
0.1 0.9 1.0 0.7 0.1 0.8 1.8
0.8 0.2 1.0 14 - 1.4 2.4
0.9 1.1 2.0 2.1 0.1 2.2 4.2
Total
0.3 3.9 4.2 4.0 0.2 4.2 8.4
9.0 1.5 10.5 4.9 1.6 6.5 17.0
9.3 5.4 14.7 8.9 1.8 10.7 25.4

For footnotes, see page 174.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > Personal lending

Personal lending
(Unaudited)

In PFS, total loan impairment charges and
other credit risk provisions were 44% down
on 2009.
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Total personal lending
(Unaudited)

Rest of
Rest of North Other
UK Europe us America regions Total
uS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uS$m
At 31 December 2010
103,037 8,581 57,630 21,212 78,221 268,681
25,636 24,463 51,686 8,589 46,265 156,639
- 35 72 55) 5,886 6,048
11,612 1,916 33,744 1,334 13,778 62,384
846 2 9,322 578 422 11,170
13,178 22,510 8,548 6,622 26,179 77,037
128,673 33,044 109,316 29,801 124,486 425,320
Impairment allowances
(275) (58) (3,592) (25) (297) (4,247)
(1,348) (467) (4,436) (179) (1,616) (8,046)
- 5) - - (244) (249)
(506) (216) (2,256) (62) (483) (3,523)
(58) - (889) (19) - (966)
(784) (246) (1,291) (98) (889) (3,308)
(1,623) (525) (8,028) (204) (1,913) (12,293)
1.3% 1.6% 7.3% 0.7% 1.5% 2.9%

For footnotes, see page 174.

Mortgage lending
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > Personal lending

UK mortgage lending
Mortgage lending in the UK rose by 7% to
US$104bn, while in the US balances
declined by 14% to US$67bn.

US mortgage lending
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Mortgage lending products
(Unaudited)

At 31 December 2010

For footnotes, see page 174.

Rest of
Rest of North Other

UK Europe us America regions Total
US$m US$m uUS$m uS$m uUS$m usS$m
103,037 8,581 57,630 21,212 78,221 268,681
846 2 9,322 578 422 11,170
103,883 8,583 66,952 21,790 78,643 279,851
0.8% 0.0% 13.9% 2.7% 0.5% 4.0%
(275) (58) (3,592) (25) (297) (4,247)
(58) - (889) (19) - (966)
(333) (58) (4,481) (44) (297) (5,213)
45,039 51 - 908 1,282 47,280
1,089 326 18,494 274 7,855 28,038
102 - - - 183 285
46,230 377 18,494 1,182 9,320 75,603
44.5% 4.4% 27.6% 5.4% 11.9% 27.0%
2,436 - 15,199 103 291 18,029
5,802 263 10,460 1,698 1,348 19,571
8,238 263 25,659 1,801 1,639 37,600
7.9% 3.1% 38.3% 8.3% 2.1% 13.4%
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > US personal lending

HSBC Finance US mortgage lending

(Unaudited)
At 31 December 2010

Other

Mortgage Consumer  mortgage
Services Lending lending Total
UsS$m UsS$m UsS$m ussm
11,447 31,759 87 43,293
6,122 1,517 2 7,641
5,042 1,517 2 6,561
1,080 - - 1,080
17,569 33,276 89 50,934
15,300 29,950 66 45,316
2,269 3,326 23 5,618
17,569 33,276 89 50,934
2,905 - - 2,905
5,161 8,910 - 14,071
1,837 2,474 - 4,311
10.5% 7.4% - 8.5%

For footnotes, see page 174.

US personal lending
(Unaudited)

Credit quality

HSBC Finance: geographical concentration of US lending

(Unaudited)
Mortgage lending Other personal lending
as a percentage of: as a percentage of:
total total other  percentage
total mortgage total personal of total
lending lending lending lending lending
% % % % %
6 10 4 10 10
4 7 3 7 7
4 6 2 5 6
3 6 2 5 6
2 4 3 7 5
3 6 2 5 5

For footnotes, see page 174.
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Mortgage lending

Stated-income mortgages

Overview

mortgage portfolios

affordability mortgages
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > US personal lending / Forbearance strategies

HSBC Finance foreclosed properties in the US

(Unaudited)

For footnotes, see page 174.

Credit cards

Loan delinquency

2010
10,940

20,489
9%
51%
161

Quarter ended

31 Dec 30 Sep
2010 2010
10,940 9,798
5,763 5,413
15% 10%
54% 52%
165 158
Motor vehicle finance
Other personal lending

Trends in two months and over contractual delinquency in the US

(Unaudited)

30 Jun
2010

8,394

5,096
4%
49%
156

31 Mar
2010

6,961

4,217
4%
49%
170

31 Dec 30 Sep 30 Jun 31 Mar

2010 2010 2010 2010

US$m US$m US$m US$m
In Personal Financial
Services in the US

8,632 8,885 8,591 8,960

847 907 930 1,011

- - 152 194

957 1,066 1,201 1,511

404 445 478 510

811 953 987 1,194

11,651 12,256 12,339 13,380

% % % %

15.00 14.97 14.02 14.12

9.10 9.23 8.98 9.17

- - 3.59 3.96

4.69 5.23 5.65 6.84

3.03 3.56 3.80 3.78

9.49 10.15 9.60 10.75

10.67 10.99 10.28 10.61
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31 Dec 30 Sep 30 Jun 31 Mar
2010 2010 2010 2010

2
Mortgage Services UsS$m UsS$m US$m US$m 9
and Consumer %
Lending >
3,002 3,117 3,067 3,236 o
2,757 2,850 2,788 2,928
245 267 279 308
5,284 5,495 5,278 5,493
4,861 5,022 4,795 4,970
423 473 483 523 3
)
% % % % E
o
18.02 17.73 16.50 16.38 =
10.80 10.93 10.63 10.87 S
17.09 16.83 15.71 15.62 g
=
16.23 16.16 14.85 14.79 °g)
12.72 13.16 12.44 12.25 £
15.88 15.85 14.59 14.51 ‘é
o
For footnotes, see page 174. OQ'

Forbearance strategies and renegotiated
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Areas of special interest > Forbearance strategies / Collateral // Credit quality > Financial instruments

HSBC Finance loan modifications and re-ageing

(Unaudited)

Risk rating scales

Credit quality classification

(Unaudited)

Quality
classification

For footnotes, see page 174.

Debt securities

Collateral and other credit enhancements

obtained
(Audited)

Nature of assets

2010

US$m

2,052

61
119

2,232

Credit quality of financial instruments

(Audited)

Wholesale lending

and other bills and derivatives Retail lending
External Internal Probability of Internal Expected
credit rating credit rating default % credit rating loss %
A-and above CRR1 to CRR2 0-0.169 EL1to EL2 0-0.999
BBB+ to BBB- CRR3 0.170 - 0.740 EL3 1.000 — 4.999

BB+ to B+

and unrated CRR4 to CRR5 0.741-4.914 EL4 to EL5 5.000- 19.999
B and below CRR6 to CRR8 4.915 —99.999 ELG to EL8 20.000 - 99.999
Impaired CRR9 to CRR10 100 EL9to EL10 100+ or defaulted
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Quiality classification definitions

e ‘Strong’
2
9
o ‘Sub-standard’ >
e ‘Good g
o
o ‘Satisfactory’ o ‘Impaired’

Financial instruments by credit quality

2010 compared with 2009
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit quality > Financial instruments / Past due but not impaired

Distribution of financial instruments by credit quality

(Audited)
Neither past due nor impaired Past due Impair-
Sub- but not ment
Strong Good Satisfactory  standard impaired Impaired allowances Total
uUS$m US$m uUS$m US$m US$m US$m uUS$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
51,682 3,100 2,461 140 57,383
5,631 101 340 - 6,072
19,057 - - - 19,057
256,576 41,620 43,278 2,492 343,966
23,663 1,000 957 - 25,620
141,837 8,254 17,222 955 168,268
55,534 9,980 4,865 77 70,456
35,542 22,386 20,234 1,460 79,622
8,377 4,640 6,536 40 19,593
158 - 1 - 159
7,310 4,368 6,530 40 18,248
38 272 5 - 315
871 - - - 871
199,920 45,042 13,980 1,815 260,757
653,248 251,265 186,704 37,057 30,320 28,284 (20,241) 1,166,637
166,943 33,051 6,982 1,152 108 193 (158) 208,271
486,305 218,214 179,722 35,905 30,212 28,091 (20,083) 958,366
345,265 23,253 17,168 4,479 16 2,591 392,772
52,423 2,702 1,882 115 - 7 57,129
292,842 20,551 15,286 4,364 16 2,584 335,643
9,752 6,067 12,212 1,510 513 317 30,371
2,074 3,305 4,227 493 9 8 10,116
7,678 2,762 7,985 1,017 504 309 20,255
1,549,508 375,088 282,679 47,533 30,849 31,192 (20,241) 2,296,608
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For footnotes, see page 174.

Past due but not impaired gross financial

instruments
(Audited)

Past due but not impaired loans and advances to customers and banks by geographical region
(Audited)

Rest of
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total
US$m UsS$m ussm UsS$m ussm us$m us$m
At 31 December 2010 2,518 1,158 2,092 1,351 20,227 2,974 30,320
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit quality > Past due but not impaired / Impaired loans / Impairment allowances

Past due but not impaired loans and advances to customers and banks by industry sector

(Audited)

Ageing analysis of days past due but not impaired gross financial instruments

2010
US$m

108
30,212

24,824
5,292
96

30,320

(Audited)
Up to 29 30-59 60-89 90-179 180 days

days days days days and over Total
uUS$m US$m usS$m uS$m uUS$m US$m

At 31 December 2010
19,481 6,915 3,281 482 161 30,320
108 - - - - 108
19,373 6,915 3,281 482 161 30,212
16 - - - - 16
262 123 57 26 45 513
7 - - 1 1 9
255 123 57 25 44 504
19,759 7,038 3,338 508 206 30,849

Impaired loans and advances

Impaired loans and advances to customers and banks by industry sector
(Audited)
Impaired loans and advances at
31 December 2010

Individually ~ Collectively

assessed assessed Total
us$m US$m US$m
193 - 193
15,201 12,890 28,091
2,121 12,592 14,713
11,964 298 12,262
1,116 - 1,116
15,394 12,890 28,284
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Impairment allowances on loans and

advances to customers and banks
(Audited)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers by geographical region

(Audited)

At 31 December 2010
Gross loans and advances

Impairment allowances

For footnotes, see page 174.

Rest of

Hong Asia- Middle North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total
US$m US$m US$m uUS$m US$m US$m US$m
8,831 637 1,185 2,137 1,632 779 15,201
432,631 140,683 108,505 24,141 198,070 59,218 963,248
1,726 23 139 296 9,095 1,611 12,890
430,905 || 140,660 || 108,366 23,845 || 188,975 57,607 || 950,358
441,462 141,320 109,690 26,278 199,702 59,997 978,449
3,563 345 629 1,163 390 367 6,457
2,100 284 330 489 8,780 1,643 13,626
5,663 629 959 1,652 9,170 2,010 20,083
435,799 140,691 108,731 24,626 190,532 57,987 958,366
% % % % % % %
40.3 54.2 53.1 54.4 23.9 47.1 425
0.5 0.2 0.3 2.0 4.4 2.8 14
13 0.4 0.9 6.3 4.6 34 21
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit quality > Impairment allowances

Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and banks

(Audited)
Banks Customers
Individually Individually Collectively
assessed assessed assessed Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m
2010
107 6,494 19,048 25,649
9) (2,441) (16,850) (19,300)
2 143 875 1,020
12 2,613 10,923 13,548
46 (352) (370) (676)
158 6,457 13,626 20,241
615 11,678 12,293
5,274 1,863 7,137
568 85 653
% % % %
0.11 0.70 1.49 1.91

For footnotes, see page 174.
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Movement in impairment allowances by industry sector

(Audited)

At 31 December

For footnotes, see page 174.

2010
uUS$m

25,649

(19,300)
(16,458)

(4,163)
(12,295)

(2,789)

(1,050)
(1,280)
(459)

(53)

1,020
846

93
753

156

92
21
43

18

13,548
11,187

3,461
7,726

2,198

909
660
629

163

(676)

20,241

158

6,457
13,626

20,241

%

0.66
1.39

2.05
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Credit quality > Impairment allowances

Movement in impairment allowances by industry sector and by geographical region

(Audited)
2010
Rest of
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total
US$m US$m US$m UsS$m US$m US$m US$m
6,227 804 996 1,393 13,676 2,553 25,649
(3,001) (265) (678) (386) (12,601) (2,369)  (19,300)
(1,447) (150) (561) (375)  (12,070) (1,855)  (16,458)
(49) 1) (20) - (4,027) (76) (4,163)
(1,398) (149) (551) (375) (8,043) (1,779)|| (12,295)
(1,539) (109) (110) (11) (507) (513) (2,789)
(385) (90) (46) (10) 174) (345) (1,050)
(1,022) (18) (18) - (194) (28) (1,280)
(132) (1) (46) 1) (139) (140) (459)
(15) (6) (7) = (24) (1) (53)
287 39 188 57 182 267 1,020
251 32 168 53 134 208 846
29 4 3 - 30 27 93
222 28 165 53 104 181 753
33 7 7 4 46 59 156
16 7 5 2 19 43 92
6 - = - 11 4 21
11 - 2 2 16 12 43
3 - 13 - 2 - 18
2,532 137 428 623 8,304 1,524 13,548
1,263 78 297 226 8,138 1,185 11,187
153 a7 11 46 3,189 79 3,461
1,110 95 286 180 4,949 1,106 7,726
1,080 72 146 304 269 327 2,198
395 21 100 165 25 203 909
360 @) 12 117 178 - 660
325 58 34 22 66 124 629
189 (13) (15) 93 (103) 12 163
(305) (86) 25 (18) (327) 35 (676)
At 31 December 5,740 629 959 1,669 9,234 2,010 20,241
77 - - 17 64 - 158
3,563 345 629 1,163 390 367 6,457
2,100 284 330 489 8,780 1,643 13,626
5,740 629 959 1,669 9,234 2,010 20,241
% % % % % % %
0.81 0.24 0.57 4.43 0.20 0.61 0.66
0.48 0.20 0.30 1.86 4.40 2.74 1.39
1.29 0.44 0.87 6.29 4.60 3.35 2.05

122




MBINIBAQ

MBIABY |eloueul{ ¥ BuneiadQ

20UBUIBAO0D

SlUaWBIL]S [eloURUIS

uoiewJou| Japjoyaieys

For footnotes, see page 174.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Impairment charge

Impairment charge to the income statement

Individually and collectively assessed impairment charge to income statement by industry segment
(Unaudited)

2010

Individually Collectively
assessed assessed Total
US$m US$m US$m

12 - 12
180 11,007 11,187

137 3,324 3,461
43 7,683 7,726

2,190 8 2,198

997 (88) 909

680 (20) 660
513 116 629

243 (92) 151

2,625 10,923 13,548

Net loan impairment charge to the income statement
(Unaudited)
2010
ussm

2,625

3,617
(847)
(145)

10,923

11,798
(875)

13,548

12
13,536

%

1.14

uUS$m
At 31 December

28,284

20,241

For footnote, see page 174.

124



Net loan impairment charge to the income statement by geographical region

(Unaudited)
Rest of
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total %
usS$m uUS$m US$m uUS$m US$m usS$m US$m S
2010 g
1,445 45 198 502 348 87 2,625 ©)
1,874 111 311 561 580 180 3,617
(394) (54) (84) (55) (196) (64) (847)
(35) (12) (29) 4) (36) (29) (145)
1,087 92 230 121 7,956 1,437 10,923
1,339 119 389 174 8,102 1,675 11,798
(252) (27) (159) (53) (146) (238) (875) E,
>
2,532 137 428 623 8,304 1,524 13,548 i
2 - - 2 8 - 12 ©
2,530 137 428 621 8,296 1,524 13,536 2
<
L
% % % % % % % &
o
0.49 0.08 0.29 1.75 3.79 1.74 1.14 E
@©
US$m  US$m  USSm  US$m  USm  USSm  US$m 8
At 31 December 2010 o
10,663 665 1,324 2,453 10,789 2,390 28,284
5,740 629 959 1,669 9,234 2,010 20,241

(]
(&S]
=
@©
=
)
>
o
©}
&
=
)
S
&
S
n
©
[3)
=
@©
=
=
Charge for impairment losses as a percentage of average gross loans and advances to customers
(Unaudited)
2010 c
% .2
=
@©
1.65 =
(0.12) o
=
1.53 =
)
2.08 i)
o
. =
For footnote, see page 174. o
P
)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Impairment charge / HSBC Holdings

Charge for impairment losses as a percentage of average gross loans and advances to customers by

geographical region

(Unaudited)
Rest of
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific East America America Total
% % % % % % %
2010
0.74 0.15 0.66 2.71 4.02 341 1.65
(0.07) (0.03) (0.20) (0.23) (0.09) (0.51) (0.12)
0.67 0.12 0.46 2.48 3.93 2.90 1.53
0.71 0.19 0.53 1.32 5.89 4.01 2.08
2010 compared with 2009 Hong Kong
(Unaudited)
Rest of
Asia-Pacific
Europe
Middle East
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North America

HSBC Holdings — maximum exposure to credit risk
(Audited)

127

Latin America

HSBC Holdings
(Audited)

2010
UsS$m

459
2,327
21,238
2,025
46,988
2,720

75,757

Overview

3
2
>
)
o
©
o
<
©
=
L
]
(o]
c
=
©
o
®
a
o

Governance

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

All of the derivative transactions are with HSBC
undertakings which are banking counterparties
(2009: 100%).

The credit quality of the loans and advances to
HSBC undertakings is assessed as strong/good, with
100% of the exposure being neither past due nor
impaired (2009: 100%).

The credit ratings of the financial investments
held by HSBC Holdings are within the Standard and
Poor’s (‘'S&P’) ratings range of A to BBB+ (2009:
A+ to A-).

Securitisation exposures and other

structured products
i

The financial impact of the recent market disruption
is lessening with net write-downs to the income
statement of nil (2009: US$1.9bn net write-downs)
and a reduction in the available-for-sale ABSs
reserve deficit by US$5.8bn to US$6.4bn.

Following the dislocation in markets which
began in 2007, there was a modest recovery in the
risk appetite of investors in 2009. However, the first
half of 2010 saw renewed uncertainty and concerns
over sovereign credit risk. As a result, the prices of
many assets perceived to be of higher risk fell. In
addition, the widespread downgrading of securitised
assets continued in the first half of 2010 as rating
agencies changed their methodologies, reducing the
appetite for securitised assets among institutions
subject to the Basel Il framework.

Increased stability returned in the second half of
2010 following the interventions of the EU and the
International Monetary Fund. A modest increase in
house prices in some areas and the continued low
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interest rate environmenowtributed to a rise in the
price of some securitised assets. As a result, the
levels of write-downs and losses on our holdings of
structured assets remained modest. Unrealised losses
in our available-for-sale reserve continued to reduce
due to increases in fair value and the principal
amortisation of ABSs as repayments were received

at par. Expectations of cash losses on available-for-
sale ABSs remained consistent with our previous
estimates.

Overview of exposure
i

Accounting policies

Our accounting policies for theadsification and valuation of
financial instruments are in eardance with the requirements

of IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ and IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, as
described in Note 2 on the FingicStatements, and the use of
assumptions and estimates in respect of valuation of financial
instruments as described in Note 16 on the Financial
Statements.

This section contains information about our exposure
to the following:

e ABSs, including mortgage-backed securities
(‘MBS’s) and related collateralised debt
obligations (‘CDQ’s);

e direct lending held at fair value through profit or

loss;

monolines;

credit derivative product companies (‘CDPC'’s);

leveraged finance transactions; and

representations and warranties related to
mortgage sales and securitisation activities.

The following table summarises our exposure to
these products.



=y

At 31 December 2010 At 31 December 2009

Asset-backed SeatieS (‘ABS'S) ....ccicvieriiieriieeriee e e

— fair value througlprofit orloss ....
— available forsafé .....................
—held t0 MATUMTE ..ot
—loans andaceivables............cccoiiiiiiii

Loans at fair value tiough profit 0HOSS ........ccooceeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiees

Total ABS and direct lending atifavalue through pofit or loss ...........

Less securities mitigated by ciederivatives with monolines
and other financlanstitutions ..............coovvvereiineieeec e

Leveraged finace loans ...........ccccccve...

— fair value througlprofit orloss ....
—loans andaceivables.............cccooiiiiiiii

Exposure including securities miéited by credit derivatives
with monolines and othdinancial ingitutions .............ccccccvieeneeen.

i)

Asset-backed securities and leveraged

finance
i

We are or have been involved in the following
activities involving ABSs and leveraged finance:

e purchasing US mortgage loans with the
intention of structuring and placing
securitisations into the market;

e trading in ABSs, including MBSs, in secondary
markets;

e holding MBSs and other ABSs in balance sheet
management activities, with the intention of
earning net interest income over the life of the
securities;

e holding MBSs and other ABSs as part of
investment portfolios, including securities
investment conduits (‘SIC’s) and money market
funds, as described in Note 43 on the Financial
Statements, with the intention of earning net
interest income and management fees;

e holding MBSs or other ABSs in the trading
portfolio hedged through credit derivative
protection, typically purchased from monolines,
with the intention of earning the spread
differential over the life of the instruments; and

e originating leveraged finance loans for the
purposes of syndicating or selling them down in
order to generate a trading profit or holding
them in order to earn interest margin over their
lives.
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Including Including

Carrying sub-prime Carrying sub-prime

amount and Alt-A amount and Alt-A
US$bn US$bn ussbn uss$bn
73.9 8.5 70.6 10.8
10.8 0.3 121 0.7
54.7 7.1 48.1 8.2

2.2 0.2 25 0.2

6.2 0.9 7.9 1.7

1.6 1.2 2.0 1.6

75.5 9.7 72.6 124
(8.3) (0.4) (10.2) (1.0)
67.2 9.3 62.4 114
4.9 - 6.2 -

0.3 - 0.2 -

4.6 = 6.0 -

72.1 9.3 68.6 11.4
80.4 9.7 78.8 124

These activities are not a significant part of
GB&M'’s on-going business, and GB&M is not
reliant on them for any material aspect of its
business operations or profitability. The purchase
and securitisation of US mortgage loans and the
secondary trading of US MBSs, which was
conducted in our US MBS business, was
discontinued in 2007.

Nature of HSBC’s exposures

MBSs are securities that represent interests in groups
of mortgages and provide investors with the right to
receive cash from future mortgage payments
(interest and/or principal). An MBS which

references mortgages with different risk profiles is
classified according to the highest risk class.

CDOs are securities backed by a pool of bonds,
loans or other assets such as ABSs. CDOs may
include exposure to sub-prime or Alt-A mortgage
assets where these are part of the underlying assets
or reference assets. As there is often uncertainty
surrounding the precise nature of the underlying
collateral supporting CDOs, all CDOs supported by
residential mortgage-related assets are classified as
sub-prime. Our holdings of ABSs and CDOs and
direct lending positions, and the categories of
mortgage collateral and lending activity, are
described below.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

Categories of
ABSs and CDOs

Sub-prime

Definition

Loans to customers who have limited credit historit
modest incomes or high debt-to-income ratios or h
experienced credit problems caused by occasiona
delinquencies, prior chargdfs, bankruptcy or other
credit-related actions.

Classification

For US mortgages, standard US credit scores are
primarily used to determewhether a loan is sub-
prime; for non-US mortgage management judgement
is used.

US Home Equity Lines

A form of revolving credit facility provided to

Holdings of HELoCs are classified as sub-prime.

of Credit (‘(HELoC’s)  customers, which is supported by a first or second
charge over residential property.
UsS Alt-A Lower risk loans than sub-prime, but they share hii US credit scores and the completeness of

risk characteristics than lending under fully conforr
standard criteria.

documentation held (such as proof of income), are
considered when determining whether an Alt-A
classification is appropriat&lon sub-prime mortgages
in the US are classified astAA if they are not eligible
for sale to the major US Government sponsored
mortgage agencies.

US Government agent
and sponsored
enterprises mortgage-
related assets

Securities that are guaranteed by US Government
agencies such as the Government National Mortge
Association (‘Ginnie Mae’), or by US Government
sponsored entities including the Federal National
Mortgage Association (‘Fanie Mae’) and the Federe
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (‘Freddie Mac’).

Holdings of US Government agency and US
Government sponsored enterprises’ mortgage-related
assets are classified as prime exposures.

UK non-conforming
mortgages

UK mortgages that do not meet normal lending crit
Examples include mortgages where the expected |
of documentation is not provided (such as income
self-certification), or where poor credit history
increases risk and results in pricing at a higher tha
normal lending rate.

UK non-conforming mortgages are treated as sub-
prime exposures.

Other mortgages

Residential mortgages, intding prime mortgages, tt
do not meet any of the dsifications described abov

Prime residential mortgage-related assets are included
in this category.

Our exposure to non-residential mortgage-

related ABSs and direct lending includes securities

with collateral relating to:

[ )
e leveraged finance loans;
e student loans; and
[ )
receivable-related collateral.
i

commercial property mortgages;

other assets, such as securities with other

ABSs classified as available for sale

Our principal holdings of available-for-sale ABSs

(see table below) are in GB&M through special

purpose entities (‘'SPE’s) which were established
from the outset with the benefit of external investor
first loss protection support, together with positions
held directly and by Solitaire Funding Limited
(‘Solitaire’), where we have first loss risk.

The following table summarises our exposure to
ABS’s classified as available for sale:

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009

Total carrying amount of net principal

exposue

Notional principal value of impaired

securities

Carrying value of capitanotes liability -

Directly
held/
Solitaire® SPEs
US$m US$m
.................................... 41,106 13,586
.................................... 3,015 2,399
............. (254)
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Directly

held/
Total Solitaire® SPEs Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m
54,692 34,040 14,021 48,061
5,414 2,641 1,565 4,206
(254) — (740) (740)



=N

2009
Directly Directly
held/ held/
Solitaire® SPEs Total Solitaire® SPEs Total
uUS$m Us$m US$m uss$m UsS$m Us$m
AFS reserve at 1 January .........ccccceveveerveeenne (7,349) (4,864) (12,213) (11,528) (7,204) (18,732)
Increase in fair valel of secuties .............c........ 2,175 1,543 3,718 3,419 704 4,123
Impairment charge:
— borne by HSBC ......cccoveviieecee e 444 - 444 1,422 - 1,422
— allocated to capital note hold&rs - 531 531 - 666 666
Repayment otapital ...........ccccceeviiiiiieiiieenns 540 187 727 431 668 1,099
Other MOVEMENLS ......c.cveveveiiiie e 88 297 385 (1,093) 302 (791)
AFS reserve at 31 December .........c.cccoeeeeene (4,102) (2,306) (6,408) (7,349) (4,864) (12,213)
i

Securities investment conduits
i

The total carrying amount of ABSs held through
SPEs in the above table represents holdings in
which significant first loss protection is provided
through capital notes issued by SICs, excluding
Solitaire.

At each reporting date, we assess whether there
is any objective evidence of impairment in the
value of the ABSs held by SPEs. Impairment
charges incurred on these assets are offset by a
credit to the impairment line for the amount of the
loss allocated to capital note holders.

The economic first loss protection remaining at
31 December 2010 amounted to US$2.2bn (2009:
US$2.2bn). On an IFRSs accounting basis, the
carrying value of the liability for the capital notes
at 31 December 2010 amounted to US$0.3bn
(2009: US$0.7bn). The impairment charge
recognised during 2010 amounted to US$531m
(2009: US$666m).

At 31 December 2010, the available-for-sale
reserve in respect of securities held by the SICs
was a deficit of US$2.7bn (2009: US$5.2bn).

Of this, US$2.3bn related to ABSs (2009:
US$4.9bn).

Impairments recognised during 2010 from
assets held directly or within Solitaire, in
recognition of the first loss protection of US$1.2bn
we provide through credit enhancement and from
drawings against the liquidity facility we provide,
were US$444m (2009: US$1.4bn). The reduction
in impairment charges compared with 2009 was
due to the stabilising of loss severities and
delinquency roll rates which have resulted in lower
losses in the underlying collateral pools. The level
of impairment recognised in comparison with the
deficit in the available-for-sale reserve was a
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reflection of the credit quality and seniority of the
assets held.

Sub-prime and Alt-A residential mortgage-

backed securities
i

The assets which are most sensitive to possible
future impairment are sub-prime and Alt-A
residential MBSs. Available-for-sale holdings

in these higher risk categories where HSBC does
not benefit from significant first loss protection
amounted to US$3.8bn at 31 December 2010
(2009: US$4.9bn). For these securities the
cumulative fair value losses not recognised in the
income statement at 31 December 2010 was
US$1.6bn (2009: losses of US$3.2bn). Other
holdings in these higher risk categories classified as
available-for-sale are held in vehicles where third
party first loss protection exists, as described in the
section on securities investment conduits, above.

During 2010, the credit ratings on certain ABSs
held directly by HSBC, Solitaire and the SICs were
downgraded. A downgrade of a security’s credit
rating is not, of itself, evidence of impairment.
Consequently, the actions of the rating agencies
alone have no direct impact on the measurement
of impairment losses. The impairment losses
recognised on these securities at 31 December 2010
are set out above.

Impairment methodologies
i

The accounting policy for impairment and
indicators of impairment is set out in Note 2j on the
Financial Statements.

For available-for-sale ABSs, to identify
objective evidence of impairment, an industry
standard valuation model is normally applied which
uses data with reference to the underlying asset
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

pools and models their projected future cash flows.
The estimated future cash flows of the securities
are assessed at the specific financial asset level to
determine whether any of them are unlikely to be
recovered as a result of loss events occurring on or
before the reporting date.

The principal assumptions and inputs to the
models are typically the delinquency status of the
underlying loans, the probability of delinquent
loans progressing to default, the prepayment
profiles of the underlying assets and the loss
severity in the event of default. However, the
models utilise other variables relevant to specific
classes of collateral to forecast future defaults
and recovery rates. Management uses externally
available data and applies judgement when
determining the appropriate assumptions in respect
of these factors. HSBC uses a modelling approach
which incorporates historically observed
progression rates to default, to determine if the
decline in aggregate projected cash flows from
the underlying collateral will lead to a shortfall in
contractual cash flows. In such cases the security
is considered to be impaired.

In respect of CDOs, expected future cash
flows for the underlying collateral are assessed to
determine whether there is likely to be a shortfall
in the contractual cash flows of the CDO.

When a security benefits from a contract
provided by a monoline insurer that insures
payments of principal and interest, the expected
recovery on the contract is assessed in determining
the total expected credit support available to the
ABS.

Impairment and cash loss projections
v

At 31 December 2009, management undertook
an analysis to estimate further potential
impairments and expected cash losses on the
available-for-sale ABS portfolio. This exercise
comprised a shift of projections of future loss
severities, default rates and prepayment rates.
The results of the analysis indicated that further
impairment charges of some US$1.1bn and
expected cash losses of some US$450m could
arise over the next two to three years.
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At 31 December 2010, management
re-performed the stress test. After taking into
account the cash losses experienced during 2010,
the remaining cash loss projections of US$250m
were consistent with those as at 31 December 2009.
However, the impairment charge projections
showed an additional charge of US$300m arising
over the next two years in relation to the SICs, after
taking into account the impairments recognised in
2010, resulting in future impairment charges of
US$950m, including the US$300m relating to the
SICs. This additional charge reflects where the
accounting impairments will exceed the carrying
amount of the capital notes held by third parties.

For the purposes of identifying impairment at
the reporting date, the future projected cash flows
reflect the effect of loss events that have occurred
at or prior to the reporting date. For the purposes of
performing stress tests to estimate potential future
impairment charges, the projected future cash flows
reflect additional assumptions about future loss
events after the balance sheet date.

This analysis makes assumptions in respect
of the future behaviour of loss severities, default
rates and prepayment rates. Movements in the
parameters are not independent of each other. For
example, increased default rates and increased loss
severities, which would iply greater impairments,
generally arise under economic conditions that give
rise to reduced levels of prepayment, reducing the
potential for impairment charges. Conversely,
economic conditions which increase the rates of
prepayment are generally associated with reduced
default rates and decreased loss severities.

At 31 December 2010, the incurred and
projected impairment charges, measured in
accordance with accounting requirements,
significantly exceeded the expected cash losses on
the securities. Over the lives of the available-for-
sale ABSs the cumulative impairment charges will
converge towards the level of cash losses. In
respect of the SICs, in particular, the capital notes
held by third parties are expected to absorb the cash
losses arising in the vehicles.



= N

i
Designated Of which
at fair value held through
Available Held to through  Loans and consolidated
Trading for sale maturity profit  receivables Total SPEs %
US$m US$m uS$m usS$m usS$m US$m uS$m S
At 31 December 2010 2
Mortgage-related assets ©
Sub-prime residential ......... 1,297 2,565 - - 652 4,514 2,763
Direct lending ................. 1,078 - - - - 1,078 632
MBSs and MBS CDC5 ... 219 2,565 - - 652 3,436 2,131
US Alt-A residential ............ 180 4,545 191 - 270 5,186 3,651
Direct lending ................. 96 - - - - 96 =
MBSS® ..o 84 4,545 191 - 270 5,090 3,651 2
US Government agency anc q>)
sponsored enterprises E
MBSS™? .o 657 21,699 2,032 - = 24,388 6 ©
o
Other residential ................. 1,075 4,024 - - 1,111 6,210 2,669 =
Direct lending ................. 417 - - - - 417 - =
MBSS™ .. 658 4,024 - - 1,111 5,793 2,669 o";
Commercial property E’
MBSs and MBS CDC5S ... 546 8,160 - 111 1,942 10,759 6,441 9=
@©
3,755 40,993 2,223 111 3,975 51,057 15,530 21_0)_
Leveraged finance-related o
assets
ABSs and ABS CDCS ........ 392 5,418 - - 414 6,224 3,886
Student loan-related assets
ABSs and ABS CDCS ........ 163 5,178 - - 150 5,491 4,251
Other assets
ABSs and ABS CDCS ........ 1,936 3,103 - 6,017 1,710 12,766 2,526 ©
(&S]
6,246 54,692 2,223 6,128 6,249 75,538 26,193 =
(=
At 31 December 2009 g
Mortgage-related assets 8
Sub-prime residdial ............ 63 2,782 - - 837 5,682 3,213
Direct lendng ................. . 1,439 - — - — 1,439 913
MBSs and MBS CDO ... 624 2,782 : - 83y 4,243 2,300
US Alt-A residential.............. 191 5,403 192 - 882 6,668 3,672
Direct lendng .................. . 113 - - - - 113 +
MBSS™ ..o . 7H 5,403 192 - 882 6,55 3,612
US Government agency and n
sponsored enterprises c
MBSS™ ..o, 375 13,332 2,333 - - 16,040 322 g
Other residentia.................... 146 4,582 — 335 1,401 7,964 3,160 %
Direct lendng ... 452 - - - 453 + o
194 4,582 - 335 1,40 7,512 3,160 =
Commercial property E
MBSs and MBS CDC ... 414 7,535 - 103 2,143 10,195 5,730 o
4,689 33,634 2,525 438 5,263 46,549 16,097 -
Leveraged finance-related
assets
ABSs and ABS CDO ........ 555 5,50 - - 484 6,189 4,144
Student loan-related assets
ABSs and ABS CDO5 ........ 141 248 - - 145 5,234 4,127 5
Other assets =
ABSs and ABS CDCS ........ 2,302 829 — 6,025 1,987 14,643 2,696 =
7,687 48,061 2,525 6,463 7,879 72,615 27,064 .g
I @
' 2 =
=
o
@©
45
()
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Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

4 B
i
2010 At 31 December 2010
Gross fair value
movements Realised Credit
Other gains/ default
compre-  (losses) in swap Net
Income hensive theincome Reclassi- Gross gross  principal Carrying
statement®®  income* statement* fied*® principal*’ protection® exposure** Amount®
uUS$m US$m US$m usS$m usS$m US$m US$m usS$m
Mortgage-related assets
Sub-prime residential
Direct lending ................ (35) - (20) - 2,233 - 2,233 1,078
MBSS™ e, 58 313 14 385 5,104 336 4,768 3,135
— high grad# ... ) 6 151 5 52 1,996 292 1,704 1,458
—rated Cto A ..cccooveeeeee 52 162 7 333 3,006 44 2,962 1,645
— not publicly rated ....... - - 2 - 102 - 102 32
MBS CDO¢* = 7 - 3) 90 12 78 17
— high grad® . - - - - 2 - 2 1
—rated Cto A ..o, - 6 - ®3) 86 12 74 14
— not publicly rated ....... - 1 - - 2 - 2 2
23 320 (6) 382 7,427 348 7,079 4,230
US Alt-A residential
Direct lending ................ 1) - - - 108 - 108 96
MBSs" ............ 4 575 3 1,564 9,957 100 9,857 5,013
— high grad# ... Ny - 35 3 45 660 100 560 473
—rated Cto A ........ 4 539 - 1,520 9,254 - 9,254 4,503
— not publicly rated ....... - 1 - 1) 43 - 43 37
3 575 3 1,564 10,065 100 9,965 5,109
US Government agency an
sponsored enterprises
MBSs*
—high grad® .................. 3 226 (11) (43) 23,739 - 23,739 24,388
Other residential
Direct lending ................ 63 - 35 - 424 - 424 417
MBSS™ e, 6 163 4 ) 6,571 = 6,571 5,793
—high grad® .................] 5 149 4 ) 5,841 - 5,841 5,256
—rated Cto A 1 14 - - 648 - 648 450
— not publicly rated ....... - - - - 82 - 82 87
69 163 39 (7) 6,995 - 6,995 6,210
Commercial property
MBS and MBS CDO8 ... 45 1,366 6 112 12,625 421 12,204 10,493
—high grad# ................] 5 540 4 71 6,341 15 6,326 5,791
—rated Cto A ..ccceoveeeee. 40 826 2 36 6,201 406 5,795 4,637
— not publicly rated ....... - - - 5 83 - 83 65
Leveraged finance-related
ASSELS .iveiiiie e
ABSs and ABS CDCS ...... 5 453 - 18 7,148 788 6,360 5,721
—high grad® .................... 3 308 = 8) 6,078 351 5,727 5,148
—rated Cto A ...cooevenenee. 2 145 - 26 971 437 534 472
— not publicly rated .......... - - - - 99 - 99 101
Student loan-related assets
ABSs and ABS CDCS ... 7 230 3 (6) 7,161 100 7,061 5,459
—high grad& .................... 9 44 3 ) 4,080 - 4,080 3,626
—rated CtOA ....ccoecvveneee 2) 157 - ) 2,620 100 2,520 1,663
— not publicly rated .......... - 29 - - 461 - 461 170
Other assets
ABS and ABS CDO# ........ 2 385 1 67 15,497 7,765 7,732 5,622
— high grad# ........... - 188 - 1 10,947 7,447 3,500 2,884
—rated Cto A .......... 2 188 1 46 4,059 318 3,741 2,379
— not publicly rated - 9 - 20 491 - 491 359
Total .ooeeeeiiieieeee e 157 3,718 35 2,087 90,657 9,522 81,135 67,232
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2009 At 31 December 2009

Gross fair value

movements Realised Credit
Other gains/ default
compre- (losses) in swap Net
Income hensive theincome Reclassi- Gross gross principal  Carrying
statemedf  incomé* statemerit fied®® principaf” protectio®® exposur®  Amounf®
UsS$m uUssm UsSsm US$m Ussm US$m Us$m US$m
Mortgage-related assets
Sub-prime residential
Direct lendng ........cceeeneen. 227) - (40) - 1,703 - 1,703 1,439
MBSs™! ............ 44) 187 (130) 795 483 1,248 6,235 3,419
— high grad® (16 177 1 134 2,762 603 2,159 1,719
—rated CtA ....ocoeovevrenienn (25 10 (131) 661 £16 645 3,971 1,700
—not publicly réed ........... 3 - - - 105 - 105 -
MBS CDO$" ...........cooeue..... (2 9 - 2 138 15 123 29
— high grad# ... - @ - -] 3 15 2 17
—rated CtOA ...ccoveienee . 1 (€2)] H M D o 9 Lo
—not publicly rated .......... (1 H s H - B 2
(273) 178 (170) 797 9,324 1,263 8,061 4,887
US Alt-A residential
Direct lending ........cccceeueeee. - - - - 129 - 129 113
MBSS™? ..o, 95 661 (143) 1,693 13,546 491 13,055 6,427
— high grad# ... C 361 1 317 1,625 428 1,197 1,237
—rated CtoA......... 103 300 (144 1,376/| 11,885 63 11,822 5,176
—not publicly rated .......... 1 H H H 36 + 36 14
95 661 (143) 1,693 13,675 491 13,184 6,540
US Government agency and
sponsored enterprises
MBSs"
—high grad® .................... 116 252 ) (123) 15,827 - 15,827 16,040
Other residential
Direct lending ........cccceneee. 79 - 70 - 463 - 463 452
MBSS™ ..o 71 625 37 50 8,741 91 8,650 7,443
— high grad# ... 76 617 37 75 7,88 9 7,79 6,440
—rated CtoA......... 5 10 - (34) 773 - 773 94
—not publicly rated .......... ( 8 + a1 2
150 625 107 50 9,204 91 9,113 7,895
Commercial property
MBS and MBS CDO%...... 35 702 (8) (104 13,734 395 13,339 9,954
— high grad® 72 683 (8) (90) 9,805 264 9,54{1 7,537
—rated CtA .....ccoveviienns (37 17 - (12) 3360 131 3,729 2,365
—not publicly rated .......... I 2 i ®@ 6 T (3% b2
Leveraged finance-related
ASSELS .o
ABSs and ABS CDCS......... [€)) 721 - (40) %16 895 6,621 5,612
—high grad& ............... 14 758 - (41) 6,620 414 6,206 5,30
—rated CtoA........... (a5 30) - 1 881 481 400 29
— not publicly rated ............ . + H H H 1% - b 6
Student loan-related assets
ABSs and ABS CDCS ........ (6) 569 2 32 7,192 224 6,968 5,122
—high grad& .............. . 2 630 - 32 6,690 30 6,66( 5,01
—rated CtoA ............ 8 6(1) 2 - 477 194 283 7
— not publicly rated ............ . =+ L H H 2% = 26 7
Other assets
ABS and ABS CDO% 74 415 a7) 91 17,608 8,797 8,811 6,327
— high grad# .......... 18 288 10 31 12,846 8,607 4,239 3,564
—rated CtoA........ 40 152 (29) 85 426 190 3,936 2,245
—not publicly réed .............. 16 (25) 2 (25) 636 - 636 51
Total oo 190 4,123 (231) 2,396 94,080 12,156 81,924 62,377
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

Analysis of exposures and significant

movements
i

Sub-prime residential mortgage-related assets

Sub-prime residential mortage-related assets
included US$3.1bn (2009: US$3.7bn) related to
US-originated assets and US$1.1bn (2009:
US$1.1bn) relating to UK non-conforming
residential mortgage-related assets. Of the non-high
grade assets held of US$1.7bn (2009: US$1.7bn),
US$1.5bn (2009: US$1.6bn) related to US-
originated assets, reflecting the higher quality of

the UK-originated assets.

A modest increase in observable values of our
sub-prime assets took place in 2010. Further net
impairment of US$48m on assets classified as
available for sale was recognised in 2010 (2009:
US$559m) as losses were incurred under current
accounting impairment rules. Our expectation of
cash losses on the underlying assets did not increase
from that at 31 December 2009. Of the above
impairment, US$54m (2009: US$312m) occurred in
the SICs and was borne by the capital note holders.

.4
i

Gross principdf of US sub-prime
mortgage-backed securities

US Alt-A residential mortgage-related assets

During 2010, spreads on Alt-A mortgage-related
assets tightened modestly from the levels seen in
2009. Further impairments of US$884m (2009:
US$1,372m) were recorded in respect of Alt-A
mortgage-related assetslasses were incurred
under the accounting rules described in the
paragraph above, without reference to the amount
of expected loss. Our expectation of losses in the
underlying assets did not increase from that at
31 December 2009. Of the impairment above,
US$450m (2009: US$346m) occurred in the
SICs and was borne by the capital note holders.

The downgrade of our US Alt-A residential
MBSs is reflected in the disclosure of fair value
movements in the above tables as if the downgrade
had taken effect on 1 January 2010.

The following table shows the vintages of the
collateral assets supporting our holdings of US
sub-prime and Alt-A MBSs. Market prices for these
instruments generally incorporate higher discounts
for later vintages. The majority of our holdings of
US sub-prime MBSs originated pre-2007; holdings
of US Alt-A MBSs are more evenly distributed
between pre-2007 vintages and those from 2007
onwards.

Gross principdl of US Alt-A
mortgage-backed securities

at 31 December at 31 December

Mortgage vintage
Pre-2006.........cviieeeiiiie et

2010 2009 2010 2009
Us$m US$m US$m US$m
1,061 1,748 1,159 2,108
1,822 2,827 5,147 6,225
979 1,187 3,651 5,213
3,862 5,762 9,957 13,546

US Government agency and sponsored
enterprises mortgage-related assets

During 2010, we increased our holdings of US
Government agency and sponsored enterprises
mortgage-related assets by US$8.3bn.

Other residential mortgage-related assets

The majority of our other residential
mortgage-related assets were originated in the UK
(2010: US$3.9bn; 2009: US$4.7bn). No impairments
were recognised in respect of these UK originated
assets in 2010 (2009: nil), reflecting credit support
within the asset portfolio.
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Commercial property mortgage-related assets

Of our total of US$10.5bn (2009: US$10.0bn)

of commercial property mortgage-related assets,
US$5.2bn related to US originated assets (2009:
US$4.3bn). Spreads tightened on both US and non-
US commercial property mortgage-related assets
during 2010. Impairments of US$5m (2009:
US$88m) were recognised in 2010.

Leveraged finance-related assets

The majority of these assets related to US-originated
exposures; 90% (2009: 94%) were high grade with
no impairments recorded in the year (2009: nil).



Student loan-related assets

Our holdings in student loan-related assets were
US$5.5bn (2009: US$5.1bn). No impairments were
recorded on student loan-related assets in 2010
(2009: nil).

Transactions with monoline insurers
d

HSBC’s exposure to derivative transactions
entered into directly with monolines

Our principal exposure to monolines is through a
number of OTC derivative transactions, mainly
credit default swaps (‘CDS’s). We entered into these
CDSs primarily to purchase credit protection against
securities held at the time within the trading
portfolio.

During 2010, the notional value of derivative
contracts with monolines and our overall credit
exposure to monolines decreased as a number of
transactions were commuted, others matured, and

credit spreads narrowed. The table below sets out the

fair value, essentially the replacement cost, of the

remaining derivative transactions at 31 December
2010, and hence the amount at risk if the CDS
protection purchased were to be wholly ineffective
because, for example, the monoline insurer was
unable to meet its obligations. In order to further
analyse that risk, the value of protection purchased
is shown subdivided between those monolines
that were rated by S&P at ‘BBB- or above’ at

31 December 2010, and those that were ‘below
BBB-—' (BBB-is the S&P cut-off for an investment
grade classification). The ‘Credit risk adjustment’
column indicates the valuation adjustment taken
against the net exposures, and reflects our best
estimate of the likely loss of value on purchased
protection arising from the deterioration in
creditworthiness of the monolines. These valuation
adjustments, which reflect a measure of the
irrecoverability of the protection purchased, have
been charged to the income statement. During 2010,
the credit risk adjustment on derivative contracts
with monolines decreased as a number of
transactions commuted and others matured.

I’
#
Net exposure Net exposure
Notional before credit Credit risk after credit
amount risk adjustment®! adjustment® risk adjustment
uUS$m US$m US$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
Derivative transactionsithh monoline counterparties
Monoline — investment gde (BBB- ombove) ............. 5,179 876 (88) 788
Monoline — sub-investmermgrade (below BBB-) .......... 2,290 648 (431) 217
7,469 1,524 (519) 1,005
At 31 December 2009
Derivative transactions withonoline counterparties
Monoline — investment grad8BB— or &ove) .............. 523 997 (100) 897
Monoline — sub-investment gra¢leclow BBBA ........... 4,400 1,317 (909) 408
10,023 2,314 (1,009) 1,305

¥

The above table can be analysed as follows.
HSBC has derivative transactions referenced to
underlying securities with a notional value of
US$7.5bn (2009: US$10.0bn), whose value at
31 December 2010 indicated a potential claim
against the protection purchased from the
monolines of some US$1.5bn (2009: US$2.3bn).
On the basis of a credit assessment of the
monolines, a provision of US$519m has been taken
(2009: US$1.0bn), leaving US$1.0bn exposed
(2009: US$1.3bn), of which US$788m is
recoverable from monolines rated investment grade
at 31 December 2010 (2009: US$897m). The
provisions taken imply in aggregate that 90 cents in
the dollar will be recoverable from investment
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grade monolines and 33 cents in the dollar from
non-investment grade monolines (2009: 90 cents
and 31 cents, respectively).

For the CDSs, market prices are generally not
readily available. Therefore the CDSs are valued on
the basis of market prices of the referenced
securities.

The credit risk adjustment against monolines is
determined by one of a number of methodologies,
dependent upon the internal credit rating of the
monoline. Our assignment of internal credit ratings
is based upon detailed credit analysis, and may
differ from external ratings.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Credit risk > Securitisation exposures and other structured products

Credit risk adjustments for monolines

e For highly-rated monolines, the standard credit risk
adjustment methodology (as debed on page 312) applies,
with the exception that the future exposure profile is
deemed to be constant (equal to the current market value)
over the weighted average liéé¢ the referenced security,
and the credit risk adjustmecdnnot fall below 10% of the
mark-to-market exposure.

¢ In respect of monolines, whedefault has either occurred
or there is a strong possibilitf default in the near term,
the adjustment is determined based on the estimated
probabilities of various potéal scenarios, and the
estimated recovery in each case.

e For other monoline exposurdke credit risk adjustment
follows the methodology for highly-rated monolines,
adjusted to include the prdiity of a claim arising in
respect of the referencedcarrity, and applies implied
probabilities of default where the likelihood of a claim is
believed to be high.

As described above, HSBC’s monoline credit
risk adjustment calculation utilises a range of
approaches dependent upon the credit quality of
the monoline. The net impact of utilising the
methodology adopted for ‘highly-rated’ monolines
across all monolines would be a reduction in credit
risk adjustment of US$94m. The net impact of
utilising a methodology based on credit default swap
spreads would be an increase in credit risk
adjustment of US$8m.

At 31 December 2010, US$1.4bn (2009:
US$2.6bn) notional value of securities referenced by
monoline CDS transactions with a market value of
US$1.0bn (2009: US$1.9bn) were held in the loans
and receivables category, having been included in
the reclassification of financial assets described in
Note 18 on the Financial Statements. At the date of
reclassification, the market value of the remaining
assets was US$1.2bn. The reclassification resulted in
an accounting asymmetry between the CDSs, which
continue to be held at fair value through profit and
loss, and the reclassified securities, which are
accounted for on an amortised cost basis. If the
reclassifications had not occurred, the impact on the
income statement for 2010 would have been
a decrease in profit of US$3m (2009: increase in
profit of US$5m). This amount represents the
difference between the increase in market value of
the securities during 2010 and the accretion
recognised under the amortised cost method in 2010.

HSBC’s exposure to direct lending and
irrevocable commitments to lend to monolines

HSBC had no liquidity facilities to monolines at
31 December 2010 (2009: minimal).
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HSBC'’s exposure to debt securities which benefit
from guarantees provided by monolines

Within both the trading and available-for-sale
portfolios, we hold bonds that are ‘wrapped’ with

a credit enhancement from a monoline. As the
bonds are traded explicitly with the benefit of this
enhancement, any deterioration in the credit profile
of the monoline is reflected in market prices and,
therefore, in the carrying amount of these securities
at 31 Decembe2010. For wrapped bonds held in

our trading portfolio, the mark-to-market movement
has been reflected through the income statement. For
wrapped bonds held in the available-for-sale portfolio,
the mark-to-market movement is reflected in equity
unless there is objective evidence of impairment, in
which case the impairment loss is reflected in the
income statement. No wrapped bonds were included
in the reclassification of financial assets described in
Note 18 on the Financial Statements.

HSBC’s exposure to Credit Derivative

Product Companies
i

Credit Derivative Product Companies (‘CDPC'’s)

are independent companies that specialise in selling
credit default protection on corporate exposures.
OTC derivative exposure to CDPCs became a focus
during the second half of 2008 as the spreads
widened, but these exposures reduced during 2009
as the spreads tightened again. At 31 December
2010, HSBC had purchased from CDPCs credit
protection with a notional value of US$4.9bn (2009:
US$5.0bn) which had a fair value of US$0.2bn
(2009: US$0.3bn), against which a credit risk
adjustment (a provision) of US$0.1bn (2009:
US$0.1bn) was held. At 31 December 2010, none of
the exposure was to CDPCs with investment grade
ratings (2009: 83%). The deterioration reflects rating
downgrades and withdrawals during 2010.

Leveraged finance transactions
i

Leveraged finance transactions include sub-
investment grade acquisition or event-driven
financing. The following table shows our exposure
to leveraged finance transactions arising from
primary transactions. Our additional exposure to
leveraged finance loans through holdings of ABSs
from our trading and investment activities is shown
in the table on page 133.



=y

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009

Funded Unfunded Total Funded Unfunded Total
exposures®®  exposures®  exposures exposure§  exposured exposures
uUS$m US$m US$m Ussm Us$m us$m
EUMOPE ..vvieieiiiceie e 3,337 298 3,635 3,790 368 4,158
Rest of AsiaPacific 17 22 39 70 22 92
North America .......ccccevveveeriiieene. 1,066 185 1,251 1,713 188 1,901
4,420 505 4,925 5,573 578 6,151
Held within:
— loans andaceivables .................. 4,199 393 4,592 5,569 386 5,955
— fair value through profit or loss . 221 112 333 4 192 196
i

We held leveraged finance commitments of
US$5.1bn at 31 December 2010 (2009: US$6.5bn),
of which US$4.6bn (2009: US$5.9bn) was funded.

As described in Note 18 on the Financial
Statements, certain leveraged finance loans were
reclassified from held for trading to loans and
receivables. As a result, these loans are held at
amortised cost subject to impairment and are not
marked to market, and net gains of US$0.1bn (2009:
net gains of US$1.2bn) were not taken to the income
statement in 2010.

At 31 December 2010, our principal exposures
were to companies in two sectors: US$2.8bn to
data processing (2009: US$3.8bn) and US$1.8bn
to communications and infrastructure (2009:
US$1.9bn). During 2010, 99% of the total fair value
movement not recognised was against exposures in
these two sectors (2009: 99%).

Representations and warranties related to

mortgage sales and securitisation activities
a

We have been involved in various activities related
to the sale and securitisation of residential
mortgages, which are not recognised on our balance
sheet. These activities include:

o the purchase of US$24bn of third party
originated mortgages by HSBC Bank USA and
securitisation of these by HSBC Securities
(USA) Inc. (‘HSI') between 2005 and 2007;

e HSI acting as underwriter for third party
issuance of private label MBSs with an original
issuance value of US$37bn, most of which were
sub-prime, as well as underwriting US$6bn of
MBSs issued by HSBC Finance; and

e the origination and sale by HSBC Bank USA of
mortgage loans, primarily to government
sponsored entities.
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In sales and securitisations of mortgage loans,
various representations and warranties regarding the
loans may be made to purchasers of the mortgage
loans and MBSs. In respect of the purchase and
securitisation of third party originated mortgages and
the underwriting of third party MBSs, the obligation
to repurchase loans in the event of a breach of
loan level representations and warranties resides
predominantly with the organisation that originated
the loan. While certain of these originators are or
may become financially impaired, and therefore,
unable to fulfil their repurchase obligations, we do
not believe we have significant exposure for
repurchases on these loans.

At 31 December 2010, a liability of US$262m
was recognised in respect of various representations
and warranties, relating to the origination and sale by
HSBC Bank USA of mortgage loans, primarily to
government sponsored entities (2009: US$66m).
These relate to, among other things, the ownership of
the loans, the validity of the liens, the loan selection
and origination process, and the compliance to the
origination criteria established by the agencies. In
the event of a breach of our representations and
warranties, HSBC Bank USA may be obliged to
repurchase the loans with identified defects or to
indemnify the buyers. The liability is estimated
based on the level of outstanding repurchase
demands, the level of outstanding requests for loan
files and estimated future demands in respect of
mortgages sold to date which are either two or
more payments delinquent or expected to become
delinquent at an estimated conversion rate.
Repurchase demands of US$115m were outstanding
at 2010 (2009: US$123m).
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Liquidity and funding > Policies and procedures / Primary sources of funding

Liquidity and funding
(Audited) Annual Report and Accounts 2009

The objective of our liquidity framework is to

be very conservative and adaptable to Policies and procedures
. . (Audited)

changing business models, markets and

regulation.

Elements of our liquidity and funding management process
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Primary sources of funding
(Audited)
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Cash flows payable by HSBC under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities 3

(Audited) o

Due Due =

Due between between Due g

On within 3 3and 12 land5 after 5 o

demand months months years years o
US$m us$m US$m Us$m ussm

At 31 December 2010

42,481 70,072 8,393 7,949 1,346
881,575 244,501 89,557 23,209 3,483

300,703 - - - - Q

7,421 3,786 7,825 35,583 61,575 =

255,046 531 1,143 2,065 942 c

1,320 48,062 41,939 62,148 16,255 g

34 1,491 1,863 10,001 51,293 8
24,834 24,378 7,944 2,184 824
1,513,414 392,821 158,664 143,139 135,718
524,394 51,732 14,023 11,964 400
18,491 9,233 12,231 7,082 2,399
2,056,299 453,786 184,918 162,185 138,517
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)
Risk > Liquidity and funding > The management of liquidity risk / Contingent liquidity risk

The management of liquidity risk
(Audited)

Advances to core funding ratio

HSBC's principal banking entities — the management of liquidity risk

(Audited)

2010 2010
% %
103.0 111.1
109.7 111.3
102.6 103.2
106.0 108.2
70.3 144.6
70.3 165.4
55.5 132.6
63.6 148.8
98.3 108.5
104.3 118.5
94.2 105.3
98.0 112.3
89.1 119.6
89.1 126.5
85.7 118.1
87.0 122.2

For footnotes, see page 174.

Stressed one month coverage ratio

Projected cash flow scenario analysis
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HSBC Finance — funding
(Audited)

Overview

2010
US$bn

51
10.8

0.5

43

For footnote, see page 174.

Contingent liquidity risk
(Audited)
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The Group's contractual exposures at 31 December monitored under the contingent liquidity risk limit structure =

(Audited) UE_
2010 2010 2010 2010
Ussbn uUssbn Ussbn uUssbn

S

7.8 4.0 02 - £

0.7 0.4 0.1 - 5

256 - - - =

- 1.4 - - =

)

i)

4.2 53 2.0 1.4 g

8.4 4.9 3.8 24 o

@©

For footnotes, see page 174. 5)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)
Risk > Liquidity and funding > HSBC Holdings // Market risk > Monitoring exposure / Sensitivity analysis

HSBC Holdings
(Audited)

Cash flows payable by HSBC Holdings under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
(Audited)

Due Due
Due between between Due
On within 3 3and 12 land5 after 5
demand months months years years
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m

At 31 December 2010

- 163 1,332 1,453 -
- 219 658 5,810 24,215
827 - - - -
- 35 106 2,110 1,559
- 219 657 3,504 28,670
- 1,782 - - -
827 2,418 2,753 12,877 54,444
2,720 - - - -
46,988 - - - —
50,535 2,418 2,753 12,877 54,444
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Market risk
(Audited)

Overview

Sensitivity analysis
(Unaudited)

Value at risk
(Audited)
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Monitoring and limiting market risk

exposure
(Audited)

Governance

Although a valuable guide to risk, VAR should always be
viewed in the context of its limitations:

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Market risk > Sensitivity analysis / Trading and non-trading portfolios

Stress testing
(Audited)

Value at risk of the trading and non-trading
portfolios

Value at risk (excluding credit spread VAR)
(Audited)

2010
uUS$m

266.6
199.8
139.5
285.7

Daily VAR (excluding credit spread) (US$m)
(Unaudited)

300 -
250 -
200 -
150
100 +

50

0 T T T T T 1
Dec-08 Apr-09 Aug-09 Dec-09 Apr-10 Aug-10 Dec-10

Trading and non-trading portfolios

(Audited)

Risk type

For footnotes, see page 174.

Daily revenue

(Unaudited)
Portfolio
Trading  Non-trading 2010
ussm
49.3
37.8

For footnote, see page 174.
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Daily distribution of Global Markets’ trading, balance sheet management and other trading revenues

(Unaudited)
2010

Number of days

30 20 - 0 D 2 30 40 5 60 70 8 9 10 U 120 130 40 440 450

B Profit and loss frequency

For footnote, see page 174.

Trading portfolios
(Audited)

Risk measurement and control

VAR by risk type for trading intent activities
(Audited)

Foreign

exchange and

commodity

UsS$m

At 31 December 2010 24.9
2010 27.2
2010 8.0
2010 62.9

For footnotes, see page 174.
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Number of days

440 -30 -20 -1 O D 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 O U0 120 B0 140 150 .0 O BO 190

M Profit and loss frequency

Interest Credit
rate Equity spread Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m
49.5 13.0 39.1 80.8
51.6 9.2 62.0 113.4
34.7 2.9 33.7 55.0
88.9 21.6 102.5 212.2
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Market risk > Trading and non-trading portfolios / Structural FX exposures / Sensitivity of NIl

Non-trading portfolios
(Audited)

Risk measurement and control

Credit spread risk
(Audited)

Credit spread risk

Gap risk
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Equity securities classified as available for sale

Fair value of equity securities classified as available for sale
(Audited)

2010
USs$bn

2.8
0.5
1.0
3.7

8.0

Overview

For footnotes, see page 174.
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Structural foreign exchange exposures
(Unaudited)

Governance

Sensitivity of net interest income
(Unaudited)

Financial Statements
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Market risk > Sensitivity of NIl / Defined benefit pension schemes

Sensitivity of projected net interest income

(Unaudited)
Rest of Hong Kong Rest of
US dollar Americas dollar Asia Sterling Euro
bloc bloc bloc bloc bloc bloc Total
uUS$m uS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uS$m
Change in 2011 projected net
interest income arising from
a shift in yield curves of:
164 72 191 245 292 (82) 882
(550) (68) (280) (143) (546) 62 (1,525)

For footnote, see page 174.
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Overview

Sensitivity of reported reserves to interest rate movements
(Unaudited)

Maximum Minimum _5

impact impact 5

US$m us$m uUs$m ﬂ_:
At 31 December 2010 .g
(6,162) (6,162) (3,096) 5
(4.29%) (4.29%) (2.1%) =
6,174 6,174 3,108 =y
4.2% 4.2% 2.1% =
s

(¢]

[oX

o

()
o
c
©
c
I
)
>
[®)

&)

HSBC'’s defined benefit pension schemes
(Audited)
2010
uUssbn

32.6
%

Financial Statements

Defined benefit pension schemes
(Audited)

20
66
14

100

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)
Risk > Market risk > HSBC Holdings

HSBC Holdings
(Audited)

Sensitivity of net interest income
(Unaudited)

Sensitivity of HSBC Holdings’ net interest income to interest rate movements
(Unaudited)

Change in projected net interest income as at 31 December US dollar Sterling Euro
arising from a shift in yield curves bloc bloc bloc Total
US$m US$m usS$m usS$m
2010
(6) 19 1 24
(56) 75 62 81
(79) 71 58 50
6 (19) (11) (24)
56 (75) (62) (81)
79 (71) (58) (50)

For footnote, see page 174.
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Repricing gap analysis of HSBC Holdings
(Audited)

At 31 December 2010

Interest repricing gap table

Non-

Up to More than interest

Total 1 year 1-5years  5-10years 10 years bearing
US$m uUS$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
459 339 - - - 120
2,327 - - - - 2,327
21,238 19,351 - 290 605 992
2,025 - 300 900 731 94
92,899 1,785 875 1,164 - 89,075
393 - - - - 393
119,341 21,475 1,175 2,354 1,336 93,001
(2,932) (2,266) - - - (666)
(16,288) = (7,184) (4,740) (3,509) (855)
(827) - - - - (827)
(2,668) = (1,664) = (1,004) =
(1,232) - - - - (1,232)
(13,313) (750) (1,579) (2,140) (8,680) (164)
(81,331) - - (7,450) - (73,881)
(750) = = = = (750)
(119,341) (3,016) (10,427) (14,330) (13,193) (78,375)
- (15,302) 7,221 4,403 3,409 269

= 3,157 (2,031) (7,573) (8,448) 14,895

— 3,157 1,126 (6,447) (14,895) —
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Operational risk > Legal risk / Compliance risk / Security risk // Risk management of insurance operations

Value at risk

HSBC Holdings — foreign exchange VAR
(Audited)

2010
UsS$m

40.4
56.6
40.2
83.2

Operational risk

(Unaudited)

154

Pillar 3
Disclosures 2010

Legal risk
(Unaudited)



Annual Report and Accounts

Compliance risk
(Unaudited)

Annual Report and Accounts Interim
Report

Group security and fraud risk
(Unaudited)

Risk management of insurance
Interim Report operations

(Audited)

155
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Overview of products / Nature and extent of risks / Insurance risk

Overview of insurance products
(Audited)

Nature and extent of risks
(Audited)

Life insurance business

Non-life insurance business
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Insurance risk
(Audited)
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Analysis of life insurance risk — liabilities to policyholders g
(Audited) =
Rest of
Hong Asia- North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific America America Total
us$m UsS$m us$m us$m us$m us$m
At 31 December 2010
1,679 17,989 789 1,004 2,122 23,583 ®
327 17,203 278 - - 17,808 2
565 - 72 36 2 675 e
471 - 31 760 1,622 2,884 §
o
316 786 408 208 498 2,216 o
2,274 3,235 485 = 4,502 10,496
22,052 = 22 - - 22,074
26,005 21,224 1,296 1,004 6,624 56,153
&
C
o
<
(0]
IS
)
©
K3
c
@©
=
=
For footnotes, see page 174.
=
.0
©
£
o
£
5
o
S
o
e mortality and morbidity: @
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Insurance risk

e expense risk

e lapses and surrenders:

Analysis of non-life insurance risk — net written insurance premiums

(Audited)
Rest of
Hong Asia- North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific America America Total
uUS$m usS$m US$m US$m US$m uUS$m
2010

78 174 8 3 37 300
- 15 28 - 267 310
38 29 11 16 22 116
- 20 4 - 2 26
25 - - 53 2 80
3 10 4 - 18 35
20 39 1 9 84 153
164 287 56 81 432 1,020
(169) (117) (25) (13) (201) (525)

For footnotes, see page 174.
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(Audited)
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Balance sheet of insurance manufacturing

subsidiaries
(Audited)
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Balance sheet of insurance manufacturing subsidiaries by type of contract OQ'
(Audited)
Insurance contracts Investment contracts
Term
With Unit-  Annu-  assur- With Unit- Other
DPF linked ities ance Non-life DPF linked Other  assets Total °
US$m US$m US$m  US$m US$m  US$m US$m UsS$m  US$m US$m o
At 31 December 2010 =
17,665 9,763 2,615 2,671 2,231 21511 8,338 3,927 7,157 75,878 =
_ _ Z Z 11 Z _ _ Z 11 g
3
1,206 9,499 413 523 180 5,961 7,624 1,486 1,452 28,344
53 - 1 6 - 229 7 1 4 301
14,068 - 1,847 || 1,661 692 || 14,465 - 1,804 || 4,495 39,032
2,338 264 354 481 1,348 856 707 636 || 1,206 8,190
10 760 400 263 432 - - - 79 1,944
- - - - - - - - 3,440 3,440
189 6 21 398 213 565 14 56 712 2,174 g
17,864 10,529 3,036 3,332 2,876 22,076 8,352 3,983 11,388 83,436 g
(]
S
()
- - - - - - 8,321 3,379 - 11,700 -g
- - - - - - - 439 - 439 =
£
17,808 10,496 2,884 2,891 2,456 22,074 - - - 58,609 5
11 - 20 4 6 - - 1 793 835
- - - - - - - - 2,075 2,075
17,819 10,496 2,904 2,895 2,462 22,074 8,321 3,819 2,868 73,658
- - - - - - - - 9,778 9,778 §
©
17,819 10,496 2,904 2,895 2,462 22,074 8,321 3,819 12,646 83,436 §
o
£
@
o
o
4=
2
@©
=
)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Insurance risk / Financial risks

Balance sheet of insurance manufacturing subsidiaries by type of contract (continued)

For footnotes, see page 174.

Balance sheet of insurance manufacturing subsidiaries by geographical region

(Audited)
Rest of
Hong Asia- North Latin
Europe Kong Pacific America America Total
uS$m usS$m US$m US$m uUS$m uUS$m
At 31 December 2010
36,233 26,278 1,651 2,548 9,168 75,878
- - - - 11 11
16,133 5,550 1,106 - 5,555 28,344
238 50 12 - 1 301
16,758 17,299 247 2,006 2,722 39,032
3,104 3,379 286 542 879 8,190
974 770 33 23 144 1,944
1,102 1,734 165 141 298 3,440
1,060 743 26 9 336 2,174
39,369 29,525 1,875 2,721 9,946 83,436
7,359 4,300 41 - - 11,700
_ - = - 439 439
27,475 21,515 1,381 1,169 7,069 58,609
375 298 39 - 123 835
1,354 289 58 12 362 2,075
36,563 26,402 1,519 1,181 7,993 73,658
2,806 3,123 356 1,540 1,953 9,778
39,369 29,525 1,875 2,721 9,946 83,436
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For footnotes, see page 174.

Financial risks
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Financial risks > Market risk

Financial assets held by insurance manufacturing subsidiaries

(Audited)
Life linked Life non-linked Non-life Other
contracts contracts insurance assets Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
- - 11 - 11
17,123 9,589 180 1,452 28,344
10 119 - 10 139
6,660 3,281 180 847 10,968
10,453 6,189 - 595 17,237
- 16,015 152 908 17,075
- 17,830 540 3,587 21,957
- 10 - 31 41
- 36 140 217 393
- 17,776 391 3,210 21,377
- 8 9 129 146
7 290 - 4 301
971 4,665 1,348 1,206 8,190
18,101 48,389 2,231 7,157 75,878
For footnotes, see page 174.
Market risk
(Audited)
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Description of market risk

(Audited)




Categories of guaranteed benefits

3
2
2
(<)
>
o)

2

2

3

Liabilities to policyholders e

(Audited) &

2010 e

Investment E

returns e

Amount of implied by Current B

reserve guarantee yields =

usS$m % % =

1,491 00-85 15-16.2 <

642 0.0-6.0 2.1-16.8 o
532 6.0-—9.0 55-55
19,980 0.0-45 0.0-5.9
841 45-6.0 6.1-8.5
15,445 = 2.0-4.0

For footnotes, see page 174. §
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Financial risks > Market risk / Credit risk

How the exposure to market risk is measured
(Audited)

Standard measures for quantifying market risks

How market risk is managed
(Audited) °

Techniques for managing market risk
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Sensitivity of HSBC'’s insurance manufacturing subsidiaries to risk factors

(Audited)
2010

Effect on Effect on
profit for total >
the year equity o
us$m us$m >
(<)
72 (132) 5

(86) 131

76 76

(76) (76)

21 21
(21) (21) 3
(31) (74) '3
o
©
)
c
©
=
=
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Credit risk Z
(Audited) 2
Description of credit risk o 2
How credit risk is managed 8
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Financial risks > Credit risk

Credit quality
(Audited)

Treasury bills, other eligible bills and debt securities in HSBC's insurance manufacturing subsidiaries

(Audited)

At 31 December 2010

Supporting liabilities under non-linked
insurance and investment contracts

Supporting shareholders’ funds

Total

Neither past due nor impaired

Sub-
Strong Good Satisfactory standard Impaired Total
us$m ussm ussm Us$m US$m ussm
9 - 2 - - 11
3,126 88 330 36 - 3,580
118 - 1 - - 119
3,008 88 329 36 - 3,461
32,164 1,948 250 158 - 34,520
- - 10 - - 10
176 - - - - 176
31,988 1,948 240 158 - 34,334
35,299 2,036 582 194 - 38,111
492 286 75 4 = 857
10 - - - - 10
482 286 75 4 - 847
3,443 740 101 82 - 4,366
- - 31 - - 31
217 - - - - 217
3,226 740 70 82 - 4,118
3,935 1,026 176 86 - 5,223
9 - 2 - - 11
3,618 374 405 40 - 4,437
128 - 1 - - 129
3,490 374 404 40 - 4,308
35,607 2,688 351 240 - 38,886
- - 41 - - 41
393 - - - - 393
35,214 2,688 310 240 - 38,452
39,234 3,062 758 280 - 43,334
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For footnotes, see page 174.

Issuers of treasury bills, other eligible bills and debt securities in HSBC's insurance manufacturing subsidiaries

(Audited)

At 31 December 2010

Treasury  Other eligible Debt

bills bills securities Total
UsS$m UsS$m US$m US$m
170 121 9,401 9,692

- - 915 915

- - 60 60

— 272 32,395 32,667

170 393 42,771 43,334
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > Financial risks > Liquidity risk

Reinsurers’ share of liabilities under
(Audited)

At 31 December 2010

For footnotes, see page 174.
Liquidity risk
(Audited)

Description of liquidity risk

How liquidity risk is managed

insurance contracts

Neither past due nor impaired Past due

Sub- but not
Strong Good Satisfactory standard impaired Total
uS$m UsS$m uss$m uss$m ussm us$m
44 716 - - - 760
997 11 76 12 9 1,105
1,041 727 76 12 9 1,865
30 8 30 1 10 79
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Expected maturity of insurance contract liabilities

(Audited)
Expected cash flows (undiscounted)

Within 1 year 1-5 years 5-15years  Over 15 years Total
ussm us$m us$m Us$m us$m

At 31 December 2010
1,140 1,157 83 76 2,456
2,463 11,178 18,839 21,093 53,573
485 2,557 6,366 10,724 20,132
4,088 14,892 25,288 31,893 76,161

For footnote, see page 174.

Remaining contractual maturity of investment contract liabilities
(Audited)
Liabilities under investment contracts by
insurance manufacturing subsidiaries

Linked Other Investment

investment investment contracts
contracts contracts with DPF Total
uUs$m US$m US$m US$m

At 31 December 2010

391 446 11 848
940 - 11 951
1,182 - - 1,182
2,133 - - 2,133
3,675 3,372 22,052 29,099
8,321 3,818 22,074 34,213

For footnotes, see page 174.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Risk management of insurance operations > PVIF insurance business / Economic assumptions / Non-economic assumptions

Present value of in-force long-term

insurance business
(Audited)

inter alia

Movements in total equity and PVIF of insurance operations

(Audited)
2010

PVIF

Total included in
equity total equity
US$m uS$m
8,580 2,780
737 737
(85) (85)

20 20

58 58

19 19
(38) (38)
858 -
(222) (51)
(149) =
9,778 3,440

For footnotes, see page 174.

Key assumptions used in the computation of PVIF for main life insurance operations

2010
UK Hong Kong France
% % %
3.46 3.10 3.15
7.00 11.00 8.00
3.76 3.00 2.00

Economic assumptions
(Audited)
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Sensitivity of PVIF to changes in economic

assumptions
(Audited)

2010
US$m

Overview

231
(190)
(179)

205

Non-economic assumptions
(Audited)
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Sensitivity analysis S
(Audited) O
Effect on profit for the year Effect on total equity
to 31 December at 31 December
Life Non-life Total Life Non-life Total
usS$m usS$m US$m uUS$m uUS$m uS$m
2010
= (211) (211) = (212) (211)
- 211 211 - 211 211 o)
C
o
(55) = (55) (55) = (55) £
©
66 - 66 66 - 66 b
(203) - (203) (203) - (203) =
363 - 363 363 - 363 g
(63) (11) (74) (63) (11) (74) ©
63 11 74 63 1 74 =
=
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o
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Other material risks > Reputational risk / Pension risk / Sustainability risk

Other material risks

Reputational risk
(Unaudited)

The safeguarding of our reputation is of
paramount importance to our continued
prosperity and is the responsibility of every
member of staff.

Pension risk
(Unaudited)

A deficit in a defined benefit plan may arise from a
number of factors, including
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The DBS principal plan — asset allocation

2010
%

15.5
56.5
10.5
9.0
8.5

100.0

For footnote, see page 174.
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Sustainability risk
(Unaudited)

Assessing the environmental and social
impacts of providing finance to our
customers has been firmly embedded into
our overall risk management processes.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Other material risks > Residual value risk // Footnotes to Risk

Residual value risk
(Unaudited)

Footnotes to Risk

Credit risk

The amount of the loan commitments reflects, where relevant, the expected level of take-up of pre-approved loan offers made by
mailshots to personal customers. In addition to those amounts, there is a further maximum possible exposure to credit risk of
US$220.2bn (2009: US862.3bn), reflecting the full take-up of such irrevocable loan commitments. The take-up of such offers is
generally at modest levels.

A change in the write-off period in North America during 2009 resulted in an acceleration of write-offs which reduced residential
mortgages by US$31.9bn, other personal loans by US$1.3bn and total personal lending by US$3.3bn, with a corresponding reduction in
impairment allowances. There was no significant effect on net loans and advances or loan impairment charges.

Residential mortgages include Hong Kong Government Home Ownership Scheme loans of US$3.5bn at 31 December 2010

(2009: US$3.5bn). Where disclosed, earlier comparatives were 2008: US$33.9bn; 2007: US$3.9bn; 2006: US$4.1bn.

Other personal loans and advances include second lien mortgages and other property-related lending.

Other commercial loans and advances include advances in respect of agriculture, transport, energy and utilities.

Included within ‘Total gross loans and advances to customers’ (‘TGLAC’) is credit card lending of US$62bn (2009: US$68bn,).

Where disclosed, earlier comparatives were 2008: US$75bn; 2007: US$83bn; 2006: US$75bn.

The above numbers for North America include a reclassification within the corporate and commercial lending category to reflect a
more accurate presentation of lending in the region.

The impairment allowances on loans and advances to banks relate to the geographical regions, Europe, Middle East and North
America.

These balances were between 0.75% and 1% of total assets. All other balances were above 1%.

We do not have material retail exposures in any of the eurozone countries listed in this table.

Includes balances at central banks. Lending to banks comprises non-trading loans and advances to banks including reverse repurchase
transactions.

Derivative assets net of collateral and derivative liabilities for which a legally enforceable right of offset exists.

Includes residential mortgages of HSBC Bank USA and HSBC Finance.

Comprising Hong Kong, Rest of Asia-Pacific, Middle East and Latin America.

Negative equity arises when the value of the property used to secure a loan is below the balance outstanding on the loan, generally
based on values at the balance sheet date.

Loan-to-value ratios are generally based on values at the balance sheet date.

HSBC Finance lending is shown on a management basis and includes loans transferred to HSBC USA Inc. which are managed by
HSBC Finance.

Interest-only (affordability mortgages) are loans which are classified as ‘interest only’ for initial period before reverting to repayment.
As a consequence, in the table ‘Mortgage lending products’ on page 109 these balances are included in the category ‘Affordability
mortgages, including ARMs’.

Stated income lending forms a subset of total mortgage services lending across all categories.

By states which individually account for 5% or more of HSBC Finance's US customer loan portfolio.

The average loss on sale of foreclosed properties is calculated as cash proceeds after deducting selling costs, commissions and other
ancillary costs, minus the book value of the property when it was moved to assets held for sale, divided by the book value of the
property when it was moved to assets held for sale.

The average total loss on foreclosed properties sold includes both the loss on sale (see footnote 21) and the cumulative write-downs
recognised on the loans up to and upon classification as assets held for sale. This average total loss on foreclosed properties is
expressed as a percentage of the book value of the property prior to its transfer to assets held for sale.

Percentages are expressed as a function of the relevant loans and receivables balance.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, real estate secured delinquency included US$4.2bn and US$3.3bn, respectively, of loans that we
carried at the lower of cost on net realisable value.

We observe the disclosure convention that, in addition to those classified as EL9 to EL10, retail accounts classified ELI to ELS that are
delinquent by 90 days or more are considered impaired, unless individually they have been assessed as not impaired (see page 117,
‘Past due but not impaired gross financial instruments’).

The EL percentage is derived through a combination of PD and LGD, and may exceed 100% in circumstances where the LGD is above
100% reflecting the cost of recoveries.

Impairment allowances are not reported for financial instruments whereby the carrying amount is reduced directly for impairment and
not through the use of an allowance account.

Impairment is not measured for assets held in trading portfolios or designated at fair value as assets in such portfolios are managed
according to movements in fair value, and the fair value movement is taken directly to the income statement. Consequently, we report
all such balances under ‘Neither past due nor impaired’.

Loans and advances to customers includes asset-backed securities that have been externally rated as strong (2010: US$4.1bn, 2009:
US$5.7bn), good (2010: US$627m,; 2009: US$881my), satisfactory (2010: US$452m; 2009: US$311m), sub-standard (2010: US$669m;
2009: US$468m) and impaired (2010: US$29m; 2009: US$460m).

Impaired loans and advances are those classified as CRR 9, CRR 10, EL 9 or EL 10 and all retail loans 90 days or more past due,
unless individually they have been assessed as not impaired (see page 117, ‘Past due but not impaired gross financial instruments’).
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Collectively assessed loans and advances comprise homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant, and
loans subject to individual assessment where no impairment has been identified on an individual basis, but on which a collective
impairment allowance has been calculated to reflect losses which have been incurred but not yet identified.

Collectively assessed loans and advances not impaired are those classified as CRR1 to CRRS and ELI to ELS but excluding retail loans
90 days past due.

Net of repo transactions, settlement accounts and stock borrowings.

As a percentage of loans and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers, as applicable.

Includes movement in impairment allowances against banks.

See table below ‘Net loan impairment charge to the income statement by geographical region’.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are allocated to geographical segments based on the location of the office booking the
allowances or provisions. Consequently, the collectively assessed impairment allowances booked in Hong Kong may cover assets
booked in branches located outside Hong Kong, principally in Rest of Asia-Pacific, as well as those booked in Hong Kong.

Total includes holdings of ABSs issued by Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae.

‘Directly held’ includes assets held by Solitaire where we provide first loss protection and assets held directly by the Group.
Impairment charges allocated to capital note holders represent impairments where losses would be borne by external third-party
investors in the structures.

Mortgage-backed securities (‘MBS’s), asset-backed securities (‘ABS’s) and collateralised debt obligations (‘CDO’s).

High grade assets rated AA or AAA.

Gains or losses on the net principal exposure (footnote 49) recognised in the income statement as a result of changes in the fair value of
the asset.

Fair value gains and losses on the net principal exposure (footnote 49) recognised in other comprehensive income as a result of the
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale assets.

Realised fair value gains and losses on the net principal exposure (footnote 49) recognised in the income statement as a result of the
disposal of assets or the receipt of cash flows from assets.

Reclassified from equity on impairment, disposal or payment. This includes impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of the net principal exposure (footnote 49) of available-for-sale assets. Payments are the contractual cash flows received on the
assets.

The gross principal is the redemption amount on maturity or, in the case of an amortising instrument, the sum of the future redemption
amounts through the residual life of the security.

A credit default swap (‘CDS’) gross protection is the gross principal of the underlying instrument that is protected by CDSs.

Net principal exposure is the gross principal amount of assets that are not protected by CDSs. It includes assets that benefit from
monoline protection, except where this protection is purchased with a CDS.

Carrying amount of the net principal exposure.

Net exposure after legal netting and any other relevant credit mitigation prior to deduction of the credit risk adjustment.

Cumulative fair value adjustment recorded against exposures to OTC derivative counterparties to reflect their creditworthiness.
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Funded exposures represent the loan amount advanced to the customer, less any fair value write-downs, net of fees held on deposit. §
Unfunded exposures represent the contractually committed loan facility amount not yet drawn down by the customer, less any fair value ©
write-downs, net of fees held on deposit. <
2

Liquidity and funding S
2009 comparative data have been re-presented in line with the classification used in 2010. This resulted in an increase in the ‘On
demand’ time band of US$3273,078m for ‘Loan and other credit-related commitments’ and US$10,450m for ‘Financial guarantees and
similar contracts’. There was an equivalent reduction across the other time bands.
Figures provided for HSBC Bank plc and The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation incorporate all overseas branches.
Subsidiaries of these entities are not included unless there is unrestricted transferability of liquidity between the subsidiaries and the
parent.
This comprises our other main banking subsidiaries and, as such, includes businesses spread across a range of locations, in many of "
which we may require a higher ratio of net liquid assets to customer liabilities to reflect local market conditions. =
Unused committed sources of secured funding for which eligible assets were held. ()
Client-originated asset exposures relate to consolidated multi-seller conduits (see page 363). These vehicles provide funding to our g
customers by issuing debt secured by a diversified pool of customer-originated assets. =
HSBC-managed asset exposures relate to consolidated securities investment conduits, primarily Solitaire and Mazarin (see page 362). h
These vehicles issue debt secured by ABSs which are managed by HSBC. Of the total contingent liquidity risk under this category, =
US$8.1bn was already funded on-balance sheet at 31 December 2010 (2009: US$7.6bn) leaving a net contingent exposure of 'S
US$17.5bn (2009: US$21.5bn). =
Other conduit exposures relate to third-party sponsored conduits (see page 364). £
The five largest committed liquidity facilities provided to customers other than facilities to conduits. 5=
The total of all committed liquidity facilities provided to the largest market sector, other than facilities to conduits.

Market risk
The structural foreign exchange risk is monitored using sensitivity analysis (see page 351). The reporting of commodity risk is g
consolidated with foreign exchange risk and is not applicable to non-trading portfolios. ‘=
The interest rate risk on the fixed-rate securities issued by HSBC Holdings is not included in the Group VAR. The management of this g
risk is described on page 148. 5
Credit spread sensitivity is reported separately for insurance operations (see page 165). =
The standard deviation measures the variation of daily revenues about the mean value of those revenues. -
The effect of any month-end adjustments, not attributable to a specific daily market move, is spread evenly over the days in the month in %
question. 5
Trading intent portfolios include positions arising from market-making and position taking. =
Trading credit spread VAR was previously reported in the Group trading credit VAR. See page 148. %
The total VAR is non-additive across risk types due to diversification effects. It incorporates credit spread VAR. ﬁ
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Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Risk > Footnotes to Risk // Capital > Capital management

Investments in private equity are primarily made through managed funds that are subject to limits on the amount of investment.
Potential new commitments are subject to risk appraisal to ensure that industry and geographical concentrations remain within
acceptable levels for the portfolio as a whole. Regular reviews are performed to substantiate the valuation of the investments within the
portfolio.

Investments held to facilitate ongoing business include holdings in government-sponsored enterprises and local stock exchanges.
Instead of assuming that all interest rates move together, HSBC groups its interest rate exposures into currency blocs whose rates are
considered likely to move together.

Risk management of insurance operations

HSBC has no insurance manufacturing subsidiaries in the Middle East.

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features (‘DPF’) can give policyholders the contractual
right to receive, as a supplement to their guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that may be a significant portion of the total
contractual benefits, but whose amount and timing are determined by HSBC. These additional benefits are contractually based on the
performance of a specified pool of contracts or assets, or the profit of the company issuing the contracts.

Although investment contracts with DPF are financial investments, HSBC continues to account for them as insurance contracts as
permitted by IFRS 4.

Net written insurance premiums represent gross written premiums less gross written premiums ceded to reinsurers.

Term assurance includes credit life insurance.

Other assets comprise shareholder assets.

Present value of in-force long-term insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF.

Does not include associated insurance companies, Ping An Insurance, SABB Takaful Company and Bao Viet, or joint venture insurance
companies, Hana Life and Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited.

Does not include associated insurance companies, Ping An Insurance and SABB Takaful Company or joint venture insurance
companies, Hana Life and Canara HSBC Oriental Bank of Commerce Life Insurance Company Limited.

Comprise life linked insurance contracts and linked long-term investment contracts.

Comprise life non-linked insurance contracts and non-linked long-term investment contracts.

Comprises non-life insurance contracts.

Comprise mainly loans and advances to banks, cash and intercompany balances with other non-insurance legal entities.

The table excludes contracts where the risk is 100% reinsured.

Impairment is not measured for debt securities held in trading portfolios or designated at fair value, as assets in such portfolios are
managed according to movements in fair value, and the fair value movement is taken directly to the income statement. Consequently,
we report all such balances under ‘neither past due nor impaired’.

Shareholders’ funds comprise solvency and unencumbered assets.

In most cases, policyholders have the option to terminate their contracts at any time and receive the surrender values of their policies.
These may be significantly lower than the amounts shown above.

Value of net new business during the year is the present value of the projected stream of profits from the business.

Experience variances include the effect of the difference between demographic, expense and persistency assumptions used in the
previous PVIF calculation and actual experience observed during the year.

Pension risk

In 2010, alternative assets included ABSs, MBSs and infrastructure assets. In 2006, alternative assets included loans and infrastructure
assets.
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Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Capital > Capital measurement and allocation

Capital measurement and allocation Regulatory and accounting consolidations
(Unaudited)

Pillar 1 capital requirements

Credit risk capital requirements

Regulatory capital
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Market risk capital requirement
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Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Capital > Capital measurement and allocation / Future developments

Capital structure at 31 December

2010
us$m
Composition of regulatory capital
(Audited)
Tier 1 capital
142,746

147,667
(1,405)
(5,851)

2,335

3,917

7,248
(2,426)
(501)
(404)

1,794

3,843
(889)
1,676

(3,121)
285

(32,341)

(28,001)
(1,467)
241
(3,114)

Core tier 1 capital 116,116

17,926

1,405
2,426
14,095

(863)

(1,104)
241

Tier 1 capital 133,179

Tier 2 capital
52,713

3,121
3,109
2,781
43,402
300

(18,337)

(13,744)
(1,467)
(3,114)

(12)

Total regulatory capital 167,555

Risk-weighted assets
(Unaudited)
890,696
50,175
38,679
123,563

1,103,113

180



2010

%
Capital ratios
(Unaudited)
10.5
121 2
15.2 >
2
For footnotes, see page 182. (@)
Source and application of tier 1 capital
2010
uss$m
Movement in tier 1 capital 2
(Audited) .2
122,157 3
13,218 e
13,159 &
o
59 c
g
(3,827) i
(6,350) (]
2,523 o
=
679 ©
180 8_
= o
180
2,368
(526)
(1,070)
133,179 ©
g
Movement in risk-weighted assets ©
(Unaudited) g
1,133,168 g
(30,055) )
1,103,113
For footnotes, see page 182.
Movement in tier 1 capital
(Audited)
&
C
9]
S
(0]
IS
)
©
Future developments §
(Unaudited) =
L
Movement in risk-weighted assets
(Unaudited) c
A global regulatory -%
framework for more resilient banks and banking £
systems International framework for liquidity i)
risk measurement, standards and monitoring %
S
o
=
e
@©
45
%)
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Report of the Directors: Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Capital > Future developments // Governance > Corporate Governance Report / Directors

Impact of Basel lll
(Unaudited)

Footnotes to Capital

Includes externally verified profits for the year to 31 December 2010.

Mainly comprises unrealised losses on available-for-sale debt securities within special purpose entities which are excluded from the
regulatory consolidation.

Under FSA rules, unrealised gains/losses on debt securities net of tax must be excluded from capital resources.

Under FSA rules, the defined benefit liability may be substituted with the additional funding that will be paid into the relevant schemes
over the following five year period.

Mainly comprise investments in insurance entities.
Under FSA rules, collective impairment allowances on loan portfolios on the standardised approach are included in tier 2 capital.
Rights issue excludes US$493m of losses arising on derivative contracts and certain fees, which are recognised in the income statement.
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Corporate Governance Report / Directors

Governance Directors
Page D J Flint
183
3
183 )
>
187 g
187 le)
187
189
The Board 189
Corporate governance codes 194
194
Group Management Board 194 2
Group Audit Committee 195 .g
Group Risk Committee 197 &
Remuneration Committee 201 =
Nomination Committee 201 g
Corporate Sustainability Committee 202 o
202 i
204 =]
o
204 =
=
206 g
Employment of disabled persons 207 8
Remuneration policy 207
Employee share plans 207
Subsidiary company share plans 209
Employee compensation and benefits 211 My Flint has extensive governance experience gained
Bank pavroll tax 212 through membership of the Boards of HSBC and BP as well as ©
pay considerable knowledge of finance and risk management in g
212 banking, multinational financial reporting, treasury and g
Sustainability governance 213 securities trading operations. In 2006 he was honoured with a o
Sustainability risk 213 CBE in rzcogl}[itt;;onloftlftistserfvicc‘zs t? thzfjnance tz’ndtust7. He 8
is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants o, (0]
Healti.r and safety ) 214 Scotland and the Association of Corporate Treasurers and he
Supplier payment policy 214 is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Management
214 Accountants.
Issued share capital 214
Rights and obligations attaching to shares 214 ST Gulliver
Share capital during 2010 216
217 12
Dividends for 2010 217 5
Dividends for 2011 218 £
Communication with shareholders 218 E
Notifiable interests in share capital 218 2
Dealings in HSBC Holdings shares 218 -g
Annual General Meeting 219 %
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Directors

My Gulliver is a career banker with over 30 years’ V H C Cheng
international experience with HSBC. He has held a number of
key roles in the Group’s operations worldwide, including in
London, Hong Kong, Tokyo, Kuala Lumpur and the United
Arab Emirates. He played a leading role in developing and
expanding Global Banking and Markets, the wholesale
banking division of the Group with operations in over
65 countries and territories.

S A Catz

Ms Catz brings to the Board a background in
international business leadership, having helped transform
Oracle into the second biggest producer of management
software and the world s leading supplier of software for
information management.

LML Cha (Appointed 1 March 2011)

Mr Cheng is a career banker with extensive international
business experience particularly in Asia. Mr Cheng is Vice
President of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and was
chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and
Futures Commission and of the Standing Committee on
Directorate Salaries and Conditions of Service of the Hong
Kong Government. Chairman of the Council of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong since October 2009. He was
seconded to the Hong Kong Government’s Central Policy Unit
Sfrom 1989 to 1991 serving as an adviser to the Governor of
Hong Kong.

M KT Cheung

Mrs Cha has worked in the US and Asia and has
extensive regulatory and policy making experience in the
finance and securities sector in Hong Kong and mainland
China. Mrs Cha was Vice Chairman of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (‘CSRC’) from January 2001 to
September 2004. She was appointed to the post by the State
Council and became the first person outside mainland China
to join the Central Government of the People's Republic of
China at the vice-ministerial rank. Prior to her post at the
CSRC, Mrs Cha worked in the Securities and Futures
Commission in Hong Kong from 1991 to 2000, becoming its
Deputy Chairman in 1998.
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Dr Cheung brings to the Board a background in
international business and financial accounting, particularly
in Greater China and the wider Asian economy. He retired
from KPMG Hong Kong in 2003 after more than 30 years’
distinguished service with the firm. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

J D Coombe

Mr Coombe brings to the Board a background in
international business, financial accounting and the
pharmaceutical industry. As Chief Financial Officer of
GlaxoSmithKline he had responsibility for the Group’s
financial operations globally. He is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

R A Fairhead

Mrs Fairhead brings to the Board a background in
international industry, publishing, finance and general
management. As the former Finance Director of Pearson plc
she oversaw the day to day running of the finance function and
was directly responsible for global financial reporting and
control, tax and treasury. She has a Master’s in Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School.
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A A Flockhart

Mr Flockhart is a career banker, being an emerging
markets specialist with over 35 years’ experience with HSBC
across Latin America, the Middle East, US and Asia. In 2007
he was honoured with a CBE in recognition of his services to
British business and charitable services and institutions in
Mexico.

J W J Hughes-Hallett,

Mr Hughes-Hallett brings to the Board a background in

financial accounting and the management of a broad range of

businesses in a number of international industries, including
aviation, insurance, property, shipping, manufacturing and
trading in the Far East, UK, US and Australia. He is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Directors / Senior Management

W S H Laidlaw Mr Mackay has extensive financial and international
experience. He has worked in London, Paris, US and Asia. He
is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland.

G Morgan

Mr Laidlaw brings to the Board significant international
experience, particularly in the energy sector, having had
responsibility for businesses in four continents. He has a
Master’s in Business Administration from INSEAD. He is a
member of the UK Prime Minister’s Business Advisory Group
and is the Senior Independent Director of the Department for
Transport.

My Morgan brings to the Board a background in
technical, operational, financial and management positions
and has led large international companies in the energy and
engineering sectors. He has been recognised as Canada's most
respected Chief Executive Officer in a national poll of Chief
Executives. He is currently a business columnist for Canada's
largest national newspaper. He was appointed a Member of the
Order of Canada on 30 December 2010 for his contributions as
a business and community leader and as a philanthropist.

J R Lomax

N R N Murthy

Mr Murthy brings to the Board experience in information
technology, corporate governance and education, particularly
in India. He founded Infosys Technologies Limited in India in
1981 and was its Chief Executive Officer for 21 years. Under
his leadership, Infosys established a global footprint and was
listed on NASDAQ in 1999. During his career he has worked

Ms Lomax brings to the Board business experience in in France and India.

both the public and private sectors and a deep knowledge of

the operation of the UK government and the financial system. .
Sir Simon Robertson

I 3 Mackay
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Sir Brian brings to the Board extensive experience in
money and bond markets, insurance, private equity, futures,
options and commodities trading internationally. He
established the London International Financial Futures and

Options Exch in the 1980s and led the Exch ’
Sir Simon brings to the Board a background in plions Exchanse i e § and fed the Bxchdnge s

it tional e advi h Ith . development of its electronic trading platform in the mid- 2
internationat corporate aavisory with a wed: Of experience 1990s. He was the first chairman of Resolution plc, established =
in mergers and acquisitions, merchant banking, investment . . . . . b
! i ; : to consolidate life assurance business in the UK. He is a IS
banking and financial markets. During his career he has member of the Guild for International Bankers g’
worked in France, Germany, the UK and the US. In June 2010 : @)
he was honoured with a knighthood in recognition of his o
. . Independent non-executive Director
services to business.
J LThornton Secretary
R G Barber 2
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Adviser to the Board

D J Shaw

Governance

Mr Thornton brings to the Board experience that bridges Grou P Man ag i ng Directors

developed and developing economies and the public and YE’
private sectors. He has a deep knowledge of financial services . o
and education systems, particularly in Asia. During his A Almeida =
23 year career with Goldman Sachs, he played a key role in %
the firm's global development and was Chairman of Goldman N
Sachs Asia. —
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Senior Management // Board of Directors > The Board

M M Moses

S Assaf
B Robertson
N S K Booker P AThurston
PT SWong
A M Keir
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Board of Directors >The Board

Attendance record

Meetings attended in 2010

Remu- Corporate
Group Audit  Group Risk  Nomination neration Sustainability
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
9 6 4 3] 9 5
8 - - - - -
7 = = = = 1
8 4 - - - -
9 6 4 9 -
2 - - -
8 5 3 2 - -
9 - - - -
9 - - - - -
4 - - - - 3
8 - - - - -
8 = = 2 = =
9 - - - - -
8 2 2 & - -
9 = = 9 =
8 6 4 - - -
4 = = = 4 2
7 - - - 6 -
7 - - - - 5
9 = = 3 =
8 - - - 9 -
8 - - & -

All members appointed on 26 February 2010 when the Committee was established. All members eligible to attend 4 Committee
Meetings.

Appointed a member on 28 May 2010 — eligible to attend 2 Committee Meetings.

Appointed a member on 1 March 2010 — eligible to attend 4 Committee Meetings.

Retired as a Director on 28 May 2010 — eligible to attend 4 Board Meetings.

Appointed a member on 3 December 2010 — not eligible to attend any Committee Meetings.

Retired as a Director on 28 May 2010 — eligible to attend 4 Board Meetings and 3 Committee Meetings.

Appointed a member of the Nomination Committee on 26 February 2010 and retired as a Director on 3 December 2010 — eligible to
attend 8 Board Meetings and 2 Committee Meetings.

Ceased to be a member on 1 March 2010 — eligible to attend 2 Committee Meetings.

Appointed a Director on 3 December 2010 — eligible to attend one Board Meeting.

Retired as a Director on 28 May 2010 — eligible to attend 4 Board Meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee Meetings and 3 Corporate
Sustainability Committee Meetings.
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Board of Directors >The Board

Information, induction and ongoing
development

Performance evaluation
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Board of Directors >The Board // Board committees > Group Management Board / Group Audit Committee

Conflicts of interest, indemnification of
Directors, relevant audit information and
contracts of significance

Board committees

Group Management Board

Corporate governance codes
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)
Board committees > Group Audit Committee / Group Risk Committee
e

Committee’s activities
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Overview

Group Risk Committee

Role and membership of the Group Risk
Committee

Arrangements relating to the external
auditor

Operating & Financial Review

Review of Corporate Governance in UK Banks and
other Financial Industry Entities,

Governance

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)
Board committees > Group Risk Committee
L

Risk governance

Risk appetite
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Governance

Top and emerging risks
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Board committees > Group Risk Committee / Remuneration Committee / Nomination Committee

Stress testing

Committee activities
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Committee activities

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

Role and membership of the Nomination
Committee
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Board committees > Corporate Sustainability Committee // Internal control

Annual
Report and Accounts 2010

Corporate Sustainability Committee

Internal control
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Internal control / Going concern basis / Directors’ interests

Going concern basis

Directors’ interests
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Directors’ interests

At
1 January
2010

466,165
19,676
21,300

177,101

269,008

2,731,057
67,755
30,948
34,217
78,515

140,093

36,378

At 31 December 2010

Beneficial
owner

485,493
20,341

144,915

2,553,592
29,532
34,217
81,166

8,623

37,607

Child
under 18
or spouse

189,072

177,485

10,250

Jointly
with
another
person

21,300

Trustee

33,766
230,112
39,577
1,416

167,750

Total
interests

674,565
20,341
21,300

178,681

230,112

2,731,077
39,577
30,948
34,217
81,166

176,373
10,250
37,607

Details of executive Directors’ other interests in HSBC Holdings ordinary shares of US$0.50 arising from the HSBC Holdings savings-
related share option plans and the HSBC Share Plan are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 232 and 233. At

31 December 2010, the aggregate interests under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong in HSBC Holdings ordinary
shares of US$0.50, including interests arising through employee share plans were: V H C Cheng — 1,546,752; D J Flint — 968,179;

A A Flockhart — 1,231,453, S T Gulliver — 4,349,161 and 1 J Mackay — 289,250. Each Director’s total interests represents less than

0.02% of the shares in issue.
Non-beneficial.
Interest at 3 December 2010 — date of appointment.

Interest in listed American Depositary Shares, which are categorised as equity derivatives under Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Increase in Directors’ interests since 31 December 2010

Scrip dividend.

Beneficial
owner

10,384
156
6,074
7,624
12,376

1,939
620
65
288

Child under
18 or spouse

1,446

Trustee

Comprises scrip dividend, the automatic reinvestment of dividend income by an Individual Savings Account manager (38 shares), the
acquisition of shares in the HSBC Holdings UK Share Incentive Plan through regular monthly contributions (18 shares) and the
automatic reinvestment of dividend income on shares held in the plan (17 shares).

Non-beneficial.

205

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Directors’ interests / Employees > Disabled persons / Remuneration policy / Employee share plans

Notice of Annual
General Meeting

Employees
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Employees > Employee share plans / Subsidiary company share plans

HSBC Holdings Savings-Related Share Option Plan

All-employee share option plans

At Awarded
1 Jan during

2010 year

76,566,328 6,183,303

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.57.

HSBC Holdings Savings-Related Share Option Plan. International

At Awarded
1 Jan during

2010 year

29,664,282 7,585,594

12,073,216 2,535,387

3,283,710 555,803

50,938,242 5,157,129

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.50.

Discretionary Share Plans

208

Exercised
during
year

4,536,734

Exercised
during
year

5,260,044

1,418,224

356,578

5,258,144

Lapsed
during
year

10,475,032

Lapsed
during
year

3,328,890

2,290,964

354,427

3,408,335

At
31 Dec
2010

67,737,865

At
31 Dec
2010

28,660,942

10,899,415

3,128,508

47,428,892



HSBC Holdings Executive Share Option Scheme

At Exercised Lapsed At
1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010 2
6,706,848 4,228,503 2,478,345 = %
>
The HSBC Holdings Executive Share Option Scheme expired on 26 May 2000. No options have been granted under the Scheme since ©
that date.
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.85.
HSBC Holdings Group Share Option Plan
3
At Exercised Lapsed At .g
1Jan during during 31 Dec =
2010 year year 2010 =
2
157,719,485 1,015,349 3,946,021 152,758,115 0
i
The HSBC Holdings Group Share Option Plan expired on 26 May 2005. No options have been granted under the Plan since that date. o]
The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.80. CCD
s
HSBC Share Plan o
o
(@)
At Exercised Lapsed At
1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010
86,046 - - 86,046
©
o
c
e
Subsidiary company share plans 5
>
HSBC France and subsidiary company &
HSBC France
2
c
At Exercised Lapsed At g
1Jan during during 31 Dec Q
2010 year year 2010 S
wn
604,250 - 604,250 = =
K3
c
HSBC Private Bank France 2
T
At Exercised Lapsed At
1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010
c
e
291,520 4,420 - 287,100 E
Following exercise of the options, the HSBC Private Bank France shares will be exchanged for HSBC Holdings ordinary shares in the §
ratio of 2.099984 HSBC Holdings ordinary shares for each HSBC Private Bank France share. At 31 December 2010, The CCF =
Employee Benefit Trust 2001 held 989,502 HSBC Holdings ordinary shares which may be exchanged for HSBC Private Bank France 3
shares arising from the exercise of these options. o
2
o
©
<
99}
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Employees > Subsidiary company share plans / Employee compensation and benefits

HSBC Finance

HSBC Finance: 1996 Long-Term Executive Incentive Compensation Plan

At Exercised Lapsed At

1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010
18,105,959 306,964 6,681,169 11,117,826

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.44.

HSBC Bank Bermuda

HSBC Bank Bermuda: Executive Share Option Plan 1997

At Exercised Lapsed At
1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010
190,221 4,781 123,539 61,901

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was £6.89.

HSBC Bank Bermuda: Share Option Plan 2000

At Exercised Lapsed At

1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010
2,250,966 - - 2,250,966
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HSBC Bank Bermuda: Directors’ Share Option Plan

At Exercised Lapsed At

1Jan during during 31 Dec
2010 year year 2010 2
2
o
40,515 - 14,349 26,166 C>)

HSBC InvestDirect (India) Limited

2
.2
>
(]
o
HSBC InvestDirect (India) Limited: Employee Stock Option Scheme 2006 2
G
=
At Exercised Lapsed At o
1Jan during during 31 Dec o
2010 year year 2010 g
873,000 873,000 - - g
o
The weighted average closing price of the shares, as quoted on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the National Stock Exchange of o

India Limited, immediately before the dates on which options were exercised was Rs298.76 and Rs297.73 respectively for those shares
exercised before trading in the shares ceased on 8 July 2010. The Company was delisted from the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 15 July 2010.

Employee compensation and benefits

®
o
c
e
Number of =
employees B
3 (©)

1

1

Emoluments of 5 highest paid employees
£000

3,874
807
29,339
288

Financial Statements

34,308
52,983

Shareholder Information
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Employees > Bank payroll tax // Corporate sustainability > Governance / Risk

Emoluments of 5 highest paid senior executives

Employee
1 2 3] 4 5
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed

283 623 421 400 467
283 623 421 400 467

Variable
493 393 404 406 337
493 393 404 406 337
740 590 605 608 505
740 590 605 608 505
2,467 1,967 2,018 2,028 1,683
2,750 2,590 2,439 2,428 2,150
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
4,247 4,000 3,767 3,750 3,320

Variable pay in respect of performance year 2010.
Vested shares, subject to a 6-month retention period.

Bank payroll tax

Corporate sustainability

212

Business finance



Operational environmental management

Overview

Sustainability governance

Operating & Financial Review

Community investment

Governance

HSBC Sustainability Report 2010

Financial Statements

Employee issues

Sustainability risk

Shareholder Information
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)
Corporate sustainability > Health and safety / Supplier payment // Share capital > Issued / Rights and obligations

Health and safety

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

Supplier payment policy

Share capital

Issued share capital

Ordinary shares
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)
Share capital > Rights and obligations / During 2010 // Dividends, shareholders and meetings > Dividends for 2010

ari passu
partp Euro Preference Shares

Share capital during 2010

Scrip dividends

Sterling Preference Shares
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All-Employee share plans

Discretionary share incentive plans

Cancellation of Deferred Shares and issue of
one Series A Sterling Preference Share
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Authority to allot shares

Treasury Shares

Dividends, shareholders and
meetings

Dividends for 2010

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

Financial Statements
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Report of the Directors: Governance (continued)

Dividends, shareholders and meetings > Dividends 2011 / Communication / Notifiable interests / Dealings in shares / AGM

Dividends for 2011

Communication with shareholders

Annual Report and Accounts, Annual
Review Interim Report

Notifiable interests in share capital

Dealings in HSBC Holdings shares
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Report of the Remuneration Committee > 2010 performance / Regulation / Senior management changes / 2011

Report of the Remuneration

Committee
Page
220 i
222
222
223
Executive Directors’ 2010 emoluments and °
remuneration 224
Salary 225
Annual bonus 225
Performance Shares 226
Funding 228
Total shareholder return 228 °
Pensions 228
Share ownership guidelines 228
Service contracts 228 N
Other directorships 229
229
Fees 230
231 °
232

2010 performance

Key achievements
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Management of risk

Overview

Senior management changes

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

Financial Statements

2011 remuneration activities

Regulation

Shareholder Information
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
Remuneration Committee — members and advisers / Overall principles / Executive Directors’ remuneration

Remuneration Committee -
members and advisers

Overall principles

HSBC reward strategy How achieved
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Executive Directors’ remuneration

Element Delivery Policy Purpose Timing _E
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° ° . o >
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o
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By exception, V H C Cheng’s 2010 award has a vesting date three years from the date of award.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
Executive Directors’ remuneration > 2010 emoluments / Salary / Annual bonus

Executive Directors’ 2010 emoluments and

remuneration

V H C Cheng D J Flint A A Flockhart M F Geoghegan Lord Green S T Gulliver 1 J Mackay
(Audited) 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
775 845 820 1,164 1,160 800 57
193 434 - 421 31 154 36
311 8 629 430 3 17 27
284 1,805 1,385 2,824 - 2,934 24
1,563 3,092 2,834 4,839 1,194 3,905 144
2,414 4,775 4,377 7,473 1,844 6,031 222
V H C Cheng D J Flint A A Flockhart M F Geoghegan Lord Green S T Gulliver 1 J Mackay
(Unaudited) 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
1,279 1,287 1,449 2,015 1,194 971 120
711 2,800 1,808 3,800 - 5,200 61
1,990 4,087 3,257 5,815 1,194 6,171 181
3,073 6,312 5,030 8,980 1,844 9,530 280

Stepped down as Group Chief Executive and a Director of HSBC Holdings on 31 December 2010. Retires from the Group on

31 March 2011.

Retired as Group Chairman and a Director of HSBC Holdings on 3 December 2010.
Appointed a Director of HSBC Holdings on 3 December 2010.
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Allowances include an executive allowance paid to fund personal pension arrangements and a company car allowance.

Benefits in kind include provision of medical insurance, other insurance cover, accountancy advice and travel assistance.

V H C Cheng, A A Flockhart and M F Geoghegan received housing and other benefits in kind that are normal within the location in
which they are employed. 1 J Mackay relocated to London and he received temporary accommodation for him and his family
together with other normal relocation benefits.

Where applicable, bonus comprises: (i) the estimated monetary value of 33% of the award of HSBC Holdings Restricted Shares that
will vest on 1 March 2011 arising from the 2009 bonus awarded in March 2010 that was fully deferred into awards of HSBC
Holdings Restricted Shares, as follows: D J Flint, £685,000, A A Flockhart, £662,000, M F Geoghegan £1,304,000 and S T Gulliver,
£2,934,000; and (ii) 40% of the annual bonus in respect of the 2010 performance year that is non-deferred. The non-deferred bonus
is payable half in cash and half in HSBC Holdings Restricted Shares which are subject to a six month retention period. Full details
are set out below and on page 223.

The Bonus for 2010 comprises the deferred and non-deferred bonus, details of which are set out below and on page 223.

Overview

Retirement of M F Geoghegan in 2011

Annual bonus

Operating & Financial Review

Salary

Governance

Financial Statements

Shareholder Information
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
Executive Directors’ remuneration > Performance shares

Bonus awards

2010 performance

Non-deferred Deferred
Restricted Restricted
Cash Shares Cash Shares
£000 £000 £000 £000
142 142 213 213
560 560 840 840
362 362 542 542
760 760 1,140 1,140
- - - 5,200
12 12 18 18

The awards made in respect of 2010 performance will be delivered as described on page 223.

D J Flint, M F Geoghegan and S T Gulliver requested that they not be considered for a bonus in respect of 2008.

M F Geoghegan has stated that subject to the shares being released, he will make total donations up to the size of his bonus awarded for
2009 performance to charities by 2013.

At the former Group Chairman’s request, he was not considered for an annual bonus award in 2010, 2009 and 2008.

S T Gulliver has requested that 100% of the award made to him in respect of 2010 performance be fully deferred in Restricted Shares
subject to the standard vesting and retention period.

Appointed a Director of HSBC Holdings on 3 December 2010.

Performance Shares

Description of performance conditions
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Economic profit award

Total shareholder return award E
>
o
>
o
TSR comparator group
3
0
>
(]
o
©
‘©
S
Average annual EP over Proportion of EP =
three years award vesting ;
(o))
c
=
o
(5]
Vesting will occur in a straight line between 0% and 100% 8—

where our performance falls between these incremental
steps.

Earnings per share award

Governance

EPS growth in Year 3 over Proportion of EPS
the base EPS award vesting

Vesting will occur in a straight line between 20% and 100% %)
where our performance falls between these incremental 5
steps. =
£
©
3
9p]
©
o
c
©
c
T
If HSBC’s TSR outperforms  Proportion of TSR
companies comprising award vesting g
=
©
£
O
«
5
—
Vesting will occur in a straight line between 20% and 100% %
where our performance falls between these incremental 5
steps. @
©
<
9p]
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
Executive Directors’ remuneration > Funding / TSR / Guidelines / Service contracts / Other directorships // Non-executive Directors

Share ownership guidelines

Funding

held at 31

Total shareholder return December
2010

1,383,564
494,933
1,066,450
4,279,244
287,719

For the purposes of the guidelines, unvested awards of
Restricted Shares are included. Unvested Performance
HSBC TSR and FTSE 100 Index Share awards are excluded.
130% Appointed Group Chairman on 3 December 2010.
/ Appointed Group Chief Executive on 1 January 2011.

120% e Appointed Group Finance Director on 3 December 2010.
/ \ / All of the Group Managing Directors exceed the expected
110% holdings.
\ //\{
100% \\ //
N

90%

80%
Dec 2005 Dec 2006 Dec 2007 Dec 2008 Dec 2009 Dec 2010

—@— HsBCTSR  ——@—— FTSE 100

Source: International Data Corporation

Pensions .
Service contracts
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Contract date Notice period Compensation on termination by the company without
Name (rolling) (Director & HSBC) notice or cause

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Stepped down as Group Chief Executive and a Director of HSBC Holdings on 31 December 2010.

Retired as Group Chairman and a Director of HSBC Holdings on 3 December 2010.

The other benefits as part of the payment in lieu of notice do not include the accommodation and car provided in Hong Kong.
Appointed a Director of HSBC Holdings on 3 December 2010.

Governance

Other directorships Non-executive Directors
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)
Non-executive Directors > Fees // Pensions

Fees

Board Committee annual fees

Meetings

held during

Chairman Member 2010
£000 £000 (Number)

ey
o
N
o
g w o~

The Board will consider increasing the fees for service on Board Committees during 2011.

Fees paid to non-executive Directors
(Audited)

2010
£000

Includes fees as a non-executive Director and member of the Audit Committee of Hang Seng Bank Limited.
Retired as a Director on 28 May 2010.

Includes fees as non-executive Deputy Chairman of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
Includes fees as non-executive Chairman of HSBC North America Holdings Inc.
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Pensions
(Audited)

V H C Cheng is a member of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Mandatory Provident Fund
(‘MPF’) and received an executive allowance of
25% of annual basic salary during 2010, less the
mandatory contributions to the MPF by both the
employer and employee, to fund personal pension
arrangements (HK$2,313,000). During 2010, the
mandatory employer contribution to the MPF in
respect of Mr Cheng was HK$12,000.

D J Flint received an executive allowance of
55% of basic salary in lieu of personal pension
arrangements in the month of January. From
1 February 2010, this allowance was reduced to
50% of basic salary. The executive allowance for
the whole of 2010 amounted to £425,224.

A A Flockhart received employer contributions
of 40% of basic salary into a personal pension plan in
the month of January 2010. From 1 February 2010
Mr Flockhart received employer contributions of 50%
of basic salary into a pension plan. The employer
contributions for the whole of 2010 amounted to
£404,319.

M F Geoghegan received an executive
allowance of 50% of basic salary in lieu of pension
between 1 January and 25 January 2010. From
26 January 2010, Mr Geoghegan received employer
contributions of 50% of basic salary into a pension

Defined Benefit Pension arrangements

plan. The employer contributions for the whole of
2010 amounted to £560,486.

Lord Green ceased membership of the HSBC Bank

(UK) Pension Scheme on 5 April 2006. Since 6 April
2006, Lord Green has been entitled to receive benefits

from an Employer Funded Retirement Benefits Scheme

which together with entitlements from the HSBC Bank
(UK) Pension Scheme provided benefits to Lord Green
that were broadly comparable to an accrual rate of
one-thirtieth of pensionable salary for each year of

pensionable service. Lord Green retired on 3 December
2010 and began receiving his pension from 4 December

2010.

S T Gulliver received employer contributions of
30% of basic salary into a personal pension plan in
the month of January 2010. From 1 February 2010
Mr Gulliver's pension arrangements were increased to
50% of basic salary. This was delivered as employer
contributions of 30% of basic salary into a personal
pension plan and an executive allowance of 20% of
basic salary. The employer contributions and the
executive allowance for the whole of 2010 amounted
to £386,667.

I J Mackay received an executive allowance of
50% of basic salary in lieu of pension with effect from
his appointment as executive Director on 3 December
2010 (£28,269 for the period to 31 December 2010) to
fund personal pension arrangements.

Transfer value
(less personal

Increase in Increase of contributions) at
accrued Transfer Transfer transfer value 31 December 2010
Accrued Increase in pension value value of accrued  relating to increase
annual accrued during 2010, of accrued of accrued pension (less in accrued pensions
pension at pension excluding pension at  pension at personal during 2010,
31 December during any increase 31 December 31 December contributions) excluding any
2010 2010 for inflation 2009 2016 in 2013 increase for inflation®
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
A A Flockhart ... 283 13 13 4,863 4,974 111 201
Lord Green ....... - 38 5 19,119 - 381 -

1 The transfer value represents a liability of HSBC's pengiads and not a sum paid or digethe individual; it cannot thefere

meaningfully be addetd annual remuneratian

2 A A Flockhart ceased accrual of pension in the Internati@taff Retirement Benefits Scheme (ISRBS’) on 30 November 2088 and
has deferred commencement of his pension. He received nosedoganflation to his accrued pension on 1 January 2010. SR8S
retains a liability for a contingent spouse’s pemsof £129,900 per annum as at 31 December 2010.

3 Lord Green retired as a Director on 3 December 2010 esmdmenced receiving hisrmon from 4 December 2010.

The table overleaf shows unfunded pension
payments, in respect of which provision has been
made, during 2010 to six former Directors of HSBC
Holdings.

The payments in respect of R Delbridge and
Sir Brian Pearse were made by HSBC Bank plc as

231

former directors of that bank. The payment in

respect of C F W de Croisset was made by HSBC
France as a former director of that bank. There were
no increases to sterling values of the pensions during
2010.

Overview

Governance Operating & Financial Review

Financial Statements
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Directors’ Remuneration Report  (continued)

Share plans
Unfunded pension payments Share Plans
2010 2009 (Audited)
£ £ At 31 December 2010, the undernamed Directors
BHAShEr oo 101,858 101,858

CEWde Croimam ™ T 237662 247115 held qptlons and awards qf Performance Shares and
R Delbridge ............ . 146507 146,507 Restricted Shares to acquire the number of HSBC

Lord Green ......... 2,992 - Holdings ordinary shares set against their respective
Sir Brian Pearse ........ccccceecveeiveenne 61,095 61,095 names.
Sir William Purves .........ccocceveeeenns 107,827 107,827

657,941 664,402

HSBC Holdings savings-related share option plans
(Audited)
HSBC Holdings ordinary shares of US$0.50

At At
Date of Exercise Exercisable 1Jan 31 Dec
award price (£) from until 2010 2010
[ I | P /R 2007 6.1760 1Aug 2012 31 Jan 201 2,650 2,650
A AFlockhart ........cocoeeeeeeiiieiceeeee e 29141009 3.3116 1Aug 2014 31 Jan 201 4,529 4,529
Uss$
1 IMACKAY ... 30 2008 11.8824 1Aug01l  31Jan 2012 1,53F 1,531

The HSBC Holdings savings-related sharéapplans are all-employee share plans unatich eligible HSBC employees may be
granted options to acquire HSBC Holdingislinary shares. Employees may make contritmgtiof up to £250 (or equivalent) eachnth
over a period of one, three or five years which may be us#uedirst, third or fifth anniversargf the commencement of ttetevant
savings contract, at the employee’s election, to exercise thenspiihe plans help align theémests of employees with tbesation of
shareholder value and, as such, exercise of the options @ihct to any performance conditions. The options were awéoded
consideration and are exercisable at a 20% discount to the avenageet value of the ordinary shares on the five business day
immediately preceding the invitation date. No options laplsgihg the year. There are no performance criteria conditionahupbich
the outstanding options are exercisable and there have been ntomsito the terms and conditions since the awards were nTd
market value per ordinary share at 31 December 2010 was £6.5&hidihest and lowest market values per ordinary share dtinigg
year were £7.404 and £5.962. Market value is the mid-markeg gerived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official Lithen
relevant date. Under the Securities and Futures OrdinancenfHKong, the options are categorised as unlisted physicallgdetjuity
derivatives.

1 May be advanced to an earlier dateciertain circumstances, e.g. retirement.
2 Interest at 3 Decemb@010 — date of appointment.

Awards of Performance Shares
HSBC Share Plan

(Audited)

HSBC Holdings ordinary shares of US$0.50

Year in Awards Awards vestlezd Awards

which held at during year™ held at

Date of awards 1 Jan Monetary 31 Dec

award may vest 2010 Number value 2016

£000

VHCChAG oo 5 Mar 2007 2010 218,035 83,769 560 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 157,852 - - 163,188

DIFINE o 5r\2807 2010 326,626 125,489 838 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 455,210 - - 470,596

A AFlockhart ........cccooveiiiiiiiencce Mar 2007 2010 145,238 55,799 373 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 155,227 - - 160,474

M F Geoghega .......ccevuveeriiieiiiieeiieens Mar 2007 2010 742,334 285,205 1,905 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 1,069,746 - - 1,105,902

LOord Green ......occeeeieeeeiiiieiieeeee e 5 Mar 2007 2010 556,750 213,903 1,429 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 1,251,829 - - 1,294,146

ST GUIVET oo 5 Mar 2007 2010 161,319 61,979 414 -
3 Jun 2008 2011 67,631 - - 69,917

Vesting of these awards of Performance Shares is subjtet tchievement of the corporate performance conditions set @atyes 226
to 228. Interests in awards of Performance Shares are casagbunder the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kongas th
interests of a beneficiary of a trust.
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The performance conditions of the total shareholder returnat¢wf the award were partially met and the following part efatvards
vested on 31 March 2010, when the market value per share was £6.68: V H C Cheng, 82,957 shares; D J Flint, 124,273 shares;
A A Flockhart, 55,259 shares; M F Geoghegan, 282,440 shhoed;Green, 211,830 shares; and S T Gulliver, 61,378 shares. The
following awards representing the fourth interim dividend for 2@8@&ted on 5 May 2010, when the market value per share ws& £6
V H C Cheng, 812 shares; D J Flint, 1,216 shares; A A Flockhart, 540 shares; M F Geoghegan, 2,765 shares; Lord Green, 2,073

shares; and S T Gulliver, 601 shares. The market valushazge on the date of the award, 5 March 2007, was £8.96. S
2 The performance conditions for the earnipgs share element and the remaining parthef total shareholder return elemerittbe -g
award were not met and, under the terms of the Plan, the falipawvards were forfeited on 34arch 2010: V H C Cheng, 136,506 =
shares; D J Flint, 204,493 shares; A A Flockhart, 90,931 esiavl F Geoghegan, 464,757 shares; Lord Green, 348,568 shares; and >
S T Gulliver, 100,998 shares. As a consequence, the fountimtizidend for 2009 did not accrue on the forfeited shares. ©
3 Includes additional shares iaing from scrip dividends.
4 Interest at 3 December 2010 — date of retirement.
Awards of Restricted Shares
HSBC Share Plan >
(Audited) e
HSBC Holdings ordinary shares of US$0.50 3
o
Year in Awards Awards made Awards vested Awards =
which held on during year* during year? held at 'S
Date of awards 1 Jan Monetary Monetary 31 Dec =
award may vest 2010 Number value Number value 201G UE_
£000 £000 3
V HC Cheng....... 3 Mar 2008 2010 103,936 - - 104,616 713 - o
2 Mar 2009 2012 493,545 - - - - 510,226 =
1 Mar 2010 2013 - 193,534 1,320 - - 198,773 o
o
D JFlint .............. 1 Mar 2010 2011-20%: - 307,917 2,100 - - 316,252 o
A A Flockhart ..... 31 Oct 2007 201! 64,621 - - 66,806 434 -
3 Mar 2008 2011 15,064 - - - - 15,572
2 Mar 2009 2012 498,124 - - - - 514,960
1 Mar2010 2011-20%: - 297,746 2,031 - - 305,806
©
M F Geoghegan .. 1 Mar 2010 2011-20 - 586,510 4,000 - - 602,387 2
@©
S T Gulliver ........ 5 Mar 2007  2008-20%C 191,842 - - 193,099 1,317 - c
3 Mar 2008  2009-20%1 388,157 - - 202,986 1,384 192,796 2
1 Mar 2010 2011-20%: - 1,319,648 9,000 - - 1,355,371 8
I J Mackay .......... 31Jul 2007  2009-201: 47,679 - - - - 47,679
31 Mar 2008 2011 46,253 - - - - 46,252
2 Mar 2009 2012 100,309 - - - - 100,309
1 Mar 2010  2011-20%: 59,262 - - - - 59,262
Vesting of Restricted Share awards is normally subject tBitteetor remaining an employee on the vesting date. The vesttegithy be
advanced to an earlier date in certain airostances, e.g. death or retirement. Urttie Securities and Futures Ordinance afrtd Kong,
interests in Restricted Share awards granted in 2007 and 200&tegorised as the interestsaobeneficiary of a trust anidterests in g
Restricted Share awards granted in 2009 and 2010 aegosised as the interests of a beneficial owner. )
<
1 At the date of the award, 1 March 2010, the market value per share was £6.82. o
2 At the date of vesting, 1 March 2010, the market value pee shas £6.82. The market value per share on the dates of thésawa i
5 March 2007 and 3 March 2008, was £8.96 and £7.90 respectively. 0
3 Includes additional shares anigy from scrip dividends. e
4 Vesting accelerated from 2011 to 2010. =
5 33% of the award vests on each of the first and second anniesrshthe date of the award, with the balance vesting othtree g
anniversary of the date of the award. i
6 At the date of vesting, 29 October 2010, the market valuehpes svas £6.49. The market value per share on the date of grd,aw
31 October 2007 was £9.51.
7 33% of the award vests on each of the second and third annivessdithe date of the award with the balance vesting ortinghf
anniversary of the date of the award
8 Interest at 3 Decemb&@010 — date of appointment. =
o
©
£
2
On behalf of the Board £
J L Thornton g
Chairman of Remuneration Committee 28 February 2011 E
o
@©
45
()
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of HSBC Holdings plc

Report

Overview

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

Operating & Financial Review

Scope of the audit opinion

Opinion

Governance

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs as issued by the IASB

Financial Statements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act, 2006

Shareholder Information
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of HSBC Holdings plc (continued)
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Chartered Accountants
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Financial Statements
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Fair values of financial instruments Legal proceedings, investigations and regulatory
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)
Consolidated income statement / Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
Notes US$m

58,345
(18,904)

39,441

21,117
(3,762)

17,355

4,680
2,530

7,210

(258)

1,478

3 1,220

968
112
4 11,146

2,562

Total operating income 80,014

5 (11,767)

Net operating income before loan impairment charges and
other credit risk provisions 68,247

6 (14,039)

Net operating income 6 54,208

7 (19,836)
(15,156)

25 (1,713)

24

24 (983)

Total operating expenses (37,688)

Operating profit 16,520

23 2,517

Profit before tax 19,037

10 (4,846)

Profit for the year 14,191

13,159
1,032

Us$

12 0.73
12 0.72

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
uUS$m

14,191

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

5,835
6,368
(1,174)

Overview

1,118
(477)

(271)

(178)

(164)
71

(61)
(60)
@)

107
(567)

5,043
19,234

Operating & Financial Review

18,087
1,147

19,234

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)
Consolidated balance sheet / Consolidated statement of cash flows

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2010

2010
Notes US$m
Assets
57,383
6,072
19,057
15 385,052
19 37,011
20 260,757
208,271
958,366
21 400,755
27 43,251
1,096
11,966
23 17,198
24 29,922
25 11,521
10 7,011
2,454,689
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
19,057
110,584
1,227,725
6,663
28 300,703
29 88,133
20 258,665
30 145,401
31 28,050
1,804
32 58,609
13,906
33 2,138
10 1,093
7 3,856
34 33,387
2,299,774
Equity
39 8,843
8,454
5,851
27,169
97,350
147,667
38 7,248
154,915
2,454,689

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Group Chairman

240



Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
Notes US$m

Cash flows from operating activities
19,037

Overview

40 18,887
40 (13,267)
40 42,272
(1,799)

(1,698)

(2,517)

441

(3,321)

(2,293)

55,742

Cash flows from investing activities
(341,202)
321,846
(2,533)
4,373
4,243
(1,179)
(86)
466
(1,589)
(19,566)
254

(34,973)

Operating & Financial Review

Cash flows from financing activities
180

180
3,718

Governance

163

11

2

4,481
(2,475)
(229)
(3,441)
(595)
(413)

1,402

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22,171

250,766
1,139

40 274,076

n
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For footnote, see page 249.

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

GT6'7ST  8¥Z'L 199'/4T 80¢'L2 GSL'T 891'C (582) (£20'7) 0S€'26 158'S vSv'8 £78'8
(esT) (eom) (09) = = = = = (03) = = =
(9gv) (o) = = = = = = = = = =

= = = = (e21) = = = €LT = = =

69T € 99T = = = L L2 (89) - - -
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218 = 218 = 218 = = = = = = =

= = = = (608) = = = 608 = = =

vLT = viT = = = = = vLT = = =

44 = 44 = = = = = zeT = = =
(s202) (g22) (0s€'9) = = = = = (0s€'9) = = =

8TL'E = 8TL'E = = = = = = 8TL'E = =
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity / HSBC Holdings balance sheet
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HSBC Holdings balance sheet at 31 December 2010

2010
Notes us$m

Assets

459

20 2,327
21,238

2,025

1

224

107

26 92,899
4

10 57

119,341

Overview

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
2,932
29 16,288
20 827
30 2,668
31 1,232
750

Operating & Financial Review

10 —
34 13,313

38,010

Equity
39 8,843
8,454
5,828
35,127
3,394
19,685

81,331
119,341

Governance

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)
HSBC Holdings statement of cash flows / HSBC Holdings statement of changes in equity

HSBC Holdings statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
Notes US$m

Cash flows from operating activities
5,237

40 185
40 3,091
40 (1,754)

853

7,612

Cash flows from investing activities

(6,64;)

(6,649)

Cash flows from financing activities
180

180

3,695

1,349
(2,100)

(3,441)
(413)

(728)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 235
224

40 459

For footnote, see page 249.

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HSBC Holdings statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
Other reserves
Other Available- Share- Total
Called up equity for-sale Other based  Merger share- %
share Share instru- Retained fair value paid-in  payment and other holders’ >
capital premium ments  earnings reserve capital reserve  reserves equity g
uS$m US$m usS$m uUS$m US$m uUS$m US$m usS$m uUS$m (@)
8,705 8,413 2,133 17,856 253 1,464 1,925 35,127 75,876
- - - 5,658 - - - - 5,658
- - - - (197) - - - (197)
2
- - - - (275) - - - (275) .g
- - - - 78 - - - 78 [
o
©
- - - 5,658 (197) - - - 5,461 =
g
12 168 - - - - - - 180 i
(]
g
126 (127) = 2,524 - - - - 2,523 E
- - 3,695 - - - - - 3,695 3
- - - (6,350) - - - - (6,350) OQ
- - - (260) - - - - (260)
- - - - - 119 (119) - -
- - - - - - 28 - 28 ©
(&S]
=
@©
=
2
- - - - - - 76 - 76 o
= = = 87 = = 15 = 102 o
- - - 170 - - (170) - -
8,843 8,454 5,828 19,685 56 1,583 1,755 35,127 81,331
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Financial Statements (continued)
HSBC Holdings statement of changes in equity / Footnotes to Financial Statements

HSBC Holdings statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2010 (continued)

Dividends per ordinary share at 31 December 2010 were US$0.34 (2009: US$0.34; 2008: US$0.93).
For footnotes, see page 249.

The accompanying notes on pages 250 to 370, ‘Critical accounting policies’ on pages 33 to 36, the audited sections of ‘Risk’ on pages 86
to 176 and the audited sections of ‘Capital’ on pages 177 to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Footnotes to Financial Statements

Adjustment to bring changes between opening and closing balance sheet amounts to average rates. This is not done on a line-by-line
basis, as details cannot be determined without unreasonable expense.

Share premium includes the deduction of US$1m in respect of issuance costs incurred during the year (2009: US$1m; 2008: US$3m).
Cumulative goodwill amounting to US$5,138m has been charged against reserves in respect of acquisitions of subsidiaries prior to

1 January 1998, including US$3,469m charged against the merger reserve arising on the acquisition of HSBC Bank plc. The balance of
US$1,669m has been charged against retained earnings.

Retained earnings include 123,331,979 (US$1,799m) of own shares held within HSBC's insurance business, retirement funds for the
benefit of policyholders or beneficiaries within employee trusts for the settlement of shares expected to be delivered under employee
share schemes or bonus plans, and the market-making activities in Global Markets (2009: 179,964,968 (US32,572m); 2008:
194,751,829 (US$3,094m)).

Amounts transferred to the income statement in respect of cash flow hedges include US$605m (2009: US$502m; 2008: US$152m) taken
to ‘Net interest income’ and US$441m (2009: US$306m; 2008: US$1,602m) taken to ‘Net trading income’.

Statutory share premium relief under Section 131 of the Companies Act 1985 (the ‘Act’) was taken in respect of the acquisition of HSBC
Bank plc in 1992, HSBC France in 2000 and HSBC Finance Corporation in 2003 and the shares issued were recorded at their nominal
value only. In HSBC's consolidated financial statements the fair value differences of US$8,290m in respect of HSBC France and
US$12,768m in respect of HSBC Finance Corporation were recognised in the merger reserve. The merger reserve created on the
acquisition of HSBC Finance Corporation subsequently became attached to HSBC Overseas Holdings (UK) Limited (‘HOHU"),
following a number of intra-group reorganisations. At 31 December 2009, US$5,945m (2010: nil) was transferred from this reserve to
retained earnings as a result of impairment in HSBC Holdings’ investment in HOHU. During 2009, pursuant to section 131 of the
Companies Act 1985, statutory share premium relief was taken in respect of the rights issue and US$15,796m was recognised in the
merger reserve. The merger reserve includes the deduction of US$614m in respect of costs relating to the rights issue, of which
US$149m was subsequently transferred to the income statement. Of this US$149m, US$121m was a loss arising from accounting for the
agreement with the underwriters as a contingent forward contract. The merger reserve excludes the loss of US$344m on a forward
foreign exchange contract associated with hedging the proceeds of the rights issue.

During June 2010, HSBC Holdings issued US$3,800m of Perpetual Subordinated Capital Securities, Series 2 (‘capital securities’), on
which there were US$82m of external issuance costs and US$23m of intra-group issuance costs which are classified as equity under
IFRSs. In April 2008, HSBC Holdings issued US$2,200m of Perpetual Subordinated Capital Securities, including US$67m of issuance
costs, which are classified as equity under IFRSs.

Retained earnings include 39,814,107 (US$562m) of own shares held to fund employee share plans (2009: 38,446,053 (US$562m)).
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements

1 - Basis of preparation

1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

(b) Differences between IFRSs and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(c) Presentation of information
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(d) Comparative information
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(e) Use of estimates and assumptions
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(f) Consolidation
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

1 - Basis of preparation / 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies

(g) Future accounting developments

Standards and Interpretations issued by the IASB but not endorsed by the EU
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(a) Interestincome and expense

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

(b) Non-interest income

Fee income

Net trading income

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value

Dividend income

(c) Operating segments

(d) Valuation of financial instruments
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(e) Reclassification of financial assets

[
Overview

(f) Loans and advances to banks and customers

Operating & Financial Review

Governance
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(g) Impairment of loans and advances

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Individually assessed loans and advances

pari passu

Collectively assessed loans and advances

Incurred but not yet identified impairment
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Homogeneous groups of loans and advances
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Write-off of loans and advances
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Reversals of impairment

Reclassified loans and advances

Assets acquired in exchange for loans

Renegotiated loans

(h) Trading assets and trading liabilities
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(i) Financial instruments designated at fair value

Overview

Long-term debt issues

Financial assets and financial liabilities under investment contracts

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

(j) Financial investments
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Available-for-sale debt securities

Available-for-sale equity securities
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Overview

(k) Sale and repurchase agreements (including stock lending and borrowing)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

Hedge accounting

Fair value hedge

Cash flow hedge

Net investment hedge

Hedge effectiveness testing
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Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
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(p) Goodwill and intangible assets

Shareholder Information

263



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies
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(q) Property, plant and equipment
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

(t) Pension and other post-employment benefits

(u) Share-based payments
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(v) Foreign currencies
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies

(x) Financial guarantee contracts

(y) Insurance contracts

Premiums

Claims and reinsurance recoveries

Liabilities under insurance contracts
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

2 — Summary of significant accounting policies / 3 — Net income from financial instruments at fair value

(z) Debt securities issued and deposits by customers and banks

(aa) Share capital

(ab) Cash and cash equivalents

(ac) Rights issues
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3 Netincome/(expense) from financial instruments designated at fair value

3
.0
2
. 2
o
L]
3
0
>
)
o
s
($]
Net income/(expense) from financial instruments designated at fair value =
=
HSBC ic
]
2010 o
us$m =
o
(0]
o
2,349 o
230
(149)
2,430
[¢}]
(946) e
(258) 2
(63) )
(275) 3
80 o
(18)
12
(1,210)
1,220
@
HSBC Holdings é
2010 2
[
ussm &»
©
‘©
248 &
c
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373
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
4 — Net earned insurance premiums / 5 — Net insurance claims incurred / 6 — Net operating income

4 Net earned insurance premiums

Life Life Investment
Non-life insurance insurance contracts
insurance  (non-linked) (linked) with DPF Total
US$m us$m US$m us$m US$m
2010
1,275 5,427 1,956 2,951 11,609
1,192 5,357 1,956 2,951 11,456
83 70 - - 153
(160) (289) (14) - (463)
(72) (266) ® - (446)
12 (23) (6) = 17)
1,115 5,138 1,942 2,951 11,146
Discretionary participation features.
5 Netinsurance claims incurred and movement in liabilities to policyholders
Life Life Investment
Non-life insurance insurance contracts
insurance  (non-linked) (linked) with DPF Total
US$m US$m uS$m US$m uUS$m
2010

625 5,108 2,520 3,716 11,969

815 1,355 507 2,023 4,700

(190) 3,753 2,013 1,693 7,269

(100) (201) 99 - (202)

(114) (143) (45) = (302)

14 (58) 144 = 100

525 4,907 2,619 3,716 11,767
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6 Net operating income

[¢}]
(8]
(=
2010 g
ussm o
Income S
516 O

11,445

3,074

7,418
7,187 )
=
[}
- S
188 Qo
&
Expense n
s
(17,549) g
@©
c
=

(1,529)

(151)
Gains/(losses) =
121 o
(105) ©
£
639 ..g
250 -
[}
Loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions (14,039) ©
(13,548) 2
(472) &
(19) 2
@)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
7 - Employee compensation and benefits

7 Employee compensation and benefits

Average number of persons employed by HSBC during the year

Post-employment benefit plans

Income statement charge

2010
Us$m

17,193
1,567
1,076

19,836

2010

79,902
29,105
89,737

8,983
36,822
57,778

302,327

2010
Us$m

468

308
160

545

1,013
58
5

1,076

Net assets/(liabilities) recognised on balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans

274

2010
US$m

(2,867)
(622)

22,236
(22,858)

(2,245)

7,559
(9,785)
(47)

28

(946)

165
(1,087)
(24)

29,960
(33,730)
(47)

(3,813)

(3,856)
43




Cumulative actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income

2010
Us$m
(4,660) 3
.0
321 >
(275) g
(112) o
6
(60)
(4,720)
Excludes exchange differences of US$6m (2009: US$1m). 3
Includes cumulative movements related to the limit on plan surpluses. This limit is US847m at 31 December 2010 (2009: US$47m). Q
3
HSBC i | oc
pension plans 5
2010 e
g
218 i
% (]
o
=
63 ©
27 ®
Q
90 o
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Pension plans in the UK
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
7 - Employee compensation and benefits

Benefit payments (USSm)

2,000

1,800 |
1,600
1,400
1,200 |
1,000 |
800 1
600 -
400 1

200 A

2011 2021 2031 2041 2051 2061 2071 2081 2091 2101

Additional future funding payments to the principal plan

Original plan
UsS$m

722
722
722
978
978
978
978

Original plan
£m

465
465
465
630
630
630
630

Revised plan
UsS$m

768
978
978

Revised plan
£m

495
630
630

The payment schedule was agreed with the Trustee in pounds sterling and the equivalent US dollar amounts are shown at the exchange

rate effective as at 31 December 2010.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

7 - Employee compensation and benefits

HSBC healthcare benefits plans

Defined benefit pension plans

Net liability under defined benefit pension plans

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations

2010 2010
US$m US$m
17,701 6,822
1,092 437
2,890 422
252 194
2,638 228
23 17
1,772 394

(744) (440)

136 (136)
= )
= (10)

(634) 60

22,236 7,559
(21,523) (9,109)

(252) (300)

(1,148) (438)
(23) a7
(1,451) (669)
744 518
= (11)
= (20)
(136) 136
= 158
= 12
931 (45)
(22,858) (9,785)
(22,858) (9,241)
= (544)
= (47
_ 28
(622) (2,245)
(622) (2,288)
= 43
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Benefits expected to be paid from plans

Total (income)/expense recognised in the income statement in ‘Employee compensation and benefits’

2010 2010
US$m Us$m
252 300
1,148 438
(1,092) (437)
- 12

- (151)

- (2

308 160

Summary

2010
US$m

(22,858)
22,236

(622)

(327)
1,772

(1,124)

321

279
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

7 - Employee compensation and benefits

Summary (continued)

2010
usS$m

(9,785)
7,559

(2,226)

(73)
394

(596)

(275)

Defined benefit healthcare plans

Net liability under defined benefit healthcare plans

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of defined benefit obligations

Benefits expected to be paid from plans

2010
US$m

142
13

(12)
@

165

(937)
(12)
(60)

(1)

(118)

52

(13)

(1,087)

(197)
(890)

(24)

(946)
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Total expense recognised in the income statement in ‘Employee compensation and benefits’

2010
Us$m
12 2
60 .GS’
(1? a;,
o 3
58
Summary
S
2010 .%’
US$m )
o
(1,087) T
165 o
@©
(922) 2
(N
=)
27) o
6 £
(91) ©
(0]
(112) S
Post-employment defined benefit plans’ principal actuarial financial assumptions
(0]
o
C
@©
=
Principal actuarial assumptions %’
Healthcare cost trend O
Rate of Rate Year of
Discount Inflation increase for of pay Initial Ultimate ultimate
rate rate pensions increase rate rate rate
% % % % % %
At 31 December 2010
5.40 3.70 3.50 4.20 7.70 7.70 n/a
2.85 n/a n/a 5.00 n/a n/a n/a @
5.41 2.50 n/a 2.75 7.20 4.50 2027 GC)
5.40 3.70 3.70 5.45 n/a n/a n/a £
7.50 3.50 3.50 4.50 6.75 6.75 n/a o
10.51 4,50 4.50 5.50 10.00 5.50 2020 g
4.75 2.00 2.00 3.00 n/a n/a n/a =
5.45 2.50 n/a 3.72 8.00 5.00 2015 'S
2.60 1.50 n/a 2.50 n/a n/a n/a =
5.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 n/a n/a n/a E

=
o
=
©
S
—
]
=
=
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
7 - Employee compensation and benefits

Principal actuarial assumptions (continued)

Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions (except for the UK).

Rate of increase for pensions in the UK is for pensions in payment only, capped at 5%. Deferred pensions are projected to increase in

line with the assumed inflation rate.

Mortality tables and average life expectancy at age 65

Life expectancy at
age 65 for a male
member currently:

Life expectancy at
age 65 for a female
member currently:

Aged 65
At 31 December 2010
22.4
n/a
19.3
24.2

18.6
19.3
23.4
19.5
17.9
18.4

Aged 45

24.3

n/a
20.8
26.2

20.1
20.8
26.1
21.1
17.9
21.1

Aged 65

23.4

n/a
21.2
26.6

211
21.2
26.8
22.0
21.0
22.5

Aged 45

25.3

n/a
22.1
28,5

22.0
22.1
29.7
22.8
21.0
25.1

SAPS MC projections with 1% minimum improvement beyond 2002. Light table with 1.08 rating for male and standard table with 1.06

rating for female.
PNAOO year of birth and medium cohort with 1% minimum improvement thereafter.
Additional 8.5% liability loading for future mortality improvements.

The significant plans in Hong Kong are lump sum plans which do not use a post-retirement mortality table.
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Expected rates of return

2010
Expected

rates of return Value
% us$m 2
HSBC Bank (UK) Pension Scheme .0
22,236 e
8.4 3,415 >
53 15,638 ©

7.6 1,438

4.0 1,745

Other plans

7,559
8.2 2,617 2
5.0 4,073 S
6.1 98 o
6.2 771 T
Healthcare plans e
165 P
12.0 49 i
8.4 81 e
7.6 35 2
The expected rates of return are used to measure the net defined benefit pension costs in each subsequent year, and weighted on the g
basis of the fair value of the plan assets. 8
Actuarial assumption sensitivities o)
g
@©
=
@
>
)
(©)

The effect of changes in key assumptions on the principal plan

2010
Us$m
(941)
1,003 2
©) o
9 &
o
S
1,029 n
(978) ©
67 2
(64) g
=
813
(775)
48
(45) _
S
216 ©
(203) £
20 2
(a7) -
(0]
S
(54) g
54 3
@
z
497 o
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
7 - Employee compensation and benefits / 8 — Auditors’ remuneration

The effect of changes in the discount rate and in mortality rates on plans other than the principal plan

2010
US$m
(290)

@)
131

Effect of one percentage point change in assumed healthcare cost trend rates

2010
1% increase 1% decrease
US$m US$m
8 ()
106 (86)

HSBC Holdings

Directors’ emoluments

2010
US$000

3,597
12,841
14,294

30,732

8,523
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8 Auditors’ remuneration

3
.0
2
Fees payable by HSBC to KPMG g
o
2010
ussm
2.4
2.4
75.9 c%
>
)
46.7 o
20.8 ©
2.4 =
©
=
0.1 i
= (]
56 =3
©
78.3 ©
S
Fees payable to KPMG Audit Plc for the statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements of HSBC and the separate financial
statements of HSBC Holdings. They exclude amounts payable for the statutory audit of HSBC Holdings’ subsidiaries which have been
included in ‘Fees payable to KPMG for other services provided to HSBC'.
Including fees payable to KPMG for the statutory audit of HSBC's subsidiaries.
Including services for assurance and other services that relate to statutory and regulatory filings, including comfort letters and interim
reviews. )
Including tax compliance services and tax advisory services. =
Including advice on IT security and business continuity and performing agreed-upon IT testing procedures. o
Including fees payable to KPMG for transaction-related work, including US debt issuances. T
Including other assurance and advisory services such as translation services, ad-hoc accounting advice and review of financial models. g
)

Fees payable by HSBC'’s associated pension schemes to KPMG
2010
US$000
384

384

(2]
@
=
()
(0]
8
[
I
wn
s
o
[
@©
=
L

Shareholder Information

285



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
9 — Share-based payments

9 Share-based payments

Calculation of fair values

Significant weighted average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted

Savings-related share option plans

1-year plan 3-year plans 5-year plans

2010
0.7 1.9 2.9
1 3 5
30 30 30
6.82 6.82 6.82

The risk-free rate was determined from the UK gilts yield curve for the UK Savings-Related Share Option Plans. A similar yield curve
was used for the International Savings-Related Share Option Plans.

Expected life is not a single input parameter but a function of various behavioural assumptions.

Expected volatility is estimated by considering both historic average share price volatility and implied volatility derived from traded
options over HSBC shares of similar maturity to those of the employee options.

The HSBC Share Plan

Performance Share awards
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Movement in Performance Share awards under the HSBC Share Plan

2010
Number
(000s)

7,360
351

(1,181)
(2,105)

4,425

Additions during the year comprised reinvested dividend equivalents.

Restricted Share awards

Movement in Restricted Share awards under the HSBC Share Plan

2010
Number
(000s)

184,318
110,711
(55,419)
(10,518)

229,092

Share options

287

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

(2]
2
=
()
(0]
8
[
I
wn
©
o
[
@©
=
L

Shareholder Information



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
9 — Share-based payments

Movement in share options under the HSBC Share Plan

2010
Weighted
average
exercise
Number price
(000s) £
86 7.99
86 7.99
Savings-related share option plans
Movement in savings-related share options
2010
Weighted
average
exercise
Number price
(000s) £
172,526 3.69
22,017 5.39
(16,830) 418
(19,858) 4.44
157,855 3.87
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

9 - Share-based payments / 10 — Tax expense

HSBC Holdings Executive Share Option Scheme

Movement on the HSBC Holdings Executive Share Option Scheme awards

HSBC France and subsidiary company plans

Movement on HSBC France share options

2010
6.00 - 7.00 7.01-8.50
26,927 125,831
6.03 7.36
2.33 2.34
26,927 125,831
6.03 7.36
2010
Weighted
average
exercise
Number price
(000s) £
6,707 6.50
(4,229) 6.50
(2,478) 6.50
2010
Exercise
Number price
(000s) €
604 142.5
(604) 142.5
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HSBC Finance

Movement on HSBC Finance share options

10 Tax expense

2010

Number
(000s)

2,736

(30;)

2,429

Exercise
price
Us$

9.29

9.29

9.29

Current tax

Deferred tax

291

2010
US$m

383

404
(21)

3,328

3,235
93

3,711

1,176
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
10 —Tax expense

Analysis of tax expense

2010
ussm %
533 280
(744)  (3.9)
@75 (1.4)
(86) (0.5)
(705) (3.7
1,216 6.4
(53) 0.3)
(6) =
(B74)  (2.0)
276 15
79 0.4
31 02
61 03
96 05
4846 255

The change in the UK corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008 gave rise to a blended tax rate for 2008 of
28.5%.

In August 2009, the UK Government enacted legislation that gains or losses on transactions designated to hedge foreign exchange
exposures connected to rights issues should be disregarded for tax purposes.

Low income housing tax credits arise in the US and are designed to encourage the provision of rental housing for low income
households.

This relates to the transfer of HSBC Bank Canada, which was part of the sub-group headed by HSBC North America Holdings Inc, to
HSBC Overseas Holdings (UK) Limited. A taxable gain arises on
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
10 —-Tax expense / 11 — Dividends

Presentation of deferred tax balances

Analysis of deferred tax assets by country

294

2010
US$m

7,011
(1,093)

5,918

2010
US$m

4,043
883
665
383

1,037

7,011




Overview

S
.2
) >
HSBC Holdings P
s
2010 e
ussm g
=
1 =]
(21) g
61 i
16 ®
o
57 ©
11 Dividends
Dividends to shareholders of the parent company
[¢}]
2010 o
Per Settled g
share  Total in scrip )
US$  USSm  US$m 3
(O]

Dividends declared on ordinary shares
0.10 1,733 838
0.08 1,394 746

0.08 1,402 735
0.08 1,408 205

(2]

034 5937 2524 E

Quarterly dividends on preference GEJ
shares classified as equity =
15.50 22 n

15.50 23 ©

15.50 22 o

15.50 23 =

=

62.00 90

Quarterly coupons on capital
securities classified as equity

0.508 44
0.508 45
0.508 45
0.450 68
0.508 45
0.500 76

2.982 323

HSBC Holdings issued Perpetual Subordinated Capital Securities of US$3,800m in June 2010 and US82,200m in April 2008, which are
classified as equity under IFRSs.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
12 - Earnings per share / 13 — Segmental analysis

12 Earnings per share

Profit attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the parent company

2010
Us$m

13,159
(90)
(323)

12,746

Basic and diluted earnings per share

2010

Number Per
Profit of shares share
US$m (millions) uss$

12,746 17,404 0.73
229
55

12,746 17,633 0.72

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming dilution.

13 Segmental analysis
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

13 - Segmental analysis

Profit/(loss) for the year

2010
Rest of Intra-
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin HSBC
Europe Kong Pacific East America  America items Total
uUS$m US$m US$m uS$m US$m US$m usS$m uS$m
17,550 5,102 6,432 2,003 16,781 11,590 (1,113) 58,345
(6,300) (856) (2,604) (636) (4,342) (5,279) 1,113 || (18,904)
11,250 4,246 3,828 1,367 12,439 6,311 - 39,441
8,334 3,460 2,399 737 4,524 2,366 (703) 21,117
(1,963) (498) (467) (60) (860) (617) 703 (3,762)
6,371 2,962 1,932 677 3,664 1,749 - 17,355
1,461 1,107 1,207 343 109 453 - 4,680
1,402 205 411 27 205 280 — 2,530
2,863 1,312 1,618 370 314 733 - 7,210
(365) ) ) - 111 - - (258)
647 380 26 — — 425 — 1,478
282 378 24 - 111 425 - 1,220
486 98 146 3) 143 98 - 968
20 30 1 7 42 12 - 112
4,067 4,332 448 - 245 2,054 - 11,146
2,117 1,606 1,598 (8) 233 141 (3,125) 2,562
Total operating income 27,456 14,964 9,595 2,410 17,191 11,523 (3,125) 80,014
(4,706) (4,762) (363)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
13 - Segmental analysis

Profit/(loss) for the year (continued)
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Other information about the profit/(loss) for the year

Rest of Intra-
Hong Asia- Middle North Latin HSBC
Europe Kong Pacific East America  America items Total >
us$m us$m US$m usS$m us$m US$m uS$m Us$m ®
2010 s
19,730 10,088 8,793 1,783 8,752 8,187 (3,125) 54,208 g
18,881 9,170 7,728 1,774 8,504 8,151 - 54,208 ©)
849 918 1,065 9 248 36 (3,125) -
1,071 404 243 49 471 458 - 2,696 c%
>
()
o
3,303 169 615 684 8,476 1,812 - 15,059 ©
e
85 41 4 5 21 1 - 107 g
=
]
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©
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
13 - Segmental analysis / 14 — Analysis of financial assets and liabilities

Performance ratios

Europe
%
2010

22.6
67.9

Balance sheet information

Europe
US$m
At 31 December 2010

435,799

186
1,249,527
491,563
1,189,996

865

Hong
Kong
%

29.9
434

Hong
Kong
US$m

140,691

207
429,565
297,484
422,101

836

Rest of
Asia-
Pacific
%

31.0
55.7

Rest of
Asia-
Pacific
US$m

108,731

15,035
278,062
158,155
246,989

168

Middle
East

4.7
44.7

Middle
East
US$m

24,626

1,661
52,757
33,511
45,379

46

North
America
%

2.4
48.8

North
America
Us$m

190,532

104
492,487
158,486
459,301

774

Latin
America
%

9.4
65.7

Latin
America
Us$m

57,987

5
139,938
88,526
123,655

788

Total
%
100.0
55.2
Intra-
HSBC
items Total

US$m US$m

= 958,366

- 17,198
(187,647) 2,454,689
- 1,227,725
(187,647) 2,299,774

- 3,477

Expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets. Excludes assets acquired as part of business

combinations and goodwill.
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Other financial information

Net operating income by customer group and global business

Personal Global Global Intra-
Financial Commercial Banking Private HSBC %
Services Banking & Markets Banking Other items Total E
us$m ussm ussm ussm ussm US$m Us$m 0
2010 &
21,317 12,029 18,957 3,105 4,663 (5,863) 54,208
19,529 11,419 22,090 2,194 (1,024) - 54,208
1,788 610 (3,133) 911 5,687 (5,863) -
3
0
>
)
oc
©
k)
c
©
c
i
(o]
g
The main items reported in the ‘Other’ category are certain property activities, unallocated investment activities, centrally held =
investment companies, movements in fair value of own debt and HSBC'’s holding company and financing operations. The ‘Other’ g
category also includes gains and losses on the disposal of certain significant subsidiaries or business units. 8
Information by country
2010
External net Non-
operating current @
income assets =
us$m US$m g
11,467 19,661 2
9,170 4,630 8
6,098 6,669
3,185 10,914
4,506 2,025
19,782 29,747
54,208 73,646

External net operating income is attributed to countries on the basis of the location of the branch responsible for reporting the results or
advancing the funds.

Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, goodwill, other intangible assets, interests in associates and joint ventures
and certain other assets expected to be recovered more than twelve months after the reporting period.

14 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement basis
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

14 - Analysis of financial assets and liabilities
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

14 - Analysis of financial assets and liabilities / 15 - Trading assets

HSBC Holdings

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

At 31 December 2010

Financial
assets and
Available- liabilities at
Held for Designated Loans and for-sale  amortised
trading at fair value receivables securities cost Total
uUS$m us$m usS$m usS$m US$m uS$m
- - - - 459 459
2,327 - - - - 2,327
- - 21,238 - - 21,238
- - - 2,025 - 2,025
= - = = 1 1
2,327 - 21,238 2,025 460 26,050
- - - - 2,932 2,932
- 16,288 - - - 16,288
827 - - - - 827
- - - - 2,668 2,668
- - - - 1,216 1,216
- - - - 566 566
- - - - 13,313 13,313
827 16,288 — — 20,695 37,810
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15 Trading assets

2010
Us$m
284,940 q%
100,112 s
o
385,052 C>)
25,620
168,268
41,086
234,974
70,456
79,622 2
385,052 3
oc
©
Trading securities valued at fair value =
2
i
2010 &
UsS$m (o)
=
20,239 =
17,036 ©
11,053 S
92,826
3,998
48,736
41,086
234,974 -
2
Included within these figures are debt securities issued by banks and other financial institutions of US$37,170m (2009: US$41,466m), of o
which US38,330m (2009: US$7,280m) are guaranteed by various governments. T
Includes securities that are supported by an explicit guarantee issued by the US Government. g
Excludes asset-backed securities included under US Treasury and US Government agencies. )

Trading securities listed on a recognised exchange and unlisted

Treasury

and other Debt Equity
eligible bills securities securities Total
ussm ussm us$m us$m

Fair value at 31 December 2010

698 113,878 40,098 154,674
24,922 54,390 988 80,300
25,620 168,268 41,086 234,974
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Included within listed investments are US$3,254m (2009: US$3,229m) of investments listed in Hong Kong.

Loans and advances to banks held for trading _S
2010 £

us$m =

2

45,771 £

5,226 g

6,346 <

13,113 @

70,456 2

n
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
16 - Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Loans and advances to customers held for trading

2010
US$m

46,366

7,516
11,161
14,579

79,622

16 Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value and bases of valuation

Valuation technigues

With
Quoted Using significant
market observable  unobservable
price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
US$m US$m US$m
31 December 2010
224,613 154,750 5,689
23,641 12,783 587
2,078 254,718 3,961
214,276 158,743 8,237
124,874 164,436 11,393
22,193 65,370 570
1,808 253,051 3,806

Control framework

308

Total
US$m

385,052

37,011
260,757
381,256

300,703
88,133
258,665



Group Finance Director

t

Finance

Responsible for determining

fair value:

» Establishing accounting
policies for fair value

» Establishing procedures
governing valuation

» Ensuring compliance with
all relevant accounting
standards

Valuation Committees

Consist of valuation experts
from several independent
support functions
(product control, market
risk management, quantitative
risk and valuation group
and finance), in addition
to senior management

Provides
results

Determination of fair value

e Level I — quoted market price:

e Level 2 —valuation technique using observable inputs:

e Level 3 —valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs:

309

inter alia

Valuation Committee
Review Group

Overseen by

and report Chaired by Global Head of
all valuations
considered Product Control,
—> Global Markets
to have
material Consists of heads of
subjectivity

Global Banking and
Markets, finance
and risk functions

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
16 - Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value adjustments

310



Global Banking and Markets fair value adjustments

Type of adjustment

Risk-related adjustments

Bid-offer

Uncertainty

Credit risk adjustment

Model-related adjustments

Model limitation

Inception profit (Day 1 P&L reserves)

311

2010
US$m

2,171

620
136
1,355
60

389

383

250

2,810

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
16 - Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Credit risk adjustment methodology

Fair value valuation bases

Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs —

Level 3

Assets Liabilities

Designated Designated

at fair value at fair value

Available Held for through Held for through
for sale trading profit or loss Derivatives trading profit or loss Derivatives
ussm UsS$m UsS$m ussm us$m Us$m us$m

At 31 December 2010

4,057 278 120 - - - -
1,949 566 - - - - -
- - - - - - 11
- 1,043 - - - - -
= = = = 10,667 = =
- - - 1,005 - - -
- - - 2,956 - - 3,787
2,231 3,802 467 — 726 570 8
8,237 5,689 587 3,961 11,393 570 3,806
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Overview

Private equity and strategic investments

Operating & Financial Review

Asset-backed securities

Governance

Loans, including leveraged finance and loans held for securitisation

Structured notes
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
16 - Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Movement in Level 3 financial instruments

Assets Liabilities
Designated Designated
at fair value at fair value
Available Held for through Held for through
for sale trading profitor loss Derivatives trading profit or loss Derivatives
uUS$m US$m uUS$m uS$m US$m US$m US$m
2010
10,214 6,420 1,224 4,453 8,774 507 5,192
345 158 63 (675) 166 (12) (240)
618 (101) (36) (110) (157) 74 93
3,708 858 81 - (356) - -
- - - 4,025 - -
(2,461) (1,543) (8) - - - -
(1,032) 1 (22) 64 (948) - (820)
(7,065) (629) (894) (669) (1,750) - (1,003)
3,910 525 179 898 1,639 = 584
8,237 5,689 587 3,961 11,393 570 3,806
113 116 17 268 180 (14) 361
89 - - - - - -
- 98 - 268 198 - 361
- 18 - - (18) - -
- - 17 - - (14) -
24 = = = = = =

Included in ‘Available-for-sale investments: Fair value gains/(losses)’ and ‘Exchange differences’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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Available-for-sale securities:

Trading assets: 2
(]
2
()
>
o
Derivative assets:
5
Trading liabilities: -C%
o
©
2
Derivative liabilities: @
=
]
Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives £
©
@
o
o
Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions
[¢}]
Reflected in other e
Reflected in profit or loss comprehensive income g
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable E'>J
changes changes changes changes )
US$m ussm US$m UsS$m o
At 31 December 2010
554 (444) = =
77 (75) = =
= = 763 (744)
631 (519) 763 (744)

Derivatives, trading assets and trading liabilities are presented as one category to reflect the manner in which these financial
instruments are risk-managed.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
16 - Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions by Level 3 instrument type

Reflected in other

Reflected in profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable  Unfavourable Favourable  Unfavourable
changes changes changes changes
US$m US$m US$m us$m

At 31 December 2010

112 (71) 383 (383)
8 8) 179 (181)
8 (8) - -
18 (16) - -
94 (8) - -
256 (258) = =
135 (150) 201 (180)
631 (519) 763 (744)

316



HSBC Holdings

Bases of valuing HSBC Holdings’ financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Valuation technigues

With
Quoted Using significant
market observable unobservable
price inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US$m US$m US$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
- 2,327 - 2,327
- - 2,025 2,025
12,029 4,259 - 16,288
- 827 - 827
Financial instruments measured at fair value — Level 3
Movement in Level 3 financial instruments available for sale
2010
US$m
2,455
(155)
(275)
2,025
@

Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives

Reflected in equity

Favourable  Unfavourable

changes changes
US$m US$m

Financial investments: available for sale
At 31 December 2010 34 (33)

317

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
17 - Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

17 Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

Fair values of financial instruments which are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
usS$m US$m
Assets

208,271 208,311
958,366 934,444
19,386 20,374
113 113

Liabilities
110,584 110,563
1,227,725 1,227,428
145,401 145,417
33,387 33,161

Fair values of financial instruments held for sale which are not carried at fair value on the balance sheet

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
usS$m US$m
Assets classified as held for sale
116 116

Assets

Liabilities

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by geographical segment

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
usS$m US$m
Loans and advances to customers

435,799 430,333
140,691 140,699
108,731 108,582
24,626 24,539
190,532 172,522
57,987 57,769
958,366 934,444
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Valuation

Loans and advances to banks and customers

Financial investments

Deposits by banks and customer accounts

Debt securities in issue and subordinated liabilities

HSBC Holdings

319

Overview

Operating & Financial Review

Governance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
18 — Reclassification of financial assets / 19 — Financial assets designated at fair value

Fair values of HSBC Holdings’ financial instruments not carried at fair value on the balance sheet

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
usS$m US$m
Assets

21,238 21,798

Liabilities
2,932 2,963
2,668 2,960
13,313 14,428

18 Reclassification of financial assets

Reclassification of HSBC'’s financial assets

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
US$m US$m

Reclassification to loans and receivables
5,892 4,977
522 493
4,533 4,166
10,947 9,636

Reclassification to available for sale

91 91
11,038 9,727

Effect of reclassifying and not reclassifying financial assets

Financial assets reclassified to:

available

loans and receivables for sale

Trading loans Leveraged Corporate

—commercial  finance and debt and

mortgage syndicated other
ABSs loans loans Total securities Total
US$m US$m US$m Us$m US$m US$m

2010

235 29 346 610 56 666
908 45 307 1,260 59 1,319
(673) (16) 39 (650) (3) (653)
(527) (16) (23) (566) 2) (568)
(146) - 49 97) 1) (98)
- - 13 13 - 13
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‘Income and expense’ recorded in the income statement represents the accrual of the effective interest rate and, for 2010, includes
US$6m in respect of impairment (2009: US$163m; 2008: US$26m). The effect on the income statement for 2008 shows the income and
expense post-reclassification. In 2008 pre-reclassification, the assets were held at fair value and a loss of US$1,371m was recorded in
the period up to reclassification.
Effect on the income statement during the year had the reclassification not occurred.
3
19 Financial assets designated at fair value =
c
2010 g
ussm o
)
36,990
21
37,011
159
18,248
17,418
0
35,825 T
315 =
871 0
0
37,011 ()
©
Securities designated at fair value 2
=
2010 -
Ussm
78
1,304
151
4,130
6,128
6,616
17,418
35,825

Included within these figures are debt securities issued by banks and other financial institutions of US$10,185m (2009: US$13,745m), of
which US$48m (2009: US$49m) are guaranteed by various governments.

Includes securities that are supported by an explicit guarantee issued by the US Government.

Excludes asset-backed securities included under US Treasury and US Government agencies.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

20 - Derivatives

Securities listed on a recognised exchange and unlisted

Treasury
and other Debt Equity
eligible bills securities securities Total
US$m us$m us$m us$m
Fair value at 31 December 2010
21 4,168 12,548 16,737
138 14,080 4,870 19,088
159 18,248 17,418 35,825
Included within listed investments are US$756m of investments listed in Hong Kong (2009: US$506m).
20 Derivatives
Fair values of derivatives by product contract type held by HSBC
Assets Liabilities
Trading Hedging Total Trading Hedging Total
Us$m ussm ussm ussm US$m Us$m
At 31 December 2010
65,905 1,304 67,209 67,564 340 67,904
278,364 2,764 281,128 273,222 3,909 277,131
13,983 - 13,983 14,716 - 14,716
20,907 - 20,907 20,027 - 20,027
1,261 - 1,261 2,618 - 2,618
380,420 4,068 384,488 378,147 4,249 382,396
(123,731) (123,731)
260,757 258,665

Fair values of derivatives by product contract type held by HSBC Holdings with subsidiaries

At 31 December 2010

Trading Trading
assets liabilities
US$m US$m

1,407 827
920 -
2,327 827
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
20 - Derivatives

Notional contract amounts of derivatives held for trading purposes by product type

At At

31 December 31 December
2010 2010

Us$m Us$m
3,692,798 17,287
18,104,141 6,804
294,587 -
1,065,218 -
82,856 -
23,239,600 24,091

Credit derivatives

Derivatives valued using models with unobservable inputs

Unamortised balance of derivatives valued using models with significant unobservable inputs

2010
US$m

260
331

(106)
(17)
(163)
(15)
(40)

250

This amount is yet to be recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Hedging instruments
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Overview

Notional contract amounts of derivatives held for hedging purposes by product type
At 31 December 2010

Cash flow Fair value
hedge hedge
US$m us$m 3
)
10,599 1,392 >
282,412 62,757 o
293,011 64,149 -
(=
g
Fair value hedges ic
]
o
=
®
(0]
o
o
Fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges
[¢}]
At 31 December 2010 2
Assets Liabilities o
ussm ussm o
>
153 - =
443 2,226 ©
596 2,226
Gains or losses arising from fair value hedges
2010
uss$m
(830)
868
38

Financial Statements

Cash flow hedges
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
20 - Derivatives / 21 - Financial investments

Fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

At 31 December 2010

Assets Liabilities
US$m US$m
1,151 340
2,321 1,683
3,472 2,023

Forecast principal balances on which interest cash flows are expected to arise

More than3 5 years or less

3 months months but less  but more than More than
or less than 1 year 1 year 5 years
US$m US$m US$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
163,006 97,174 58,975 1,358
(89,112) (58,811) (42,259) (6,065)
73,894 38,363 16,716 (4,707)
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
21 Financial investments
2010
US$m
369,597
31,158
400,755
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Carrying amount and fair value of financial investments

2010
Carrying Fair
amount value
ussm ussm 2
57,129 57,129 s
57,016 57,016 C>)
113 113
335,643 336,632
316,257 316,257
19,386 20,375
7,983 7,983
| 7,983 || 7,983 || I 2
E
400,755 401,744 o
©
(&)
Financial investments at amortised cost and fair value =
=
Amortised Fair ic
cost value o
US$m US$m g’
At 31 December 2010 =
37,380 37,255 S
20,895 21,339 o
5,029 5,267 o
31,069 31,815
29,770 29,793
108,947 109,806
39,845 33,175
124,704 125,311
5,605 7,983 Gé
403,244 401,744 =
o)
>
o
O
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Included within the above figures are debt securities issued by banks and other financial institutions of US$399,733m (2009:
US$133,256m, 2008: US$140,878m), of which US$38,862m (2009: US$55,324m; 2008: US$39,213m) are guaranteed by various
governments. The fair value of the debt securities issued by banks and other financial institutions was US$100,070m (2009:
US$133,461m; 2008: US$141,526m).

Includes securities that are supported by an explicit guarantee issued by the US Government.

Excludes asset-backed securities included under US Government agencies and sponsored entities.

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
21 - Financial investments / 22 —Transfers of financial assets not qualifying for derecognition

Financial investments listed on a recognised exchange and unlisted

Treasury Treasury

and other  and other Debt Debt Equity

eligible bills eligible bills securities securities securities

available held to available held to available
for sale maturity for sale maturity for sale Total
US$m usS$m us$m us$m US$m US$m

Carrying amount at 31 December 2010

1,400 - 138,374 4,182 851 144,807
55,616 113 177,883 15,204 7,132 255,948
57,016 113 316,257 19,386 7,983 400,755

The fair value of listed held-to-maturity debt securities as at 31 December 2010 was US$4,332m (2009: US$2,769m). Included within
listed investments were US$1,902m (2009: US$1,670m) of investments listed in Hong Kong.

Unlisted treasury and other eligible bills available for sale primarily comprise treasury bills not listed on a recognised exchange but for
which there is a liquid market.

Maturities of investments in debt securities at their carrying amount

2010
US$m

92,961
124,596
56,926
61,160

335,643

91,939
117,931
50,113
56,274

316,257

1,022
6,665
6,813
4,886

19,386

Contractual maturities and weighted average yields of investment debt securities at 31 December 2010

After one year but  After five years but

Within one year within five years within ten years After ten years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
US$m % ussm % ussm % ussm %
Available-for-sale
8,761 0.95 13,513 1.19 9,225 2.61 4,648 4.32
- - 7 2.95 230 4.78 20,236 3.71
859 0.70 114 1.75 1,993 3.81 445 3.60
3,994 2.90 11,407 2.22 13,987 297 1,248 2.80
362 0.55 407 2.95 - - - -
28,779 2.25 44,920 4.00 6,945 4.65 2,073 4.58
392 0.77 2,311 1.73 7,773 0.66 29,178 0.64
49,014 2.26 44,009 2.54 10,342 3.44 4,065 472
92,161 116,688 50,495 61,893
91,939 117,931 50,113 56,274
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22

Held-to-maturity

After one year but

Within one year within five years

After five years but
within ten years

After ten years

Amount Yield Amount Yield

US$m % uUS$m %

- - 32 3.13

19 5.26 28 7.14

2 3.02 - -

53 5.66 424 3.30

948 4.01 6,181 4.29
1,022 6,665

1,022 6,665

Transfers of financial assets not qualifying for derecognition

Amount Yield

US$m %

60 6.67

6 7.65

2 6.92

8 5.05

252 4.37

6,485 4.52
6,813
6,813

Amount Yield

US$m %
62 9.68
416 6.49
1,560 6.15
595 7.23
191 6.28
2,062 5.92
4,886

4,886

Financial assets and associated financial liabilities not qualifying for derecognition

Nature of transaction

2010
Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of
transferred associated
assets liabilities
US$m US$m
124,625 122,455
7,277 7,202
131,902 129,657
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

23 - Interests in associates and joint ventures

HSBC'’s continuing involvement in financial assets qualifying for partial derecognition

23 Interests in associates and joint ventures

2010
US$m

17,427

21

Associates

Principal associates of HSBC

Listed

Listed

Unlisted

People’s Republic of China.

At 31 December 2010

Carrying Fair
amount value
US$m US$m
6,944 10,773
1,769 2,799
5,596 13,735

28 49

1,580 3,224
15,917 30,580

At 31 December 2010

HSBC’s

Country of interest in
incorporation equity capital
PRC 19.03%

PRC 12.80%

PRC 16.13%

Saudi Arabia 32.50%
Saudi Arabia 40.00%
Hong Kong 24.64%
Vietnam 19.79%
PRC 20.00%

Issued

equity
capital

RMB56,260m
RMB5,992m
RMB7,345m

SR340m
SR7,500m

VNDG6,932,184m
RMB2,000m

Yantai Bank Co., Limited was previously known as Yantai City Commercial Bank. The investment is held through Hang Seng Bank

Limited, a 62.14% owned subsidiary of HSBC.
Issued equity capital is less than HK$1m.
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Summarised aggregate financial information on associates

Joint ventures

Principal interests in joint ventures

2010
US$m

191,286
175,812
9,274
2,479

At 31 December 2010

Country of
incorporation

Saudi Arabia
England
South Korea

India

331

Principal
activity

Investment banking
Cash management
Insurance manufacturing

Insurance manufacturing

HSBC'’s interest
in equity
capital

60.00%

50.00%

49.99%

26.00%

Issued
equity
capital

SR50m
£10m
KRW60,201m

INR5,000m
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

24 — Goodwill and intangible assets

Summarised aggregate financial information on joint ventures

Goodwill included in carrying amount of associates and joint ventures

Gross amount

Includes the carrying amount of goodwill arising from joint ventures of US$32m (2009: US$32m).

24 Goodwill and intangible assets

2010
US$m

1,481
97
706
666
366
328

2010
US$m

1,446
60
40

(28)

1,518

Disclosures on PVIF are provided on page 170.

Goodwill

Reconciliation of goodwill

Europe
US$m
Gross amount
15,915
3
(1,004)
(23)

Hong
Kong
us$m

123

Rest of
Asia-
Pacific
uS$m

1,053
16

52
(6)

Middle
East
US$m

69

Q)

2010
US$m

22,406
3,440
4,076

29,922

North
America
US$m

12,483

(1;)
M

Latin
America
US$m

4,162

154

Total
US$m

33,805
16
(20)
(802)
(29)

14,885

124

1,115

65

12,465

4,316

32,970

Accumulated impairment losses

(10,564)

(10,564)

14,885

124

1,115

65

1,901

4,316

22,406
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Impairment testing

Timing of impairment testing

Basis of the recoverable amount — value in use or fair value less costs to sell

Key assumptions in VIU calculation and management’s approach to determining the values assigned to each key
assumption

2010
Nominal
growth rate
beyond
Goodwill at initial
1 July Discount cash flow
Cash-generating unit 2010 rate  projections
US$m % %
4,017 11.0 3.0
3,015 11.0 3.0
4,055 11.0 3.0
2,983 12.0 3.0
2,385 143 8.6

16,455
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
24 — Goodwill and intangible assets

Nominal long-term growth rate

Discount rate

Management’s judgement in estimating the cash flows of a CGU

Personal Financial Services — Europe and Commercial Banking — Europe:

Global Private Banking — Europe:

Global Banking and Markets — Europe:

Personal Financial Services — Latin America:
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Other intangible assets

Movement of intangible assets excluding goodwill and the PVIF

Customer/
Mortgage Internally merchant G;.)
Trade servicing generated Purchased relation- S
names rights software software ships Other Total 5]
US$m US$m us$m usS$m usS$m US$m uS$m C>)
Cost
68 689 4,400 954 1,988 502 8,601
- 52 960 140 48 4 1,204
- (105) (40) (15) (79) - (239)
= = (70) (@) = = (72)

- - (68) 4) 30 27 (15) 3
= = 20 (8) = (30) (18) o
68 636 5,202 1,065 1,987 503 9,461 é
Accumulated amortisation ‘g
(50) (240) (2,511) (747) (955) (125) (4,628) =
(5) (105) (596) 97) (243) (30) (1,076) =
- - (12) - - - (12) 5
- 105 33 8 68 1) 213 o
- - 70 2 - - 72 =
1 = 48 1 (13) @) 36 ©
2 = 10 (15) = 13 10 =
(52) (240) (2,958) (848) (1,143) (144) (5,385) ©

16 396 2,244 217 844 359 4,076
3
(=
@©
(=
)
3
(O]

(2]
@
=
()
(0]
8
[
I
wn
5
o
[
@©
=
L

At 31 December 2010, HSBC had US$0.2m (2009: US$0.2m) of contractual commitments to acquire intangible assets.
The amortisation charge for the year is recognised within the income statement under ‘Amortisation and impairment of intangible
assets’, with the exception of the amortisation of mortgage servicing rights which is recognised in net fee income.

Shareholder Information
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
25 - Property, plant and equipment

25 Property, plant and equipment

Long Short Equipment
Freehold  leasehold  leasehold Equipment, on
land and land and land and fixtures  operating
buildings  buildings  buildings and fittings leases Total
US$m US$m US$m uS$m US$m US$m
Cost or fair value
3,915 1,327 3,135 11,552 5,236 25,165
349 76 632 1,456 65 2,578
31 24 38 - - 93
(307) (€)) (82) (355) (5,113) (5,865)
(73) (16) @) (35) - (127)
(47) (147) 199 (5) - -
(47) (5) @a7) (62) (135) (266)
131 422 102 (22) - 633
3,952 1,673 4,004 12,529 53 22,211
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
(450) (229) (1,065) (7,743) (1,876) (11,363)
91) (46) (203) (1,178) (150) (1,668)
31 - 68 344 1,956 2,399
24 - 1 26 - 51
23 20 (43) - - -
(22) - 1 (24) - (45)
5 2 5 54 45 111
(106) (54) (32 15 2 (175)
(586) (307) (1,268) (8,506) (23) (10,690)
3,366 1,366 2,736 4,023 30 11,521

Including assets held on finance leases with a net book value of US$11m (2009: US$18m).
Including assets held on finance leases with a net book value of US$204m (2009: US$513m).
Including assets with a net book value of US$31m (2009: US$36m) pledged as security for liabilities.
At 31 December 2010, HSBC had US$593m (2009: US$878m) of contractual commitments to acquire property, plant and equipment.
The disposals included under ‘Equipment on operating leases’ relate to the sale of a subsidiary, Eversholt Rail Group, during the year.

Leasehold land and buildings
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Leasehold land and buildings

2010
Accumulated
Cost depreciation

US$m US$m ag.)
S
1,2;411 (831) a->)
(81) 54 &
- (133)
(16) -
36 (23)
1,944 (933) 3
@)
1,011 S
o
o
Investment properties 2
(=
Movement on the fair value of investment properties =
=
Long Short 3
Freehold leasehold leasehold o
land and land and land and =
buildings buildings buildings Total o
us$m us$m us$m us$m <3
Fair value o
640 184 237 1,061
240 - - 240
31 24 38 93
(216) @ - (218)
- (42) 42 - °
(34) (1) @ (36) 2
6 @ (6) ) s
667 156 310 1,133 °>J
o
(O]

(2]
@
=
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(0]
8
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

26 -

26

Investments in subsidiaries

HSBC properties leased to customers

Investments in subsidiaries

Principal subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings
At 31 December 2010

Share
class

Ordinary £1
A-Common TRL1
B-Common TRL1

Ordinary €0.30
Ordinary £1
Preferred Ordinary £1
Series 2 Third Dollar
Preference US$0.01
Third Dollar
Preference US$0.01

Shares €5.00

Ordinary £1

Ordinary £1

Ordinary CHF1,000
Shares of no par value

Ordinary £1

Ordinary HK$5.00
Ordinary HK$1,000
Ordinary HK$1.00
Ordinary HK$2.50
CIP US$1.00

CRP US$1.00

NIP US$1.00

Shares of no par value
Ordinary CNY1.00
Ordinary RMO0.50

CRP US$1.00
Ordinary US$1.00
Ordinary EGP84.00

Common BMD1.00
Class 1 Pref of NPV
Class 2 Pref of NPV
Common of NPV
Common US$100
Common US$0.01
Common US$0.05

Ordinary-A ARS1.00
Ordinary-B ARS1.00
Shares of no par value

Ordinary MXN2.00
Ordinary PAB 1.00

HSBC’s
Country of interest in Issued
incorporation equity capital equity
or registration % capital
Europe
England 100 £265m
Turkey 100 TRL652m
Malta 70.03 €88m
England 100 £797m
France 99.99 €337m
Jersey 100 £1m
England 100 £94m
Switzerland 100 CHF1,363m
Germany 80.40 €28m
England 100 £67m
Hong Kong
Hong Kong 62.14 HK$9,559m
Hong Kong 100 HK$318m
Bermuda 100 HK$421m
Hong Kong 100 HK$22,494m
Rest of Asia-Pacific
Australia 100 A$751m
PRC 100 RMB8,000m
Malaysia 100 RM115m
Middle East
Jersey 100 US$931m
Egypt 9453 EGP1511m
North America
Bermuda 100 usS$30m
Canada 100 C$1,225m
United States 100 us$2m
United States 100 -
United States 100 -
Latin America
Argentina 99.99 ARS1,244m
Brazil 100 BRL5,178m
Mexico 99.99 MXN5,087m
Panama 100 US$10m
Cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares. Preference shares of nil par value.
Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares Issued equity capital is less than US$1m.
Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference shares. Listed in Hong Kong.

People’s Republic of China

Details of the debt, subordinated debt and preference shares issued by the principal subsidiaries to parties external to the Group are
included in the Notes 30 ‘Debt securities in issue’, 34 ‘Subordinated liabilities” and 38 ‘Non-controlling interests’, respectively.
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Subsidiaries which experience significant restrictions on their ability to transfer funds to HSBC in the form of cash

dividends or to repay loans and advances 2
)
>
)
o
©
2

Subsidiaries excluding SPEs where HSBC owns less than 50% of the voting rights ©
£
]
o
=
©
)
o
O
8

SPEs consolidated by HSBC where HSBC owns less than 50% of the voting rights =
(=
o
>
o

2010 )
Uss$bn
4.5
3.0
4.2

54 @

28 ®

2.8 <

5]

- ©

3.7 &»

2.0 ©

- ‘o

(=

: :

3.9 i
10.3
14
1.0
6.3
135

=
o
=
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S
—
o
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
27 - Other assets / 28 —Trading liabilities / 29 - Financial liabilities at fair value / 30 — Debt securities in issue

Acquisitions

27 Other assets

2010
US$m

18,446
1,991
1,865

10,116

10,833

43,251

Non-current assets held for sale

2010
US$m

1,333

116

1,461

28 Trading liabilities

2010
US$m

38,678
125,684
33,726
102,615

300,703
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29 Financial liabilities designated at fair value

HSBC
2010
us$m 5
>
6,527 >
11,700 g
46,001 o
19,395
4,420
88,133
3
8
>
(0]
(o
©
o
HSBC Holdings &
2010 =
uUs$m &
()]
12,029 z
4,259 ©
2
16,288 =
(]
. ) ) o
30 Debt securities in issue 5
C
2010 3
US$m o
5}
162,948
62,270
225218
(33,726)
(46,091)
145,401
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

30 - Debt securities in issue / 31 — Other liabilities / 32 — Liabilities under insurance contracts

Bonds and medium-term notes

HSBC

Fixed rate

Variable interest rate

Structured notes

HSBC Holdings

Fixed rate senior debt, unsecured:

31 Other liabilities

2010
US$m

6,666
1,956
387
209
394

39,596
12,854
19,011
11,008
3,124
254
337

95,796

8,448
1,000
53,301

62,749

4
4,399

4,403

162,948

2010
US$m

1,664
1,004

2,668

2010
US$m

840
454
1,203
10,123
15,430

2010
US$m

1,203

29

28,050

1,232

342



32 Liabilities under insurance contracts

Reinsurers’
Gross share Net
us$m US$m US$m
At 31 December 2010
Non-life insurance liabilities
727 (129) 598
879 (230) 649
745 (75) 670
105 2 107
2,456 (432) 2,024
Life insurance liabilities to policyholders
23,583 (673) 22,910
22,074 - 22,074
10,496 (760) 9,736
56,153 (1,433) 54,720
58,609 (1,865) 56,744

Though investment contracts with discretionary participation features are financial instruments, HSBC continues to treat them as

insurance contracts as permitted by IFRS 4.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
32 - Liabilities under insurance contracts

Movement on non-life insurance liabilities

2010
Unearned premium reserve (‘UPR’)

Notified and incurred but not reported claims

344

Reinsurers’

Gross share Net
uS$m US$m US$m
833 (135) 698
(83) (12) (95)
1,192 (172) 1,020
(1,275) 160 (1,115)
(23) 18 (5)
727 (129) 598
1,717 (327) 1,390
1,032 (245) 787
685 (82) 603
(815) 114 (701)
519 (112) 408
106 11 117
97 8 105
1,624 (305) 1,319
879 (230) 649
745 (75) 670
105 2 107
2,456 (432) 2,024




Life insurance liabilities to policyholders

2010
Life (non-linked)

Investment contracts with discretionary participation features

Life (linked)

Reinsurers’

Gross share Net
uS$m US$m US$m
20,979 (771) 20,208
(1,355) 143 (1,212)
5,108 (201) 4,907
(1,149) 156 (993)
23,583 (673) 22,910
21,014 - 21,014
(2,023) - (2,023)
3,716 - 3,716
(633) = (633)
22,074 - 22,074
8,986 (831) 8,155
(507) 45 (462)
2,520 99 2,619
(503) (73) (576)
10,496 (760) 9,736
56,153 (1,433) 54,720

Includes movement in liabilities relating to discretionary profit participation benefits due to policyholders arising from net unrealised

investment gains recognised in other comprehensive income.
Includes amounts arising under reinsurance agreements.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
33 - Provisions / 34 — Subordinated liabilities

33 Provisions

34 Subordinated liabilities

2010
US$m

1,965
812
(564)
(132)

57

2,138

HSBC

346

2010
US$m

33,387

28,309
5,078

23,815

19,395
4,420

57,202

22,878
34,324

57,202




HSBC'’s subordinated liabilities

2010
US$m

Amounts owed to third parties by HSBC Holdings 22,878
Other HSBC subordinated liabilities

2,174
1,843
1,252
1,185
1,087
1,070
1,009
994
971
958
919
891
823
801
774
772
750
747
729
728
694
592
562
547
526
510
500
462
450
434
417
407
403
400
347
342
310
301
300
300
248
231
213
204
204
200
200
200
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
34 - Subordinated liabilities

Approximately 25% of the 6.676% senior subordinated notes 2021 is held by HSBC Holdings.

See ‘Step-up perpetual preferred securities’ below, note (a) ‘Guaranteed by HSBC Holdings'.

See ‘Step-up perpetual preferred securities’ below, note (b) ‘Guaranteed by HSBC Bank’.

On 15 February 2011, HSBC gave notice to holders of its €800m callable subordinated floating rate notes 2016 and its €600m 4.25%
callable subordinated notes 2016 that it will call and redeem the notes at par on 29 March 2011 and 18 March 2011, respectively.
The distributions on the trust preferred securities change in November 2015 to three-month dollar LIBOR plus 1.926%.

The interest rate on the 4.75% callable subordinated notes 2020 changes in September 2015 to three-month sterling LIBOR plus
0.82%.

The interest margin on the callable subordinated floating rate notes 2020 increases by 0.5% from September 2015.

The interest rate on the callable subordinated variable coupon notes 2017 is fixed at 5.75% until June 2012. Thereafter, the rate per
annum is the sum of the gross redemption yield of the then prevailing five-year UK gilt plus 1.70%.

The interest rate on the 5.00% callable subordinated notes 2023 changes in March 2018 to become the rate per annum which is the
sum of the gross redemption yield of the then prevailing five-year UK gilt plus 1.80%.

The interest rate on the 5.375% callable subordinated step-up notes 2030 changes in November 2025 to three-month sterling LIBOR
plus 1.50%.

The interest margin on the US$450m callable subordinated floating rate notes 2016 increases by 0.5% from July 2011.

The interest margin on the callable subordinated floating rate notes 2017 increases by 0.5% from July 2012.

The interest margin on the callable subordinated floating rate notes 2016 increases by 0.5% from May 2011.

In June 2010, HSBC redeemed its 9.547% non-cumulative step-up preferred securities, series 1 at par.

Footnotes 4 to 13 relate to notes that are repayable at the option of the borrower on the date of the change of the interest rate, and at
subsequent interest rate reset dates and interest payment dates in some cases, subject to prior notification to the Financial Services
Authority and, where relevant, the consent of the local banking regulator.

Step-up perpetual preferred securities

(a) Guaranteed by HSBC Holdings

(b) Guaranteed by HSBC Bank
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HSBC Holdings

2010

us$m S

.2

>

13,313 &

16,288 i

29,601 e

©

=

HSBC Holdings’ subordinated liabilities ;

2010 2

ussm =

Amounts owed to third parties o)

2,695 S
2,578
2,142
2,050
1,493
1,492

1,485 Q

1,405 =

1,372 c

1,210 o

(]

1,000 1]
971
928
750
582
467
258

— %)

22,878 =

)

Amounts owed to HSBC undertakings GEJ

I

1,957 n

©

1,274 2

©

c

1,028 i
891
801

S

772 =

©

£
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o

6,723 =

)

29,601 o

2

The interest rate on the 6.375% callable subordinated notes 2022 changes in October 2017 to become three-month sterling LIBOR plus o

1.3%. The notes may be redeemed at par from October 2017 at the option of the borrower, subject to the prior notification to the FSA o
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
35 - Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities / 36 — Foreign exchange exposures

The interest rate on the 3.625% callable subordinated notes 2020 changes in June 2015 to become three-month EURIBOR plus 0.93%.
The notes may be redeemed at par from June 2015 at the option of the borrower, subject to the prior notification to the FSA.

The interest margin on the callable subordinated floating rate notes 2016 increases by 0.5% from October 2011. The notes are
repayable from their step up date at the option of the borrower, subject to the prior notification to the FSA.

The interest rate on the 9.875% subordinated bonds 2018 changes in April 2013 to become the higher of (i) 9.875% or (i) the sum of the
yield on the relevant benchmark treasury stock plus 2.5%. The bonds may be redeemed in April 2013 at par and redemption has also
been allowed from April 1998, subject to the prior notification to the FSA, for an amount based on the redemption yields of the relevant
benchmark treasury stocks.

In March 2010, HSBC Holdings redeemed its US$750m callable subordinated floating rate notes due 2015 at par.

In June 2010, HSBC Holdings redeemed its 9.547% subordinated step-up cumulative notes 2040 — HSBC Capital Funding (Dollar 1) LP
at par.

35 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

HSBC
At 31 December 2010
Due after
Due within more than
one year one year Total
US$m US$m US$m
Assets
3,030 33,981 37,011
200,098 8,173 208,271
424,713 533,653 958,366
149,954 250,801 400,755
19,417 5,519 24,936
797,212 832,127 1,629,339
Liabilities
105,462 5,122 110,584
1,181,095 46,630 1,227,725
10,141 77,992 88,133
86,096 59,305 145,401
24,865 4,792 29,657
791 32,596 33,387

1,408,450 226,437 1,634,887

HSBC Holdings
At 31 December 2010

Due after
Due within ~ more than
one year one year Total
US$m uUS$m usS$m
Assets
13,691 7,547 21,238
- 2,025 2,025
1 - 1
13,692 9,572 23,264
Liabilities
1,480 1,452 2,932
- 16,288 16,288
- 2,668 2,668
1,782 - 1,782
- 13,313 13,313
3,262 33,721 36,983
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36 Foreign exchange exposures

Structural foreign exchange exposures

Overview

Net structural foreign exchange exposures

2010
ussm
Currency of structural exposure

23,247
23,222
17,454
6,004
5,991
4,754
4,012
3,357
2,659
2,469
1,854
1,619
1,456
1,429
1,381
1,190
907
881
642
635
621
596
510
424
416
291
267
266
257
249
238
234
227
181
172
155
136
133
109
658

111,303

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

(2]
2
=
()
(0]
8
[
I
wn
s
o
[
@©
=
L

Shareholder Information

351



HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
37 — Assets charged as security / 38 — Non-controlling interests / 39 — Share capital and other equity instruments

37 Assets charged as security for liabilities and collateral accepted as security for assets

Financial assets pledged to secure liabilities

2010
US$m

5,859
11,773
60,500

214,126

7,216

931

300,405

Collateral accepted as security for assets

38 Non-controlling interests

2010
US$m

4,522
2,726

7,248

Preference shares issued by subsidiaries

2010
US$m

559
518
374
374
251
175
175

150
150

2,726

The Series B preferred stock has been redeemable at the option of HSBC Finance Corporation, in whole or in part, from 24 June 2010
at par.

The Series F preferred stock has been redeemable at par at the option of HSBC USA, Inc., in whole or in part, on any dividend payment
date from 7 April 2010.

The Series G and Series H preferred stock are redeemable at par at the option of HSBC USA, Inc., in whole or in part, at any time from
1 January 2011 and 1 July 2011, respectively.

The Series E preferred shares are redeemable at par at the option of HSBC Bank Canada, in whole or in part commencing 30 June 2014
and on 30 June every five years thereafter.

The Series C and Series D preferred shares have been redeemable at a declining premium above par at the option of HSBC Bank
Canada, in whole or in part, from 30 June 2010 and 31 December 2010, respectively.

The preferred stock has been redeemable at the option of HSBC USA, Inc., in whole or in part, from 1 July 1999 at par.

The preferred stock has been redeemable at the option of HSBC USA, Inc., in whole or in part, from 1 October 2007 at par.
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39 Called up share capital and other equity instruments

S
Issued and fully paid GS)
2010 2
us$m ©
8,843
Number US$m
HSBC Holdings ordinary shares of US$0.50 each
17,408,206,768 8,705 2
25,001,734 12 0
252,947,400 126 3
o
17,686,155,902 8,843 =
‘©
(=
@©
=
=
]
o
=
®
<3
All ordinary shares in issue confer identical rights in respect of capital, dividends, voting and otherwise. (@]
Number ussm
HSBC Holdings non-cumulative preference shares of US$0.01 each
1,450,000 -
[¢}]
o
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@©
=
)
>
)
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HSBC Holdings non-cumulative preference shares of £0.01 each
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
39 - Share capital and other equity instruments

HSBC Holdings non-voting deferred shares

Other equity instruments

pari passu

pari passu

Shares under option

Aggregate options outstanding under these plans

Number of
HSBC Holdings
ordinary shares

31 December 2010 249,242,968
47,428,892

3,128,508

10,899,415

Period of exercise

2011 to 2016
2011 to 2016
2011 to 2016
2011 to 2016

During 2009, the number and prices of unexercised share options were adjusted for the rights issue.

354

Exercise price

£3.3116 — 8.4024
HK$37.8797 — 94.5057
€3.6361 - 9.5912
US$4.8876 — 12.0958



HSBC France and subsidiary company plans

HSBC France options effectively outstanding over HSBC Holdings ordinary shares

Number of

HSBC France

shares exchangeable

for HSBC Holdings
ordinary shares Period of exercise

31 December 2010 - _

HSBC Private Bank France plan

HSBC Private Bank France options effectively outstanding over HSBC Holdings ordinary shares

Number of HSBC
Private Bank France
shares exchangeable
for HSBC Holdings
ordinary shares Period of exercise

31 December 2010 287,100 2011 to 2012

HSBC Finance plan
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Exercise price

Exercise price
€20.80 — 22.22
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
39 - Share capital and other equity instruments / 40 — Notes on the statement of cash flows

Options outstanding over HSBC Holdings ordinary shares under the HSBC Finance share plan

Number of
HSBC Holdings
ordinary shares Period of exercise
31 December 2010 11,117,826 2011 to 2012

During 2009, the number and prices of unexercised share options were adjusted for the rights issue.

HSBC Bank Bermuda plans

Exercise price

US$9.29 - 18.62

Options outstanding over HSBC Holdings ordinary shares under the HSBC Bank Bermuda share plan

Number of HSBC
Holdings
ordinary shares Period of exercise
31 December 2010 2,339,033 2011 to 2013

During 2009, the number and prices of unexercised share options were adjusted for the rights issue.

Maximum obligation to deliver HSBC Holdings ordinary shares

40 Notes on the statement of cash flows

Exercise price

US$9.32 - 15.99

Non-cash items included in profit before tax

2010 2010
US$m US$m
2,801 2
(188)
(93)
812 28
15,059
680
105 113
526
(815) 42
18,887 185
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Change in operating assets

Change in operating liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Interest and dividends

2010 2010
US$m US$m
- 1,974
457 (5)
60,337 1,119
5,213
(79,283)
154 -
(145) 3
(13,267) 3,091
2010 2010
US$m US$m
716 147
(14,288)
68,691
(1,495) (171)
5,659 (621)
(17,011) (1,109)
42,272 (1,754)
2010 2010
US$m US$m
459
57,383
6,072
189,197
28,087
(6,663)
274,076 459
2010 2010
uUs$m US$m
(21,405) (2,363)
63,696 1,405
563 7,008
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
41 - Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees / 42 - Lease commitments

41 Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

2010 2010
US$m US$m

Guarantees and contingent liabilities
71,157 46,988
166 -
71,323 46,988

Commitments

12,051 -
30 -
590,432 2,720
602,513 2,720

Guarantees
At 31 December 2010
Guarantees
by HSBC
Holdings
Guarantees in in favour of
favour of other HSBC
third parties  Group entities
US$m US$m
Guarantee type
21,175 46,988
8,033 -
6,555 -
15,367 -
927 -
6,263 -
12,746 -
91 -
71,157 46,988

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss incurred
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Other direct credit substitutes include re-insurance letters of credit and trade-related letters of credit issued without provision for the
issuing entity to retain title to the underlying shipment.

Performance bonds, bid bonds, standby letters of credit and other transaction-related guarantees are undertakings by which the
obligation on HSBC to make payment depends on the outcome of a future event.
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Financial Services Compensation Scheme

Commitments

Associates

42 Lease commitments

Finance lease commitments

At 31 December 2010

Present value

Total future Future of finance
minimum interest lease
payments charges commitments

US$m US$m US$m
107 (20) 87
187 (92) 95
390 (118) 272
684 (230) 454
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

42 - Lease commitments / 43 — Special purpose entities

Operating lease commitments

Finance lease receivables

At 31 December 2010

Land and

buildings Equipment
us$m ussm
920 23
2,663 37
2,614 -
6,197 60

At 31 December 2010

Total future Unearned

minimum finance Present
payments income value
US$m US$m US$m

3,002 (344) 2,658

8,940 (813) 8,127

6,629 (1,462) 5,167
18,571 (2,619) 15,952
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Operating lease receivables

At 31 December 2010 %
Land and s
buildings Equipment g
us$m us$m o
18 17
21 22
14 2
53 4 g
>
) o 9
43 Special purpose entities =
@©
k)
(=
@©
=
=
]
o)
=
©
g
Total consolidated assets held by SPEs by balance sheet classification ©)
Non-money
Money market
Securit- market  investment
Conduits isations funds funds Total
uUss$bn uUss$bn UsSs$bn Ussbn Uss$bn o
At 31 December 2010 =
1.0 0.7 - 0.3 2.0 =
0.1 0.6 0.4 0.5 1.6 2
o
0.1 = = 6.4 6.5 5]
- 0.3 - - 0.3
= 1.4 = = 1.4
8.4 222 - - 30.6
30.5 0.1 - - 30.6
1.6 0.4 - 0.4 2.4
41.7 25.7 0.4 7.6 75.4
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
43 - Special purpose entities

Total assets of consolidated and unconsolidated SPEs and HSBC's funding and maximum exposure

Consolidated SPEs Unconsolidated SPEs
Liquidity
Funding  and credit HSBC'’s Funding HSBC'’s
Total provided enchance-  maximum Total provided  maximum
assets by HSBC ments exposure assets by HSBC exposure
US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn US$bn USsbn US$bn
At 31 December 2010

41.7 28.6 38.3 50.5 - - -
32.2 28.6 25.6 37.8 - - -
9.5 0.0 12.7 12.7 - - -
25.7 1.9 0.1 4.7 9.9 - -
0.4 0.4 - 0.4 95.8 0.7 0.7
- - - - 74.9 0.5 0.5
0.4 0.4 - 0.4 20.9 0.2 0.2
7.6 6.9 - 6.9 274.7 1.7 1.7
75.4 37.8 38.4 62.5 380.4 2.4 2.4

Conduits

Securities investment conduits

Solitaire

Mazarin
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Barion and Malachite

Overview

Multi-seller conduits

Operating & Financial Review

Weighted average life of portfolios

Total multi-
Solitaire Other SICs Total SICs seller conduits
Weighted average life (years)

At 31 December 2010 5.1 4.0 4.4 1.8

Securitisations

Governance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

43 - Special purpose entities / 44 — Legal proceedings, investigations and regulatory matters

Non-money market investment funds

Other

Third-party sponsored SPEs

Additional off-balance sheet arrangements and commitments

Leveraged finance transactions
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44 Legal proceedings, investigations and regulatory matters

Overview

Securities litigation

Jaffe v Household International Inc, et al

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
44 - Legal proceedings, investigations and regulatory matters

Payment Protection Insurance
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
45 - Related party transactions

45 Related party transactions

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

2010
uUS$m

39

49

92

Transactions, arrangements and agreements involving related parties

2010
US$m

2010
Highest
amounts
Balance at outstanding
31 December during year
us$m US$m

Key Management Personnel

901 1,681
27 31

Includes Key Management Personnel, close family members of Key Management Personnel and entities which are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced, or for which significant voting power is held, by Key Management Personnel or their close family
members.
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Shareholdings, options and other securities of Key Management Personnel

2010
(000s)
S
602 °;’
13,395 5
- 3
13,997
Transactions with other related parties of HSBC .
Associates and joint ventures %’
o
©
‘©
(=
@©
=
=
]
2010 o
Highest E
balance during Balance at g
the year 31 December Q
US$m US$m o
5 5
514 412
16 - -
2,248 1,702 =
@©
2,783 2,119 =
()
151 134 5
700 527 o
851 661

The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most meaningful information to
represent transactions during the year.

Post-employment benefit plans
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)
45 - Related party transactions / 46 — Events after the balance sheet date // Shareholder information > Dividends

HSBC Holdings

2010

Highest
balance during Balance at
the year 31 December
US$m US$m

Assets
459 459
3,219 2,327
23,212 21,238
2,606 2,025
92,899 92,899
122,395 118,948
Liabilities

4,580 2,932
1,677 827
3,907 2,464
4,507 4,259
14,671 10,482
46,988 46,988
3,240 2,720

The disclosure of the year-end balance and the highest balance during the year is considered the most meaningful information to
represent transactions during the year. The above outstanding balances arose in the ordinary course of business and are on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates and security, as for comparable transactions with third-party counterparties, with
the exception of US$160m (2009: US$160m) in respect of loans to HSBC subsidiaries from HSBC Holdings and US$506m

(2009: US8529m) in respect of loans from HSBC subsidiaries to HSBC Holdings made at an agreed zero per cent interest rate.

46 Events after the balance sheet date
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information

Interim dividends

Shareholder information

Page Page
371 373
371 374
372 374
372 375
372 376
373 379
380
Fourth interim dividend for 2010

28 February 2011
16 March 2011
16 March 2011
17 March 2011
18 March 2011

Annual Report and Accounts 2010 Annual Review 2010

30 March 2011

20 April 2011
27 April 2011
5 May 2011
Removals to and from the Overseas Branch register of shareholders in Hong Kong will not be permitted on this date.
Interim dividends for 2011
Interim dividends for 2011
First Second Third Fourth
3 May 2011 1 August 2011 7 November 2011 27 February 2012
18 May 2011 17 August 2011 23 November 2011 14 March 2012
18 May 2011 17 August 2011 23 November 2011 14 March 2012
19 May 2011 18 August 2011 24 November 2011 15 March 2012
20 May 2011 19 August 2011 25 November 2011 16 March 2012
6 July 2011 6 October 2011 18 January 2012 2 May 2012

Removals to and from the Overseas Branch Register of shareholders in Hong Kong will not be permitted on these dates.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Stock symbols / Shareholder profile / Annual General Meeting / IMS and interim results / Shareholder enquiries

Stock symbols

Shareholder profile

Number of Total

Ordinary shares held shareholders shares held
33,908 1,050,278

31,146 7,620,110

8,176 3,678,368

33,298 24,239,122

73,788 171,912,626
18,775 132,126,979
10,913 151,898,993
6,648 204,466,829
3,223 298,496,753
754 237,056,817
1,104  16,453,609,027

221,733 17,686,155,902

Annual General Meeting

Total votes
Resolution For Against  Vote withheld
6,944,544,740 39,714,613 430,598,977
5,730,566,528 856,535,768 820,187,860
7,296,815,167 101,823,159 15,277,590
7,334,050,341 32,961,299 47,188,185
6,977,475,948 323,769,338 112,927,709
7,268,685,057 130,023,850 15,410,295
7,378,931,192 19,477,921 15,363,215
7,153,405,009 244,795,070 15,607,399
6,704,405,938 234,358,448 469,120,496
7,380,522,401 18,038,078 15,323,823
7,359,819,272 18,027,604 36,351,240
7,264,724,799 135,841,801 16,628,621
7,319,169,089 79,046,168 18,836,871
7,362,315,126 32,851,046 21,846,012
7,358,291,988 28,253,519 30,640,176
7,050,768,076 322,799,315 43,639,277

Includes discretionary votes.
A ‘Vote Withheld’ is not a ‘vote’ in law and is not counted in the calculation of the votes ‘For’ and ‘Against’ the resolution.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Shareholder enquiries / Investor relations / Where more information is available / Organisational structure

Electronic communications

Chinese translation

Annual Report and Accounts 2010

<2010 4EH IR B Y A haA » £ R LA 2011 45 3 A 30 H24% » 1) B RA B R &R B o

TR AN F AR WOBCRH BA SCARRY e As > B SR BI A SO 0 R R A (ER A S AR AR OB Bl s AR > 1 il Wt Ak JL
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Investor relations

Where more information about HSBC is available

Annual Report and Accounts 2010
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Taxation of shares and dividends > UK residents / US residents

Taxation of shares and dividends

Taxation — UK residents

Taxation of capital gains

Taxation of dividends

Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax
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Taxation of dividends

Overview

Taxation — US residents

Operating & Financial Review

Governance

Taxation of capital gains

Financial Statements

Inheritance tax

Annual Report
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Taxation of shares and dividends > US residents // Cautionary statement

US backup withholding tax and information
reporting

Stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax —
ADSs
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Cautionary statement regarding
forward-looking statements
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)

Glossary

Glossary

Abbreviation Brief description

A

380



Brief description

Abbreviation
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Glossary

Abbreviation Brief description

R

Full definition included in Glossary of Terms on page 383.
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Glossary

Term Definition
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
Glossary

Term Definition
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)

Index

Index
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC

Shareholder Information (continued)
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HSBC HOLDINGS PLC
Incorporated in England on 1 January 1959 with limited liability under the UK Companies Act
Registered in England: number 617987

REGISTERED OFFICE AND
GROUP MANAGEMENT OFFICE

REGISTRARS

Principal Register

Hong Kong Overseas Branch Register ADR Depositary
Bermuda Overseas Branch Register Paying Agent (France)
STOCKBROKERS
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